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FERES
Chairman’s
Statement

ZHANG JIANHONG Chairman
RER IR
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In 2017, China’s economic development has entered a new normal. The government has since been
actively upgrading of economic structure. Its 2017 GDP expanded by 6.9% year-on-year, underlying
a strong national economic development. Although the overall economy achieved a stable growth,
the fluorosilicone chemical industry encountered great challenges. Considering the supply-side
reform, enterprises in the mining and chemical industries were unable to increase production; and the
development of some fluorosilicone chemical enterprises were also restricted under current environmental
protection trend. Facing the challenging environment, the Group still achieved a breakthrough in
performance owing to its industry chains and environmental friendly infrastructures developed for a long
time.
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1. Overall performance recorded significant

growth

During the period under review, the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately RMB10,137,137,000, representing an increase
of 27.19% over RMB7,969,773,000 in the previous year, our gross
profit margin was 30.23%, representing a year-on-year increase
of 9.64 percentage points, and our net profit amounted to
RMB1,681,799,000, an increase of 173% year on year. This has
been the best performance of the Company since 2011. During
the period under review, as a result of the combined effect of
the changes in supply and demand, the prices of all the products
in the fluorosilicone industry experienced increases to different
extents. As for the supply, the production of some enterprises
in the domestic fluorosilicone chemical industry was affected by
the pressure from environmental protection; at the same time,
the production of raw material enterprises could not fully meet
the demands of the fluorosilicone chemical industry either. This
resulted in insufficient supply in the market, which in turn led
to a significant increase in the market price of the industry. In
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fact, the expansion of new production capacities of relevant
enterprises was affected by the supply-side reform, which made
the supply unable to catch up with the demands of the market
in time. On the other hand, demand has been increasing thanks
to the rebound of global economies. As such, product price was
further elevated. Despite the changing industry landscape, the
Company was still able to achieve breakthrough performance -
The Company leveraged its advantages on industry chains and
environmental protection infrastructures, produced and sold in its
full capacity during the period under review, and also benefited
from the significant increase in product prices.

Capitalized market opportunities and
leveraged advantages of industry chain

In 2017, the fluorosilicone industry was significantly affected
by the environmental protection policy, leading to a supply
shortage of raw materials and restriction in production. Under
such backdrop, the competitive advantages in industry chain of
the Group were fully leveraged. On the supply side, the industry
chain of the Group has extended to the production of raw
materials, guaranteeing the supply of raw materials under the
then circumstances. On the production side, the industry chain
of the Group has extended to by-products and waste treatment,
easing the pressure from environmental protection issues. In terms
of market, the comprehensive fluorosilicone industry chain of the
Group allowed it to capture the profit of the whole fluorosilicone
chemical industry. Therefore, during the period under review,
the Group has fully demonstrated its strength of industry chain.
By capitalizing the changes of market, the Group captured profit
at every production link of the fluorosilicone chemical industry,
from raw materials to downstream high-end materials, under the
background of supply shortages and soaring product prices. It is
one of the main reasons attributable to the significant growth of
the Group during the year under review.
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Chairman’s Statement

Scientific and technological innovations
secured a leading position in the industry

During the period under review, the Group completed a total of
5 projects in respect of the research and development of new
products, improvement of technology and enhancement of
process. These new products, including high-viscosity DS202C,
are all high-end fluorosilicone chemical products which are used
to substitute similar high-end foreign products. These products
rival their foreign counterparts/actually can break the foreign
monopoly and are highly embraced by the market. In addition, the
Group also accomplished 25 projects of energy conservation and
environmental protection and automation enhancement. During
the period under review, the Group was granted approval of 22
patents and submitted a total of 10 new patents applications.
Thanks to the research and development achievements above,
the Group further marched towards the high-end fluorosilicone
chemical sector and narrowed the gap with the international giant
companies in the fluorosilicone industry.

Guaranteeing safe and environment-
friendly production

During the period under review, the Group's safe and
environmental protection facilities operated stably; meanwhile, the
advanced projects under the “DuPont Safety Management” model
and various environmental protection work were promoted solidly,
providing guarantees for the normal production and operation
of the Group. Benefitting from its long-term perseverance in
high-standard safe and environmental protection measures
for production, sound supporting facilities and relevant staff
with high professional qualities, the Group managed to record
great performance when facing the pressure by environmental
protection in 2017.
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Upgraded economic development of the park

During the period under review, Dongyue Fluoro Silicone
Material Industry Park in Shandong where the Group locates was
officially upgraded to Zibo Dongyue Economic Development
Zone. The Group has become a key driver for the local economic
development.

Membrane material business becomes a
separate business division

During the period under review, riding on its global leading
position in the membrane technology, the Group established
Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd,
in order to integrate resources to embrace the era of hydrogen
energy. This represents that the membrane materials of Dongyue
enters into a phase of large-scale commercial production.

Dongyue celebrated its thirtieth
anniversary

During the period under review, the Group successfully held the
Development Conference of the Fluorosilicone Industry in China
and celebrated the Thirtieth Anniversary of Dongyue in Zibo city,
Shandong Province. This has greatly enhanced Dongyue’s industry
leadership and its corporate citizenship and allowed the public
to learn about Dongyue. Our partners are now more confident in
Dongyue and looking forward to the long-term cooperation with
Dongyue.

Upgraded intelligent and informational
system

2017 marked the year of the Group achieving the greatest and the
best progress in the establishment of intelligent and informational
system. During the year, the Group has implemented the
informatization reform by adopting the information-based
production planning, establishing the intelligent informatization
framework of the Group, upgrading 17 DCS systems and updating
more than 4,200 sets of intelligent facilities. In addition, in
celebrating the 30th anniversary of Dongyue, the Group has
established its intelligent management center, becoming the hub
system for the Group’s intelligent and informational reform:
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Chairman’s Statement

Optimized job design and improved
employee benefits

During the period under review, the Group further optimized its
job design with advanced standardized operation and systems.
Meanwhile, the Group put more focus on employees benefits
than before. The salaries of employees were increased year on
year; and the Group fulfilled its commitment to link the welfare of
employees with the performance of the Group.

The Group did achieve a good result in 2017. However, we aim for

continuous great performance. The Group has made the following

strategic deployment for 2018:

1.

Speed up the approval of new projects

The insufficient supply across the industry in 2017 has in fact
created the best opportunity for the Group to take up more
market shares. Currently, the Group produces at its full capacity
and plans to expand the production of certain products. In 2018,
the Group will accelerate the approval of planned projects,
complete the construction of these projects and put them into
operation as soon as possible.

Keep up with the market trend

In 2017, the fluorosilicone market experienced a material
undersupply, which represented a rare opportunity for leading
enterprises in the industry. It is expected the market will remain
prosperous in 2018, bringing more opportunities to the Group. The
Group will keep up with the market trend to capture the unique
opportunities in the market, and put more efforts in production to
take up market shares and achieve better performance.
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STRENGTHENED TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION EFFORTS

The Group has taken technological innovation as its most
important development strategy. In 2018, by constantly
implementing such development strategy, the Group will ensure
the stable increment in research and development investment
and ensure the process level and the research and development
platform are at the leading position among the peers. In addition
to increasing investment in research and development, the
Group will also attach more attention to develop its scientific
talents by attracting them with favorable conditions and
providing cultivation through outstanding platform, to establish
a professional scientific team and lay a solid foundation for the
Group to maintain its leading position in the industry in respect of
product, process, technology, environment and safety.

Stick to the implementation of “business +
investment” strategy

Since the implementation of the “business + investment” strategy
last year, the Group has initially carried out some strategic
deployment. For example, Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen
Energy Materials Co., Ltd is established to provide operational
guarantees for the development of membrane materials. In
2018, the Group will continue to implement the “business
+ investment” strategy to establish an improved investment
platform and investment strategy. With investments and business
supplementary to each other, the Group is poised to achieve
excellent results in future.
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Chairman’s Statement

Ensure strict environmental friendly
production indicators

In 2017, the strict management of environment-friendly
production of the Group has presented the Group with huge
advantages in environment-friendly production in the current
situation in China. In 2018, the Group will continue to operate
under strict compliance of environmental indicators, follow
the trend of macro environment in China and respond to the
government'’s advocate of “lucid waters and lush mountains are
(BRK T LR 4L 4R 10)”, thus enhancing its

social responsibility in environmental protection.

invaluable assets

Deepen “Benchmarking Formosa Plastics”
and “Benchmarking DuPont” management

In the last three years, the Group has implemented the policies
of “Benchmarking Formosa Plastics” and “Benchmarking
DuPont” successively to strengthen information and intelligent
management and enhance the management of safe and
environment-friendly production. These led to significant
improvement of the management effectiveness. In 2018, the
Group will further implement these two policies, and ensure
the overall excellent production and operation with advanced
management.

2018 marks the beginning of the application of the guiding principles

from the 19th National Congress of the Communist Party of China, and

is also the first year for Dongyue to implement its development plan.

We will unite as one, work hard and stick to innovation to embrace

the new era, and make persistent efforts to promote the further

development of the Company and shoulder new responsibilities with

our original intentions to start a new and grand journey. Meanwhile,

we will also bring satisfactory returns to the shareholders and better

performance to investors.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately RMB10,137,137,000, representing an increase of
27.19% over RI\/\B7,969,773,000 in the previous year. The gross profit
margin increase to 30.23% (2016: 20.59%) and the operating results
margin was 22.21% (2016: 13.14%). During the year under review, the
Group recorded profit before tax of approximately RMB2,141,773,000
(2016: profit before tax of RMB862,114,000), and net profit of
approximately RMB1,681,799,000 (2016: net profit of RMB615,466,000),
while consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s owners was
approximately RMB1,601,397,000 (2016: profit of RMB588,154,000). Basic
earnings per share was RMBO0.76 (2016: basic earning of RMB0.28).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.30
(2016: HKS0.10) per share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 4 June 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating
segments, of the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31
December 2017 and the year ended 31 December 2016:

HZ2017F12A310ILEE BE2016F1283101LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 For the year ended 31 December 2016
S £ LERAE Yz RE OKERENE
Operating Operating
Reportable and Results Results
ERREED Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
ARETRE AR¥ETxR ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SO T Polymers 2,927,843 605,053 20.67% 2,187,639 245,119 11.20%
Ak Organic Silicone 2,428,256 433,836 17.87% 1684716 81,204 482%
LT Refrigerants 2,502,275 588,442 23.52% 1,828,048 193,196 1057%
“&Fk - B&EZ  Dichloromethane, Polyvinyl
B ([PVCl)RJ&E®  Chloride ('PVC") and
Liquid Alkali 1,604,099 354,554 22.10% 1211244 145,147 11.98%
R ES Property development 285,510 32,648 11.43% 871,162 308,204 35.38%
Hith Others 389,154 237,215 60.96% 186,964 74,646 39.93%
e Consolidated 10,137,137 2,251,748 22.21% 7,969,773 1,047,516 13.14%
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Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results

During the period under review, global economies maintained good
momentum, which contributed to the demand of fluorosilicone
chemical industry to a certain extent. In the meantime, the increasing
pressure in respect of domestic environmental protection led to a short
supply in fluorosilicone chemical industry. Pushed by abundant demand
and shortage of supply, product prices accelerated substantially and
the industry saw favorable growth. As one of the leading enterprises,
Dongyue capitalised on the market opportunities and gained
considerable advancement during the period under review.

Regarding to the operation of the Group, most of its segments
recorded different level of development. In particular, the Group's
organic silicone and refrigerant segments achieved a greater portion of
growth. The performance of organic silicone segment was outstanding
and has become a key contributor to the Group's profit growth.
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The impressive results of the Group in 2017 demonstrated its
strength in utilizing industry park and industry chain. Currently, the
comprehensive environmental facilities in the industry park are able
to proceed the centralised collection and treatment of waste water,
waste slag and exhaust, and the re-use of resources within the park.
Thus, Dongyue would be able to maintain stable production under the
intensified regulation due to the increasing pressure of environmental
protection. Facing the supply shortage of raw materials in the market,
the comprehensive industry chain of Dongyue enables itself to run
in full operation for all of its products. By leveraging its advantages,
Dongyue is able to consolidate its leading position in the industry and
make breakthroughs in performance in the midst of suffering pressures
from domestic market.

Fluoropolymer

During the period under review, the fluorine-containing polymers
segment’s revenue was RMB2,927,843,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of 33.84% (2016: RMB2,187,639,000), accounting for 28.88%
(2016: 27.45%) of the Group's total revenue. The results of the segment
recorded a profit of RMB605,053,000, representing an increase of
146.84% as compared with RMB245,119,000 in the same period of the
previous year.

During the year, the fluorine-containing polymers segment attained
significant progress because of the surge of upstream raw materials
prices. Among which, the prices of raw materials R22 has increased by
more than 50% as compared with that of 2016. In addition, with the
supply shortage in raw materials market and with the environmental
protection purpose, there is also a supply shortage in the fluorine-
containing polymers market. During the year, the domestic demand of
the industry has increased according to the development of domestic
economy, which intensified the level of supply shortage and drove up
the prices. Riding on its strength in the industry chain, the Group was
able to self-supply part of the raw materials and has not experienced
any shortage of raw materials, guaranteeing the whole-year full

operation of this segment in the park.

Among such segment, PTFE, a product with the largest capacity, is
the largest contributor of profit growth of the segment, up 50.41% of
revenue as compared with that of the previous year. For FEP, VDF and
other products, usually contributing lesser revenue, have also achieved
a relatively greater progress during the period under review.
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The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production of
polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with high
level of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation, aging
and chemical resistant that is used as a coating material and can also
be further processed into high-end fine chemicals which can be widely
applied in the chemicals, construction, electrical and electronics and
automotive industries) and HFP (an important organic fluorochemical
monomer, which can be used to produce various fine chemicals).
Furthermore, the refrigerants segment of the Group supplied R22
and R142b as the raw materials for the production of a variety of
downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals including FEP (modified
materials of PTFE, produced with HFP added in TFE, mainly used in
the lining for wire insulation layer, thin-walled tube, heat shrinkable
tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), FKM (Fluorine Rubber, a specialized
fluorinated material, which is mainly used in the fields of aerospace,
automotives, machinery and petro-chemistry because of its superior
mechanical property, and excellent oil, chemical and heat resistance),
PVDF (fluorocarbon made with R142b to produce VDF, mainly used as
a fluorine coating resin, fluorinated powder coating resin and lithium
battery electrode binding material) and VDF, in which Huaxia Shenzhou
has been engaging. Other fluorinated fine chemicals, including PPVE,
PSVE, HFPO, formed another major production category of Huaxia
Shenzhou.

Refrigerants

During the year, the revenue from refrigerant segment was
RMB2,502,275,000, representing an increase of 36.88% as compared
with RMB1,828,048 in the previous year, accounting for 24.68% (2016:
22.94%) of the Group's total revenue; the results of the segment
recorded a profit of RMB588,442,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of 204.58% (2016: profit of RMB193,196,000).
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During the year, there was a considerable increase in the product price
of this segment, mainly due to the impact from the environmental
policies. The increased stress arising from environmental protection
led to supply shortage of the upstream raw materials in the industry.
Moreover, processing of by-products during the process of production
of refrigerant has become a challenge of the industry which caused
hindrance on production. Nonetheless, capitalizing on its advantages
of industrial chain, the Group did not experience much supply shortage
of raw materials, and its integrated waste processing facilities in the
park are able to treat by-products well. Therefore, the production of
refrigerant segment of the Group was not restricted during the vyear,
while benefited from the substantial increase of product price in the
industry, the Group recorded higher revenue and profit.

In 2017, revenue from R22 of the refrigerant segment recorded an
increase of 30.52%. This is because R22 currently remains to be one
of the main refrigerants for air-conditioners, refrigerators and other
refrigeration equipment. R32 and R410a, being two substitute products
of R22, recorded increases of 62.06% and 93.61%, respectively. As R22 is
subject to a quota system, R32 and R410a became the most important
substitutes, and have been heavily used in the newest air-conditioners,
refrigerators and other refrigeration equipment, which is one of the
reasons for the sharp increase in the performance of the two products.
The Group also has a plan to expand the production capacity of R32.

R22 is the Group's backbone refrigerants product. The Group has
the largest production capacity of R22 in the world. Moreover, R22
is the most widely used refrigerant in the PRC and is generally used
in household appliances. Apart from that, it has been one of the key
raw materials for the production of the Fluoropolymer (i.e. PTFE, HFP
and other downstream fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32
are the key refrigerant mixture for other types of green refrigerants
(such as R410a) to replace R22. Currently, R410a has been the principal
substitute refrigerant which has been widely applied in inverter air
conditioners and other green home appliances. R134a is broadly used
in the refrigeration and air-conditioning systems in automobile air
conditioners, while R152a is another key refrigerant product of the
Group which can also be used as blowing agents, aerosols and cleaning
agents. Apart from the fact that R142b can be used as refrigerant,
temperature controller medium, or intermediates of aviation propellant,
it can also be one of the main raw materials for the production of VDF.
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Pursuant to the Montreal Protocol, R22 would be progressively phased
out as a refrigerant by the end of 2030 and would be replaced by
other green refrigerants. The Chinese government has stopped
granting approval to the building up of new capacity for R22. Starting
from 2013, the Chinese government has been enforcing a quota
system for the sales of R22 as a refrigerant for all of the domestic R22
producers. On the other hand, R22 can be used as raw material for the
production of the Fluoropolymer. Therefore, although the Group has
a huge production capacity of R22, the Group used it to manufacture
refrigerants and the saved production capacity of R22 was utilized to
produce Fluoropolymer in order to cope with the increasing market
demand for Fluoropolymer.

Organic Silicone

During the year, the organic silicone segment’s revenue grew by
44.13% to RMB2,428,256,000 from RMB1,684,716,000 in the previous
year, accounting for 23.95% (2016: 21.14%) of the Group's total revenue.
The segment recorded revenue of RMB433,836,000, representing an
increase of 434.25% as compared with RMB81,204,000 in the previous
year.

The market conditions of organic silicone improved significantly
during the year, as demonstrated by a substantial rise in product prices
and steady increase in market demand. The rise in market price of
organic silicone was primarily attributable to higher requirements on
environmental protection, which resulted in insufficient operation in the
industry and significant supply shortage. Under this circumstance, the
Group still managed to take its advantages of excellent development of
industrial parks and industry chain to fully achieve both production and
sales targets. Capturing opportunities brought by changes in market
conditions, the Group successfully secured substantial growth in results
of operation.

The Group adjusted the sales of organic silicone segment during the
year to keep abreast with the market conditions. Due to higher price
level of organic silicone and supply shortage during the year, the Group
reduced the sales of DMC and increased the production and sales
of organic silicone accordingly. As a result, silicone rubber products
of organic silicone segment saw a significant increase in income for
the year. Although the price of DMC recorded a relatively substantial
increase, the income remained constant on a year-on-year basis.
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This segment mainly includes the production and sales of DMC
(upstream organic silicone intermediates that are used as raw materials
to produce deep proceeded mid-stream and downstream silicone
products, such as silicone oils, silicone rubber and silicone resins),
107 Silicone Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively
referred to as “Silicone Rubbers”, deep proceeded silicone rubber
products, where Raw Vulcanizate is a key raw material for producing
Gross Rubber), and other by-products and other high-end downstream
products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Oils. Named as “Industrial
MSG", organic silicone is widely applied in military, aviation, automotive,
electronic, construction and other industries, mainly in the form of
additives, treatment chemicals stabilizers, lubricants and sealants and
are a key ingredient in industrial processes. The Group initially produces
silicone monomers with silicone powder and internally generated
chloromethane and further processes them to become silicone
intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain portion of which the Group
produces Silicone Rubbers and other organic silicone products. The
Group can also be able to produce and generate other by-products and
high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Oils
through its production processes.

Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s revenue increased by
32.43% to RMB1,604,099,000 from RMB1,211,244,000 in the previous
year, accounting for 15.82% (2016: 15.20%) of the Group's total revenue.
The results of the segment recorded a profit of RMB354,554,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of 144.27% (2016: a profit of
RMB145,147,000).

The growth of the segment’s results was mainly attributable to the
gradual recovery of the domestic economy during the year under
review, which resulted in the increasing demands in bulk chemical
products and therefore accelerated the increase in prices. During the
year, a year-on-year growth of 8.02% was recorded in the revenue of
PVC, a year-on-year growth of 22.64% was recorded in the revenue of
dichloromethane and a year-on-year growth of 65.97% was recorded in
the revenue of liquid alkali.
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This segment includes two major auxiliary products (dichloromethane
and liquid alkali) of Refrigerants Segment of the Group and the
production and sales revenue of PVC products. Liquid alkali is a basic
chemical product for the production of the methane chloride (essential
chemical for the production of refrigerants and organic silicone
products), and used in the textile, power and materials industries.
Methane chloride includes dichloromethane, which is mainly used
to produce antibiotics and as a foaming mode for polyurethane. The
Group engaged in the production of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic
polymer applied in the construction industry to replace traditional
building materials). The production of refrigerants products generates
a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is one of the basic raw materials
for PVC production. Therefore, the Group’s PVC production can ensure
production synergies and increase economic value generated from a
self-sufficient business chain.

Property Development

During the year, the portion completed under the property
development is the Dongyue International Project, which comprises,
among others, residential portion of two parcels of land which are
adjacent to each other. They are located at the west of Liuquan North
Road, the north of Huantai Avenue and the south of Gongyuan Road,
Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province, the PRC with a total site
area of 189,381 square metres. The total gross floor area (GFA) of the
residential portion is 157,187 square metres, upon which the Group
planned to construct 23 residential blocks with a total planned GFA of
approximately 296,000 square metres.

The sale of the project has come to an end in 2017, with only a small
amount of unsold properties left. Thereafter, the remaining properties
were all sold out by the end of 2017. As such, both the revenue
and results of the project experienced a significant increase in 2017.
The segment recorded revenue of RMB285,510,000 for the year,
representing a decrease of 67.23% as compared with RMB871,162,000
in the previous year, accounting for 2.82% (2016: 10.93%) of the Group's
total revenue. During the year, the results of the segment recorded a
profit of RMB32,648,000 (2016: a profit of RMB308,204,000), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 89.41%.

Currently, the segment acquired 2 new projects (refer to the
announcement published by the Group on 28 June 2017). However,
there is no revenue achieved on the ground that the projects are still
under construction.
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Others

This segment included the revenue from the production and sale of
the Group's other by-products of the various operating segments, such
as Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid, Bromine and etc., and
the revenue from the newly commenced bulk commodities trading
activities during the year.

During the year under review, the segment recorded a revenue of
RMB389,154,000, representing an increase of 108.14% as compared
with RMB186,964,000 in the previous year. The results of the
segment recorded a profit of RMB237,215,000 (2016: RMB74,646,000),
representing a year-on-year growth of 217.79%. During the year under
review, the growth of the segment’s results was attributable to the
improvement in the domestic economic conditions. In addition, the
newly commenced bulk commodities trading activities also contributed
to the growth of the segment’s results, accounting for over 25% of the
same.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
increased by 10.92% to RMB313,959,000 from RMB283,058,000 of the
previous year, which is attributable to an increase in transportations
cost during sales process.

Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses increased
significantly by 69.33% to RMB656,333,000 from RMB387,610,000 of the
previous year. The reasons for the substantial increase include: (i) an
increase in employees’ salaries and (i) an increase in loss from disposal
of assets.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs decreased by 32.09%
to RMB112,890,000 from RMB166,229,000 of the previous year. This was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the amount of the borrowings
of the Group during the year under review, considering the sufficient
cashflow maintained by the Group.
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Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's aggregate
capital expenditure was approximately RMB834,226,000 (2016:
RMB457,737,000). The Group’s capital expenditure is mainly for the
acquisition of fixed assets including the equipment and facilities for the
improvement of technology and upgrading the intelligence system of
the Group and operation expansion.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December
2017, the Group's total equity amounted to RMB7,312,411,000,
representing an increase of 28.60% as compared with that as at
31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank
balances and cash totaled RMB1,471,116,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB2,082,361,000). The decrease in the Group's bank balances and cash
is mainly attributable to the active reduction of the size of bank loans
by the Company through repaying bank loans in advance owing to
sufficient cash, and the significant increase in bills receivable. During
the year under review, the Group generated a total of RMB1,122,187,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2016: RMB1,546,155,000) cash inflow
from its operating activities. The current ratio” of the Group as at
31 December 2017 was 1.61 (31 December 2016: 1.16). The year-on-
year decrease in net operating cash flows is mainly attributable to
the increase in property development expenditures as a result of the
acquisition of two real estate companies by the property development
segment.

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available bank
balances and cash, the unutilized banking credit facilities and support
from its banks as well as its sufficient operational cash flows, the
management is confident that the Group will have adequate resources
to settle any debts and to finance its daily operational and capital
expenditures.

Capital Structure

During the year under review, the Company did not repurchase or
cancel any of the Company’s listed securities. The number of issued
shares of the Company was 2,111,689,455 as at 31 December 2017.
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As at 31 December 2017, the borrowings of the Group totaled
RMB1,820,821,000 (31 December 2016: RMB2,729,700,000). The gearing
ratio® of the Group was 4.56% (31 December 2016: 10.22%). The
significant lower gearing ratio is mainly attributable to (i) an increase in
profit during the year and (ii) a decrease in outstanding loan balance in
2017.

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2017, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB744,800,000
which are repayable in full after one year but not exceeding five
years. The current portion of borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB1,076,021,000. The Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest
rates and floating rates. The weighted average effective interest rates
on floating rate borrowings and fixed rate borrowings for the year
ended 31 December 2017 were 5.36% (2016: 6.35%) and 5.01% (2016:
5.78%) per annum, respectively. As at 31 December 2017, 19.61% (31
December 2016: 18.99%) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed interest

rates.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in RMB only.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets + Current Liabilities
(2)  Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Capital
Net Debt = Total Borrowing — Bank Balances and Cash

Total Capital = Net Debt + Total Equity

Group Structure

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB167,586,000 (31 December 2016: RMB8,669,000), and
bank deposits of RMB32,860,000 (31 December 2016: RMB106,703,000),
which were pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings and the bills
payable of the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group's functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States
dollars) were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from
overseas customers and when settling purchases of machinery and
equipment from the overseas suppliers.

In order to reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies, the Group
normally converts the foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while
taking into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in the near
future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group had 5,862 employees in total as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: 5,660). The Group implemented its remuneration
policy and bonus based on the performance of the Group and its
employees. The Group provided benefits such as social insurance and
pensions to ensure remuneration competitiveness.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for
the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and has
the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members

of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 58, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over 30
years of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman of
Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue Organic Silicone,
and a director of Dongyue F&S, Dongying Dongyue Salt and Dongyue
Precision Chemicals, all of which are the Company’s subsidiaries. In
addition, Mr. Zhang is the director and the chairman of the Strategy
Committee of China Minsheng Investment Company Limited (FFE R
HEIRERMDABMRAT) . Mr. Zhang is a senior officer of political affairs
with a postgraduate degree in economics. He had served the People’s
Liberation Army Navy from 1978 to 1982. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
Vice Chairman of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (2]
T &8 ), Deputy Director of China Fluorine and Silicon Material Industry
Association (FEIE M B THEH € ) and a standing committee
member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Shandong Province (ILIERAE) . He has obtained the honorary titles
of National Outstanding Builder of Socialism in the Non-Public Economy
(Fourth Session), Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry (First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in
the International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and
Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine
“Capital CEO" ("EARA£").

Mr. FU Kwan, aged 61, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006. He is formerly a director of Dongyue
Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue Organic Silicone and
Dongyue F&S. Mr. Fu is the chairman of the board of directors and
the president of Macro-Link Holding Limited (“Macrolink Holding”)
and is a director of Macro-Link International Investment Co. Ltd.
("“Macrolink International”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Fu is a senior economist with a postgraduate degree in business
administration. Mr. Fu has over 28 years of experience in corporate
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management and business strategy planning. Mr. Fu was the deputy
director of the Economic Committee of Liling City, Hunan Province,
head of the Foreign Trade Bureau of Liling City, Hunan Province
and the vice chairman of the 10th China Federation of Industry &
Commerce, and is a committee member of the Chinese People Political
& Consultative Conference, the honorary chairman of Chamber of
Commerce of Beijing and Hunan Enterprises (It FUMBE D EEE ),
vice chairman of China Civil Chamber of Commerce (F Bl R &7
@) and director of political affairs committee of China Federation of
Industry and Commerce (2B TEB2SBEBKZEE) . Mr. Fu has
also been awarded the “Top 10 Outstanding Entrepreneurs in China
Certificate” in 2003 by the China Professional Managers Association.
In addition, Mr. Fu is the director of Macrolink Culturaltainment
Development Co., Ltd. (¥TEB L IREZFER M BRAF]), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu owns a direct
4.25% and an indirect 90% interest in Macrolink Holding, which wholly
owns Macrolink International. Macrolink International is a substantial
shareholder of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKSE").

Mr. LIU Chuangi, aged 68, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and
its predecessors since October 1986. Mr. Liu has over 30 years of
experience in the chemical industry and is a director of Dongyue
Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic Silicone,
Dongying Dongyue Salt, Huaxia Shenzhou and Dongyue Precision
Chemicals and was a director of Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan, all of which are
the Company's subsidiaries. He is also formerly the general manager of
Dongyue Chemicals and currently the president of the Group. He is a
senior officer of political affairs, and was awarded “Medal for Enhancing
the Labour Force of Zibo City” in 2002 by the Zibo City Labour Union.

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 43, was appointed as the executive director,
vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in May 2017.
Mr. Zhang was the financial controller of the Group from 2006 to
2007. He has served as the financial controller and general manager of
MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. CETEERF i3 F IR 2 7)) from February 2008
to February 2016. MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of Macro-
Link Holding Limited (E£B12 %A BR /A B]), which is also the holding
company of Macro-Link Industrial Investment Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated in the Hunan
University in 2003. He is also a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr.
Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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Mr. ZHANG Bishu, aged 48, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in May 2017. Mr. Zhang is currently the senior vice
president, chief accountant and the president of the chemical and
tyre business department of the Macro-Link Group. In his earlier years,
Mr. Zhang served as the chief of the finance section of Hunan Yiyang
Pharmaceutical Company (#m & : % & 54/) and the section chief
and deputy secretary of the Hunan Yiyang Tax Bureau. He joined the
Macro-Link Group in October 2004. He has since served as the deputy
financial officer of the Macro-Link Group, the chairman of Macro-Link
Weihung Food Company Ltd. (FrEERER R mMA R AT, the director
and the general manager of Jiayuan Cobalt Holdings (& 4 245 A
fRZ2 7)) and the financial officer and the chief officer of the investment
department of the MacroLink Group. Mr. Zhang obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from the Inner Mongolian University
in 2005. He is also a certified accountant and registered tax agent in the
PRC.

Mr. ZHANG lJian, aged 45, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the
investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor
degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the senior vice
president of the Marco-Link Group and the president of its ceramic and
equipment business department, as well as an executive director of
New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (a company listed on the HKSE),
the vice-chairman of Keda Clean Energy Co. Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange), and an executive director of Macrolink
Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd. TR S IR BEEE R (D E
[R 2 R)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen VMH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
accountant and has been the managing partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1987. Mr. Ting is a
member of the 9th, 10th and 11th Chinese People Political Consultative
Conference, Fujian Province. Mr. Ting is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an
independent non-executive director of six companies listed on the HKSE,
namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited, Tongda Group
Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and China
SCE Property Holdings Limited. Save for the aforesaid, Mr. Ting does not
have any other directorships in listed companies during the past 3 years.
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Mr. YUE Rundong, aged 75, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007 and has
been with the Group since then. Mr. Yue has more than 40 years of
experience in the chemical industry. He was the technician, project
leader and deputy director of research department of Shen Yang
Chemical Research Institute, the dean of Chen Guang Chemical
Research Institute and the dean of Chengdu Silicone Research Centre.,
Mr. Yue has taken the post of the dean of Bluestar Institute of Chemical
Technology, the standing chairman and professorate senior engineer of
China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry. Mr.
Yue is currently the honorary standing chairman of China Association of
Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry.

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has over
30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicone industries.
Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor degree in chemical engineering from East
China Institute of Technology in 1982. Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar
Chengrand Research Institute of Chemical Industry as chief engineer
and director of National Organic Silicone Engineering and Technological
Research Centre and National Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision
and Inspection Centre, and the chief secretary of the Organic Silicone
Professional Committee of China Association of Fluorine and Silicone
Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang is currently vice chairman of China
Association of Fluorine and Silicone Industry, director of the Expert
Committee and the Professional Committee of Silicone, and editor
of Silicone Material. In addition, Mr Yang is currently an independent
director of Hubei Xingfa Chemicals Group Co., Ltd (1t @ 3{L T &
B 5 BBRAF]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
and an independent director of Ningbo Runbe High-Tech Materials Co.,
Lid ERERSIMERHRRM BRAF), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Senior management

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 54, has worked for the Group since
September 1996 and is responsible for technology R&D and corporate
management matters. During the period, he chaired the overall
preparation works for incorporation of fluorosilicone companies as well
as organic silicone companies. He then acted as the general manager
of fluorosilicone companies as well as organic silicone companies
of Dongyue. He has over 30 years’ experience for manufacture and
management in the chemical industry. He is currently the president of
the Group, the general manager of Dongyue Chemicals, the director
of the subsidiaries of Dongyue Group. Mr. Wang also received various
awards such as the nationwide outstanding chemical engineerer (&
Bt TEFRHEL T E#E) from Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Federation (/A A AL T T ¥ 1# &), Outstanding Contribution
Entrepreneurs (£ i & BR & % %K) and Shandong Outstanding
Entrepreneurs (ILEREBFHF B EEXK). Mr. Wang holds a master degree in
business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. LI Yuwen, aged 50, has worked for the Group since March 2002
until now. He currently serves as the deputy president, the deputy
secretary to the communist party committee and secretary to the
disciplinary committee of the Group. He obtained the title of senior
political scientist of professor level in 2009 and graduated from Beijing
Foreign Languages Institute with a bachelor’s degree in January 2018.

Com pany secretary

Mr. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 36, is a full time company secretary of
the Company. She joined the Group on 20 March 2015. Ms. Chung is
primarily responsible for company secretarial matters of the Company.
Ms. Chung has 15 years of work experience in accounting, corporate
finance and strategic investment. Prior to joining the Company, Ms.
Chung had worked in the audit and financial advisory divisions of a
leading international accounting firm; merger and acquisition team
of a Hong Kong listed blue-chip company; finance and accounting;
and strategic investment divisions of two listed companies in Hong
Kong respectively. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of business
administration, majoring in professional accountancy from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws from the
University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 112.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 (six months ended 30 June
2016: Nil).

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.3 per share (the “Final Dividend”) (approximately equivalent to
RMBO0.24 per share) (2016: HKS0.10 per share, approximately equivalent
to RMBO0.08 per share), in respect of the year 2017, to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
(the “Register”) on 29 May 2018. The Final Dividend is subject to the
approval of the members of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the "AGM") to be held on 24 May 2018.

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 18 May 2018 to 24 May 2018, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all
share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
17 May 2018.
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The Register will be closed from 30 May to 1 June 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend, all share
transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
29 May 2018.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 114.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMB3,953,266,000, of which HK$633,506,837 (approximately equivalent
to RMB513,140,538) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Share options
Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved by a written resolution
of all shareholders of the Company on 16 November 2007 (the
“Scheme”), the Company may grant to, among others, the Directors
of the Company and employees of the Group, for the recognition of
their contribution of the Group, options to subscribe for the Shares.
According to the Scheme, the board of Directors (the “Board”) may,
at its discretion, invite any eligible participants to take up options to
subscribe for Shares of the Company, which when aggregated with any
other share option scheme, shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the number
of Shares in issue as at the date on which dealings in the Shares first
commence on the HKSE unless further shareholders’ approval had been
obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in the Scheme. The total
number of Shares in issue and to be issued upon exercise of all option
under the Scheme and any other schemes (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The offer for the grant of options (the "Offer”) must be taken up
within 28 days from the date of Offer, with a payment of HK$1.00 as
consideration. The exercise price of the share option will be determined
at the highest of (i) the average closing prices of Shares as stated in
the HKSE's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the Offer; (i) the closing price of Shares as stated
in the HKSE's daily quotations sheet on the date of the Offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Shares. The total number of Shares which may
fall to be issued under the Scheme and any other scheme must not, in
aggregate, exceed 208,000,000 which represents 10% of the total issued
share capital as at the listing date unless further shareholders’ approval
is obtained. The share options are exercisable at any time during a
period of not more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Scheme and any conditions of grant as
may be stipulated by the Board. Unless terminated by the Company by
resolution in general meeting, the Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from 16 November 2007.
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All share options granted under the Scheme has expired on 2 June
2016, and the Scheme has also expired on 15 November 2017. During
the financial year ended 31 December 2017, no share options were
granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Scheme. As at 31
December 2017, there was no outstanding share options under the
Scheme.

The related accounting policy for the fair value of the share options are
set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Feng Jianjun (resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yue Rundong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Liu Chuangji,
Mr. Zhang Jian and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option” in this
report, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or minor
children to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 26.
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Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of
the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 42 to 61.

Environmental, Social and Governance practice

Details of the environmental, social and governance practice of the
Company are set out on pages 62 to 101.
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BEn

Name of Director

EEMtE

Nature of interest

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

RO KAABRDEE
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

HERITREAB DL
% of issued
share capital

RERTE
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BELE

Mr. Fu Kwan

BlEaEELE
Mr. Liu Chuangi

RIERLE
Mr. Zhang Jian

REESEE
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

RMEFTE
Mr. Zhang Bishu

RO
Corporate interest”
Bt

Beneficial interest

L
Corporate interest®

L
Corporate interest®
EmiEm
Beneficial interest

T
B mEm

Beneficial interest

B

Beneficial interest

SN L dEE L
EmiEem

Beneficial interest

178,277,273 (L) 8.44 (L)
7,147,636 (L) 0.34 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
75,634,000 (L) 3.58 (L)
6,353,454 (L) 0.30 (L)
397,091 (L) 0.02 (L)
4,000,000 (L) 0.19 (L)
1,130,000 (L) 0.05 (L)
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Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2)  These Shares are directly held by Macro-Link International Investment Co.
Ltd. ("Macrolink International”) which in turn is wholly-owned by Macro-
Link Industrial Investment Limited (“Macrolink Industrial”). Macrolink
Holding, a company owned by Cheung Shek Investment Limited (“Cheung
Shek”) as to 90% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 4.25%, respectively, wholly
owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan and Mrs. Xiao
Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and 33.33%, respectively.

(3)  These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is
wholly owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in
the 75,634,000 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

(4) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the then Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the HKSE.
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s

interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO:

I 7 =K AR B AR 40 BH B

Number of shares

HERTRETES L
% of issued

or underlying Shares share capital

B B PR
Macrolink International

EBE S
Macrolink Industrial

BB
Macrolink Holding

A
Cheung Shek

HXERt
Mrs. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited
Dongyue Team Limited

ERREE
Mr. Cui Tongzheng

Dongyue Initiator Limited
Dongyue Initiator Limited

ER L dEAESL (g
Bt

Beneficial interest!”

320
Corporate interest”

S
Corporate interest”

STl
Corporate interest!”

S
Corporate interest!”

EmEm?
Beneficial interest®?

EER
Corporate interest
Bt

Beneficial interest

B
Beneficial interest®

616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
178,277,273 (L) 844 (L)
156,852,363 (L) 743 (L)

5,162,180 (L) 0.24 (L)
156,852,363 (L) 743 (L)
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These Shares are directly held by Macrolink International which in turn
is wholly-owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a company
owned by Cheung Shek as to 90% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 4.25%,
respectively, wholly owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan
and Mrs. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and
33.33%, respectively.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
156,852,363 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

L: Long Position
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(c) Interests in other members of the Group as at 31
December 2017

EEBERE AR
BRITRE
TEMEAFDE
% of issued share
capital/registered
capital of

such subsidiary

IR REREMEBR AR
(IRE#E]D

Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. (‘Dongyue F&S")

NELTREREF(CTHERAA
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

TREEREERR AR
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd.

REREEEBRAR]
(TREREEEX])

Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd.
("‘Dongying Dongyue Salt”)

REREBACTERRA
Dongying Dongyue Precision
Chemicals Co., Ltd.

WERFRESCTAM AR A F
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine
Chemicals Co., Ltd.

IWRREARKDEMHBRAIA
Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen
Energy Materials Co., Ltd.

IWRAESFRMIRERR AT

Shandong Hi Tech Investment Co., Ltd.

TRiE & IEIRHEBR AR
Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd.

TRIE S IE IR F RN A
Chifeng Peak Copper Co.,, Ltd.

MEBREZERERR AR
([FrEmERXRE])

Macro-Link Asset Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Macrolink Asset Investment”)

HMEBEXRE

Macrolink Asset Investment!

REBERERL(BRAR)

Dongying Hai Run Investment LLP

SR BB SOAME TH R AR
Shandong Lai Wu Wen He Chemicals
Co,, Ltd.

ERRITEAREREABEE
Huoer Guosi Xuri Equity Investment
Partnership

EREIRBR AR
Marco-link Holdings Limited
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Corporate

NG
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Corporate

NG
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Limited partnership

NG
Corporate

16.78

16.78

49
49

20
20

40

40

15.79
15.79

49
49

30
30

30
30

37



ETERE

Report of the Directors

PaE

) FEBEXRERARERTHEEN0%E
W MAREREHERARERETREMALTIE
RARMS.21 % « NARIREEGHEE
FL(BRER) R D BIHR 8 T 25%5%15.79%
o Alt  EBEXRAMEEERE
ERMETHRARBBI0%ER

B EXFETREN  RARREEREBITHRA
BATA - 20175128318 BETAEMA L
(WIARRRNEZSEZITTHRAE)RAARK
1P SRR P HE B AR IR B 5 Ik B & B B XVEB
FoRFEID BB MAR B TR H Az
KB NEERSEEREEWAER A EEEER
TRAEEFMEMKERARBREAG LIRER
IR ANE(E10%3k LA _EAELR o

EENGFRMRBTNER

REZE2017F12A31HIEFE - KRB EEME
HEEAEBEKERSEEFESF R AT
ERFO T ERELR o

EEEHN

AEEAW BT I RFEEARE 2L EMNE
REBD EBEENEERITHRAHA

TEHEBAREF

AEEASETIZHERMEPEIGHNEE M
EBEALLLWT

EE
— R AHER 7.86%
— A REER(EHETE) 18.73%
HE
—&REP 3.33%
—hAREF(&H:TE 8.40%

BMEEE  RENBBAIBESMAEELAR
AR AR S EEM AR Lt E BEHEE S E P
hEE L -

38 REEBEARAE —F—tFFH

Note:

(1) Macrolink Asset Investment is a 40% equity holder in Dongying Dongyue
Salt which, in turn, owns 59.21% of Dongying Dongyue Precision
Chemicals Co., Ltd., with the remaining 25% and 15.79% owned by
the Company and Dongying Hai Run Investment LLP respectively.
Consequently, Macrolink Asset Investment indirectly owns more than
10% of Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co., Ltd.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2017, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
had any interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 7.86%
— five largest suppliers combined 18.73%
Sales
— the largest customer 3.33%
— five largest customers combined 8.40%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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Connected transactions

Save as disclosed below, during the year, the Group had not entered
into connected transactions that are subject to be reported under
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE (the “Listing Rules”).

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 not falling under Rule

Han 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:
017FEHNRBEBERS FELR BReE
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2017 Annual Cap Actual
(AE®BBR&ET) (AREBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
B LR RS ERAE T 2 B 28 Framework agreement for the purchase of 44 26
R REREEERE]) industrial salt from Dongying Dongyue
(BFzE1) Salt (the “DDS Agreement”) (Note 1)
TEBIE I EB AR A BIIRME Financial services master agreement for 380 375

TERARTE N B 2 RS 80 B 5 AR 75
Tt ([ BRBHE D
(FzE2)

provision of deposit services and loan
services by marco-link Holding Group
Finance Company Limited (the “FS
Agreement”) (Note 2)

BieEr : FIREREFEEXBRENENERARELEERR

Note 1: The purpose of the DDS Agreement is for the purpose of the Group’s

FE(ABAEENZLE - sRYE D TRAKE
AEMESPHEME) RERTHEERAH A
RABEF—IHITESHELENBEARRR
AlE EREFEMBRNBEATK ARBREAL -
MEREXREMTEBR TR ERAIZTE0%K
0%z °

2016128310 - REAMEREREEETY
BIIREREHEERZ - BH=F  HE2019F12
A318 - BB REREFEERZNFBEIARE
ARIBHBAE2016F12A3BNRE »

TEENBEEEDABENSE TREERRT
B - UNBREAELE =TT REMER - ERF
BERMREE - YARASER—EA ZEEHAN
RITESN - ERFEMEHENNIR 2K
EESLS SANEE HEI =L E IR Ri22 S E
EARRERREREEEBHRB TR -

production of liquid alkali and chlorine (an essential intermediate raw material
for the Group's refrigerants, fluoropolymers and organic silicone production).
Dongying Dongyue Salt is a connected person by virtue of it being an
associate of one of the Company's executive Directors, Mr. Fu Kwan and an
associate of the Company’s substantial shareholder, Macrolink International.
Macrolink Asset Investment is held as to 80% by Macrolink Holding and 20%
by Cheung Shek.

On 31 December 2016, Dongyue F&S entered into the Renewed DDS
Agreement with Dongying Dongyue Salt for three years to 31 December
2019. Details of the Renewed DDS Agreement are set out in the Company'’s
announcement dated 31 December 2016.

The purchase price for the industrial salt payable by the Group shall be paid
by means of bank remittance, bill of exchange or other agreed payment
method(s) with one month credit term and on normal commercial terms
which will be determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties
with reference to the then prevailing market price of industrial salt that is no
less favourable than that offered to independent third parties. There is no
provision in the Renewed DDS Agreement requiring the Group to exclusively
source industrial salt from Dongying Dongyue Salt.
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Note 2: On 18 December 2017, the Company and Marco-link Holding Finance
Company Limited (the "Marco-link Finance”) entered into the Financial
Services Master Agreement, pursuant to which Marco-link Finance has agreed
to provide the Group with deposit services and loan services on normal
commercial terms in its ordinary and usual course of business for a term of
one year from 18 December 2017 to 17 December 2018. Details of the FS
Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 December
2017.

The FS Agreement will provide the Group with a new means to utilize its
surplus cash at a low capital risk and obtain financings at a lower financing
cost, and thereby improve the overall efficiency of the use of its funds. The
FS Agreement does not preclude the Group from obtaining deposit services,
loan services or other financial services from other financial institutions.
Marco-link Finance is a connected person of the Company, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Marco-link Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
approximately 29.20% of the issued share capital of the Company. In addition,
Marco-link Holdings Limited is indirectly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an
executive Director).

For the deposit services, pursuant to the FS Agreement, the rate at which
interest will accrue on any deposit placed and maintained by the Group with
Marco-link Finance under the FS Agreement shall (i) be determined based on
the interest rate prescribed by the People’s Bank of China from time to time
for the same type of deposit; and (i) shall not be lower than the prevailing
interest rates offered by major commercial banks in the PRC for the same type
of deposit.

For the loan services, pursuant to the FS Agreement, (i) the interest rate
for loans to be provided by Marco-link Finance to the Group will not be
higher than the prevailing interest rates offered by major commercial banks
in the PRC for the same type of loan; and (i) the loans and borrowings to
be provided by Marco-link Finance will not be secured by the assets of the
Group.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions.
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Report of the Directors

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 29 March 2018
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while
at the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end,
we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate
governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the
“Code”) during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date
of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer, the details of which have been disclosed in the
relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board's Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of the
business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
report, except that Mr. Cui Tongzheng and Mr. Feng Jianjun resigned
from their offices as the Company's Executive Director with effect from
2 May 2017 and that Mr. Zhang Zhefeng and Mr. Zhang Bishu were
appointed as the Company’s Executive Directors with effect from the
same date., there was no change in the structure of the Board, which
currently comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out as
follows:
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Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Feng Jianjun (resigned on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed on 2 May 2017)

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. Yue Rundong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 22 to 26 of this
annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group's annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, business operations,
financial, capital, remuneration, acquisition and formation of joint
ventures. During the year under review, eight Board meetings and an
annual general meeting (“AGM") were held. Apart from the AGM, no
other general meetings were held by the Company. The attendance of
each Director at the Board meetings and the AGM is set out as follows.
In addition, certain matters relating to entering of the loan framework
agreement and disposal of assets to the joint venture were dealt with
by written resolutions of the directors.

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings
is set out as follows:

HE BT HERE
EEEERARE BFEAE
Number of
Board meetings Attendance
attended/held of the AGM
HITES: EDs:
REBRISE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 8/8 v/
BEEE Mr. Fu Kwan 1/8* X
REFEE Mr. Liu Chuangji 6/8% X
BRI E(R2017F5 H2HEHTE) Mr. Cui Tongzheng (resigned on 2 May 2017) 3/8 X
REFIRFLA(PR2017F5 A2BEZR(E)  Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (appointed on 2 May 2017) 5/8 v
KBRS A (R201795 A2BEHT) Mr. Feng Jianjun (resigned on 2 May 2017) 2/8 X
RNHEFLA(FR2017F5 28 ZE(E)  Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed on 2 May 2017) 3/8 X
REBEAE Mr. Zhang Jian 7/8 v/
BYFHTES: INEDs:
TRESE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 8/8 v
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 7/8 v/
ERmREE Mr. Yue Rundong 8/8 v/
* HAERBIEAZARTABRSHRFERERELREE * Mr. Fu and Mr. Liu appointed representatives to attend the Board meetings on

S &t
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their behalf during their absence.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has dealt
with matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual
and interim results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate
governance, capital, financial, investment and remuneration. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group to the senior
management under the supervision of the Board. In addition, on 6
December 2017, the Chairman held the discussion with all the INEDs
without the presence of other EDs to exchange views on matters
concerning the business development and internal control of the
Group.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required
by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of regular Board meetings
(or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given
to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and
the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, starting from April 2012, the
Directors have been provided with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover
to protect them from potential risks arising from legal actions against
them while they discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors
are provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. On 26 July 2017, the Company organized for the
Directors an in-house workshop (the "Workshop”) on the Listing Rules.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:

SEZNEEEREI
EE - RAR
ERNEHRER
Received training on
Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws,

rules and regulations

HITES: EDs:

REBRITE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
HEEE Mr. Fu Kwan v/
2EFEFEE Mr. Liu Chuangi v/
RIS Mr. Zhang Zhefeng v/
RNESE Mr. Zhang Bishu v
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian J/
BYFHITES: INEDs:

TREEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen /
BEBEEE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong J/
EERE A Mr. Yue Rundong v/
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Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among
others, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company’s compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard set out in the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same position provides the Group with stronger and more consistent
leadership and allows for more effective planning. Further, the Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power, which
has been closely monitored by the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang
and believes that the current arrangement is beneficial to the business
prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to
have expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company
and to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making
process of the Company.
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Except Mr. Zhang Zhefeng and Mr. Zhang Bishu, other EDs of the
Company did not enter into service contracts with the Company. Mr.
Zhang Zhefeng and Mr. Zhang Bishu entered into the service contracts
for a term of two years commencing from 2 May 2017. In addition, the
INEDs signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
approximately two years commencing from 1 January 2018

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company's and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee).
To further enhance independence, all the committees (except the
Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company’s two INEDs
and one ED, namely, Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (being the Chairman of the
Committee), Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Zhang Jianhong.
The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee cover,
among other things, the review of the Group's policy and structure
for the remuneration for all the Directors and senior management of
the Group, the approval of the remuneration for all the EDs and senior
management of the Group, including the granting of share options to
the Group’s employees and the EDs under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme, and the recommendation to the Board for the remuneration
for the INEDs.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

SREEER
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEGKE - Committee member:
HEEB A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
SRIER AL Mr. Zhang Jianhong v

SHAETEZE2017F 12831 B LT RFEEHH
TEERASESEEEABNFH - KB
BETRESSRUBUYIIFNTEETTFMNES -
o - ZEEKEEFBILEN TEERASE
SEEEABNFHEASEFHABER -

SEEEBAEREHE2017F12A31BILFEENH
[ EEERZ N NE

During the meeting, the remuneration of the EDs and the Group's
senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
was approved. The members also approved the recommendation to
the Board to the remuneration for the INEDs. In addition, the members
discussed and reviewed the remuneration for the Directors and the
Group's senior management and the Group's remuneration related
matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

FNEE(ET) AB

Remuneration bands (HKD)

Number of
persons

7,000,001 7L £ 7,500,000/ 7T
11,500,0017 7T 212,000,000/ 7T

RIE ETARRIKI 6B T IHBENBBESHH X
AfL i = B BE B /Y — S5 SR B 75 R b
F11X%120

7,000,001 to 7,500,000 1
11,500,001 to 12,000,000 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Company’s three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (being the Chairman of the Committee
with appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise), Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Yue
Rundong.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annual reports and accounts, half-yearly reports and accounts and
to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board, to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for reviewing the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group and to give suggestions in these
regards.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31
December 2017 and the attendance of each member is set out as

follows:

HE BT
ZESERRY
Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

ZEE®XE Committee member:
TRESRE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 5/5
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 5/5
EEmRAE Mr. Yue Rundong 5/5

ARRINERBMEASEERERABTGH

RHEEE -
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The external auditors of the Company and the related management of
the Group also attended these meetings.
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2017, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out

as follows:

perform pre-audit meeting in respect of the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2016;

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2016; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

In addition, on 5 January 2018, the Audit Committee conducted pre-
audit meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of
the financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2017. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with
management on 23 March 2018 to review the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding
internal control and financial reporting including the review of the
Group's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2017 before
proposing to the Board for approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
were appointed as the members of the Nomination Committee.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity) of the Board, to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board, to assess the independence
of the INEDs, to review the policy (the “Policy”) concerning the diversity
of the Board and the measurable objectives that the Board has adopted
for implementing the Policy and to make the relevant disclosure on
the progress of achieving those objectives in the corporate governance
report of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2017 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

BREEER
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEXE - Committee member:

RERTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v
BEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
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During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, the diversity of the Board, the re-election of the
directors at AGM, the recommendation of the measurable objectives
that the Board should adopt for implementing the Policy as well as
reviewed the independence of the INEDs.
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In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is set

out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

Measurable Objectives

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend to the Board for adoption.

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance Report, on the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of the Policy.

A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable objectives
set for implementing the Policy and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Review of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2017:

Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the above measurable objectives
by which the Board had included both male and female candidates
with overseas academic, research or working experience in other
industries in the selection of Directors.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a Corporate Governance Committee
with terms of reference on 21 March 2013. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was
appointed as the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
and Mr. Liu Chuangi and Mr. Feng Jianjun were appointed as the
members of the Corporate Governance Committee. The primary
duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are to develop and
review policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors, to review
and monitor policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and to review the compliance with the Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Reports. The Corporate
Governance Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

EREERR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEGKE - Committee member:

RIEBREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong /
REFEE Mr. Liu Chuangi /
RMEBLE Mr. Zhang Bishu v
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During the meeting, the members discussed and reviewed matters
relating to the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, the training and continuous professional development of
Directors, and the Corporate Governance Report.

Risk Management Committee

The Company established a Risk Management Committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk
management and internal control of the Company and other related
matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the chairman
of the Risk Management Committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr.
Yue Rundong were appointed as the members of the Risk Management
Committee. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
consider, review and approve the risk management policies, identify the
risk of the Group, approve major decisions affecting the Group's risk profile
or exposure, consider the effectiveness of decision making processes in
crisis and emergency situations and review the effectiveness and resources
of the internal control systems of the Group.

The Risk Management Committee held three meetings during the year
under review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HE BT
ZEEEBRY
Number of
Committee meeting
attended/held

Committee member:

TRIBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 3/3
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/3
ERmRAEE Mr. Yue Rundong 3/3
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2017, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to
the Company’s internal control measures and polices and its
implementation, and the internal control report (prepared by the
independent consulting firm), before recommending them to the Board
for approval.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
members of the Company as a body and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has supervised
the management’s design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems. The Board confirmed that
it is responsible for establishing risk management and internal control
systems for the Group and will continue to monitor the system and
ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its principal subsidiaries at least
once a year.

The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have reviewed
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering all important
monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic, financial,
operational and compliance monitoring.

The Company has set up internal audit function. The Company has also
conducted procedures of risk management, which mainly include:

1) identify risk and form risk list;

2) Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;
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Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

Develop risk management manuals for risk management, identify
the responsibilities for the management, Board of Directors, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee in risk management,
and continuously monitor risk management;

The management has reported to the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on the review and assessment of risk
management, major risk factors and related response measures.

However, risk management and internal control systems are designed

to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business

goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no significant

misrepresentation or loss.

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for

handling and distributing inside information:

The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle
is that the information should be immediately published when
the Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is
made, unless such inside information falls under the Safe Harbour
Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the “Recent Economic

Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers’
issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2017 57



EEERARS

Corporate Governance Reports

EFRERHEBFENRREBANNBEL R
FERBRYE  RARSRRARNEH - EF Y
B ENENERAREBANBERRANE
Bl -

SMNEE X BUED RV BN &

HE2017F12A31HIEFE - IMNEZHEN RS
ZIRFE M BN & 4858 5 2,600,0008 TT(H B AR
2,106,0007T) °

HE2017F 128318 ILEFE - INEZBETIREET
A FERIZAR S M BN & 4B EE 40 A600,0008 L (K A
AR¥486,0007T) + Al AR EHEZE20179F6A30
B E7<E A B AR SR B R B TS s o

ERREQCEREBRTEREHMERHMA
RARIRARRZEE  IEEESSRE @
BERAZEAGHRRERERRBFAEG LHER
JTRIFE -

BRER AR

BRRABMAKRRZFIARE(RESZ A X
gNREF

REZRME - ER—AEFETILRAR
NRAAENBRRERARE EREZHRRE T2 —
(10%) B ECAR ([BRFRIAGERKA L) » 7]
M S B (BRALF Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O
Box 31119, Grand Pavillion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands)
FEBEMBERCRURBREEBFESLITEISR
BARPLISBRE)  NEFERARWEEL AR
BREFIAGSHEEDENR - RREFAIAGERA
TANRENERPIIRBRREIASG LB TR
BHEE - AEEERALHERRENREE
SRALER -

58 REEBEARAE —F—tFFH

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the year under review and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$2,600,000 (approximately RMB2,106,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total remuneration for
the permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$600,000 (approximately RMB486,000)
which is for the review of the interim financial report of the Group for the
six months period ended 30 June 2017.

The re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
has been recommended by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the
Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM.

Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene
extraordinary general meetings (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
"EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently
situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O Box 31119, Grand Pavillion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit
02, 15/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
EGM Requisitionists must state in their requisition the businesses of the
EGM to be transacted and such requisition must be signed by all the
EGM Requisitionists.
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Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According
to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by them as a result of failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F,
Capital Center, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or
special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company's website www.dongyuechem.com.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F

Capital Centre,

151 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: 2180-7524

Email: carrie_dy@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.

Investor relations
Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company’s website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.
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Change in the constitutional documents of
the Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 29 March 2018
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About the Report
Time Frame

From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, partial contents are
beyond the above time frame.

Publication Cycle

The environmental, social and governance report of Dongyue
Group Limited is an annual report published on an annual basis.

Scope of report

The report covers the headquarters of Dongyue Group Limited
and its subsidiaries including:

Shangdong Dongyue Chemical Co., Limited, Shandong Dongyue
Polymers Co., Limited, Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd,, Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd,,
Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd., Inner
Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Inner
Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Chifeng HuaSheng
Mining Co., Ltd., Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd., Dongying
Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Wenhe
Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Union Property
Co., Ltd., Huangtai Dongyue International Trade Co., Ltd., Hong
Kong Trulene International Trade Co., Ltd. Shandong Dongyue
Public Trading Company Limited (ILEREREKXKRE SER AR,
Guoming Investment Management Company Limited (Bl &
EIZHPRAT]) and Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy
Materials Co., Ltd.

Basis of preparation

The report has been prepared in reference to Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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Explanations on Short Names

For ease of presentation, “Dongyue Group Limited” is expressed as

nou

“Dongyue Group’,

"o A

the Group’, “the Company” and “we”, “our” or

“us” in the report.

Explanations on Data

Historical data cited in the report is the final statistical data. In case
of any discrepancy between financial data and annual report, the
latter shall prevail. Unless otherwise stated, Renminbi is used in
the report as functional currency.

Access to report

The report is prepared in Chinese and English, which can be
downloaded electronically from:

The website of HKSE
http://sc.hkex.com.hk

The website of Dongyue Group Limited
http://www.dongyuechem.com/
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Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the communication
with stakeholders by using various channels to disseminate
the Group's social responsibility philosophy and practices, and
understand the requirements of stakeholders, and taking measures

to meet the reasonable expectations and pursuits of stakeholders.

HMEHEER

Expectations and requirements

BRECELRN

Ways of communication and response

B REEHKE

Government and regulators

R

Shareholders

BEFREEBH

Customers and partners
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Implementing the national policies,
laws and regulations

Promoting local economic development

Driving local employment

Production safety
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BRE

Returns on investment
Compliant operation
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EBITRER

Fulfilling the contractual obligations in
accordance with the law

Integrity operation

Quality products and services

Promoting industry development
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Submitting the documents
Offering advice and suggestions
Special subject report
Inspection & supervision
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Company announcement

Hﬁjf

Special subject report
Field investigation
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Business communication
Customer feedback
Exchange & discussion
Negotiation & cooperation
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HPEEER

Expectations and requirements

BREEEELN

Ways of communication and response

BRI

Environment

BT
Employees

HERAR

Community and the public
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Compliant emission

Energy conservation and
emission reduction

Protecting the ecology
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BEER

Rights and interests protection
Occupational health

Salaries and benefits

Career development
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Improving the community environment
Participating in public welfare undertakings
Open and transparent information

TEER

At E

Work report

Filing and submission
Investigation & inspection

BIREAE
C
REBETA

Workers' congress
Collective consultation

Democratic communication platform

DAY
ARIAE

o0

Company website
Company announcement
Interview & exchange

In order to enhance the pertinence and responsiveness of
the report, the Group identified the subject of sustainable
development and determined the significance in accordance with
the requirements of Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (ESG Guide) and Global
Reporting Initiative’s Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (G4.0), to

ensure that the information disclosed in the report covers the key

issues which are related with the Company’s development and

the stakeholders are concerned about.
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Selection process of environmental, social and governance issues

C}m"m"<«t<"m"m<3m“m"m4(<w("m"m"()

REEBEARAE —F—tFFH

B R
Sources of issues
~AREBERS
— Proposed by management of the Company
—RINEEBRR DT
- Proposed by internal and external experts based on analysis
—ERERDWN
— Analysis of media information
— B SMR R EHEH 5T
— Research on benchmarking at home and abroad
—HEEEFERR
— Criteria and Guidance on Social Responsibility
EREE

Selection criteria

—HARERRNER

— Contribution to sustainable development
—Mz=AER T EiRRT
— Common concern of stakeholders
— R EREERER RS
— Emphasized in social responsibility— related guidance
—NMERRERERTE
- Meeting the strategic development needs of the Company
BEMHTER

Determination of materiality
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2017 - REEBESEAEZEBHTERNOT ¢ In 2017, the major issues of Dongyue Group are determined as
follows:
REEE2017FEAMREER
Matrix of Major Issues
of Dongyue Group in 2017
=)

High EmEE
s Product quality

RETERRE R Al
Promoting industry development RADITnovation

BEE e HERS
Emissions management Production safety

8 T %z A |

HNRERTNERRE

Importance for stakeholders

{8

Low

Employees'salaries and benefits Legal compliance

8 TR
Employee training and development

HBEREER
Intellectual property management
AR B 2
EREEEH Supplier management
Volunteer activities NERETE
HEAT Corporate governance
Public welfare i
Occupational health
BIRER

Resource use

- ot

=
Q@
>

HASENEZRE

Importance to the Group
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3. Responsible Operation

Dongyue Group has always believed that responsible operation
is not only the foundation stone of steady development for the
enterprise itself, but also the performance of duties and response
to upstream and downstream stakeholders in the industry chain
of suppliers and customers etc. In 2017, the Group has given
full play to the surveillance function, set up the Auditing Dept,
Commission for Discipline Inspection of Group Party Committee,
Quality Supervision Office etc, so as to achieve fully the universal
and overall process coverage ranging from routine supervision
and inspection, organizational discipline inspection to production

and operation supervision.

3.1 Integrity and compliance

The Group takes integrity and compliance as the foundation
of enterprise development. In 2017, it has perfected
comprehensively the supervision mechanism against
corruption, continued strengthening the institutional
improvement, developed the Dongyue Group Risk
Management Manual, Dongyue Group Regulations on
Anti-fraud Management and other systems against risks
and frauds, and further issued the Internal Audit Charter.
Moreover, the Company has formulated a better internal
control system, sorted out and issued the Dongyue Group
Risk List Draft for Comments, Responsibilities of Internal
Audit, Job Responsibilities of Internal Audit etc. and
undertaken the supplies purchasing, production operation,
current accounts, expense management and other audit
projects, and put forward 21 management proposals, which
have improved the governance structure and effectively
promoted the management improvement.
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In addition, the Company has valued the ideological
education to employees and managements, fully
improved the cognition of internal employees to good
faith compliance by a series of clean conduct supervision
and honesty and self-discipline education campaigns, and
further strengthened the corporate culture construction
of combating corruption and upholding integrity. The
Company has asked the managerial cadres and personnel in
key position to fill out the Confirmation of Self-examination
and Self-correction for Ideological Styles of Cadres, sign the
Undertaking of Integrity and Self-discipline for Cadres, and
cooperated with the public security organs and industry
and commerce departments to check the information of
cadres and personnel in key position as well as their relatives.
Meantime, the Company has organized the employees
to watch and study the anti-corruption feature programs,
“Style construction is always on the road--Documentary of
implementing the eight-point decision on improving Party

noow

conduct and enforcing Party discipline”, “To forge iron, one
must be strong”, “Disciplinary inspections have cut like a
blade through corruption and misconduct”, to raise the

employees’ awareness of anti-corruption in an all-round way.

During the reporting period, the Group has not seen any
corruption cases.
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3.2

3.3

Ensuring product quality

The Group has, in terms of raw material purchasing,
manufacturing and quality inspection etc., made strict
control to the production and operation process,
developed the Quality System Management Manual, Quality
Management System and Measures for the Implementation
of Quality Management Assessment to illustrate and define
the responsibilities and quality management procedures
for each entity, set a clear specification to the handling of
quality accidents, and fully guaranteed the quality stability
of four main solid materials including raw coal, crude salt,
calcium carbide and fluorite powder. The Company has
strictly executed the product inspection process, carried
out sampling analysis to products following the finished
product inspection procedures and national standards,
and disposed the unaccepted products in accordance
with the Nonconforming Product Control & Management
Procedures to ensure the provision of high-quality products
to customers. In 2017, the Group has recovered products of
35.04t in total.

Provision of quality service

The Group is always adhering to provision of perfect service
supports to customers. The Company has, through a variety
of channels, maintained the long-term and stable contact
with customers, such as phone call, mail communication,
customer visit, customer annual meeting etc., and on the
basis of fully understanding customer needs, provided
customers with professional services and one-stop solutions
from the demand analysis to cash on delivery.
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The Company has valued the feedbacks from customers, and
developed the Customer Complaint Management Measures
to make investigation, reason analysis and formulation
of measures to the customer complaints, feed back the
handling suggestions to customers, and keep tracking and
improving such measures. The Company has established
a sound customer satisfaction survey mechanism, sent
the Customer Satisfaction Questionnaire to key customers
annually, made comprehensive analysis to the customer
satisfaction on the product quality, product stability,
timeliness of product service, timeliness of product accident
service, rationality of prices, timeliness of product delivery,
service attitude etc. Based on the results of survey, the
Company conducted in-depth discussions to the internal/
external causes and improved methods of main problems,
and made proper work arrangements to improve the
customer experience in an all-round way.

Strengthening supply chain management

The Group has established and steadily consolidated
the supplier selection mechanism, and made effective
management to the supply chain in line with the Supplier
Management System and Dongyue Group Materials
Purchasing Process. The Company has sought high-quality
suppliers by means of professional media, professional
website, peer introduction, industry association, exhibition
and other channels and platforms. The Company will make
survey to the supplier's production process, R&D capability,
production control, quality system and SHE system etc. and
establish a survey team to the new suppliers for field visit,
so as to ensure they are qualified for bidding and tendering,
enquiry and comparison. Meanwhile, the Company has
enhanced its maintenance of partnership with suppliers,
actively carried out different forms of exchange with
suppliers, and helped the suppliers grow by the technical
support, so as to achieve the mutual benefits and win-win
cooperation with suppliers. As at the end of the reporting
period, the Group has 686 suppliers, 368 of which are
in Shandong Province, and other major suppliers in 22
provinces and cities including Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Shanghai,
Hebei, Liaoning and Beijing.
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4. Scientific and Technological Innovation
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Focusing on the national strategy of “Made in China 2025, the
Group has optimized the existing fluorosilicon industrial chain,
accelerated the cyclic and high-end development, actively
advanced the deep processing and equipment industry of new
energy, new environmental supporting materials, enhanced the
external resource integration and industrial radiation capacities
of the park, and in the meantime, strived to boost the innovative
resource clusters in the fluorosilicon frontiers of new generation
of composite materials, and seize the full advantage of future
fluorosilicon and high-end extended industry. In 2017, Dongyue
Group invested an aggregate of RMB94,609,000 in research and
development.

4.1 Encouraging technological innovation

Targeted to optimize the fluorine chemical, organosilicone
industrial levels and develop the downstream processing
manufacturing industry of fluorine materials, the Group
has increased the technical R&D inputs, optimized the
management level, prepared and implemented the Measures
for Investment Management of New, Reconsideration and
Expansion Projects of Dongyue Group. Meanwhile, the Group
continuously enhanced the management to intellectual
property, established a sound patent management system,
and guided the subsidiaries in the certification of standard
management system of intellectual property management
norm in accordance with Enterprise Intellectual Property
Management (20490-2013), for the gradual standardization
of the Group's intellectual property management. The Group
has, in respect to the application for, review and award of
a patent, developed four management systems, including
Dongyue Group patent management system, invention and
innovation application process, patent review system and
Dongyue Group science and technology innovation award
measures.
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FRE & B30I (R 2IaiE EXE H R

Applied 30 patents for invention (including 2 patents designated
to be ap ||ed in the U.S); N B
X291 Etﬂé’*ﬂﬂﬁﬂzﬁé BRAFENIE - FIMREIR
Authorized 29 patents, mcludmg 26 patents for invention, 1 utility
model and 2 ||cen5|n

BER FRAEE 48218 - FHAMEN331IA o
As at the end of the reportmg period, the Group has applied for a
total of 482 patents, including 331 patents in force.

BISEFIEBBE T8I © Hf - HEPRABIT - B
BEBNS268TT - HENEIET -

Obtained the patent subsidy support of RMB780,000, including
RMB224,000 of provincial grants, RMB526,000 of High-tech Zone
grants and RMB30,000 of County patent award.

AL E R TE B ﬁv‘%lJﬁlJ)\%ﬁﬂ S MIE B AL 38 BRI
BHIAR - WHEIIABRENEEFMEENZRHARER

Fuel cell membrane project included in the national patent
micronavigation project and Shandong patent micronavigation
project, and listed among the national patent information
utilization capacit bqumg pilot project;

%’Tﬂ EEEN AT ASEERREALRESEES
Fuel cell membrane patent pool recommended as the high-value
patent in Shandong by the provincial and municipal Intellectual
Property Offices.

EERIERANERIBAZRRETTEMRENEMRE
e TR

Invited a senior agent from agency company to the Company and
conduct training in terms of the patent retrieval and technical
disclosure writing
%Eﬁaﬂ?%i/\”bﬂTi%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ(ﬁ’]ﬁﬂ&ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁ% BRI
=k || o

Organized 5 persons to attend the intensive training in terms of
patent mining and portfolio by examiners from National Patent
Office.

EESHTHHERANEGNMERERAREERAE

Dongyue Polymer Material Co., Ltd. won the standardization and
identification certificate of intellectual property management
practices; o e
mgﬂ;‘%Wﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ NEIE R BDRTE BB RPN BEE
N Tk

Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Material Co., Ltd. accredited as
the “National Intellectual Property Demonstration Enterprise” by
State Intellectual ProEerty Office; .
;ﬁ{%gﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ AFIHE SERRRTEAILERE NHE
N °

Dongyue Polymer Material Co., Ltd. accredited as the “Shandong
Intellectual Property Demonstration Enterprise” by Intellectual
Property Office of Shandong Province.

(=B RRA 5 Be 25 1R IR 1) B AR 8 £ 16 181 B 10 1l 4 7 V& )& 1S+
B E B

A Preparation Method of PVDF Resin for Solar Backing Membrane
won the Nauonal Outstanding Innovation;
(—EEABMBONE 2 ESSETEN=5%

A Preparation Method of Fluoroelastomer won the third prize of
patent in Zibo City.
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4.2 Applying the innovation achievements

Being market-oriented, the Group has adhered to the
combined R&D approach of overall advancing and
key breakthrough, and in 2017, taking the stabilized
manufacturing of chloralkali membrane, fuel cell membrane
and ETFE coating as the primary target, further improved
the construction of quality management system, spurred
the innovative products to form the steady production,
optimized the production technology and increased the
production efficiency; meanwhile, it has developed the R&D
product matching technology to provide a strong support,
thereby bringing forth the wider and deeper innovation.

. Expansion of innovation results

Centering on the feedbacks from market application,
the Group has, based upon the successful R&D of
chlor-alkali ion membrane and fuel cell membrane,
deeply carried out the skill upgrading to form the
stabilized manufacturing, and increased the marketing
efforts at home and abroad, making the research
results widely applied to the market. In 2017, the
Group has, based on the market needs of chloralkali
jion membrane, launched the 2806 series high current
density membrane products, and set up multiple sets of
industrial demonstration units, which have been applied
to more than ten chloralkali enterprises at home and
abroad. In the fuel cell membrane field, the Company
has successfully developed three new samples, which
are sent to AFCC for evaluation of properties, and
exceeded 6,000h successfully in the AFCC accelerated
life test, reaching the international leading level, and so
far, Dongyue fuel cell membrane has been in batch trial
production. Besides, Dongyue Group has successfully
developed the coating ETFE resin, forming the DS4051
and DS4052 electrostatic spraying coating products and
DS4061 roller coating products, applied and recognized
by customers.
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. Optimization of production efficiency

To match up the application and extension of
achievements, the Group has, in 2017, successfully
completed the technological upgrading to pilot plant,
which has, with technical transformation, effectively
solved the capacity bottlenecks of HFPO distillation
system, unstable T1 quality and other problems,
achieving new breakthroughs in yields and sales.
In addition, the Company has made great efforts
in perfecting the platform construction, already
completed the formulation of instrument platform
construction solutions and purchasing of some
instruments, achieved the benchmarking with AFCC
in the membrane property testing direction as well as
the rapid evaluation to chloralkali membrane and ETFE
properties, eliminated the drawbacks of production
guidance with single dependence on the test data,
shortening R&D and production cycles.

. Development of supporting technology

To match with the existing R&D products, the Group
has continuously developed the innovative technology,
made prominent progress in the new resin monomer
and graft modification technology of X-film material
using plasma: new resin monomer has been studied
the reaction process and mechanism, as well as green
substitution and recycling of reactive solvents, so as to
provide better resin-supporting monomer products,
reduce the production cost, and lay a foundation of
material reserves for the development of membrane
industrialization stability; the graft modification
technology of X-film material using plasma has opened
up the laboratory preparation process, pushed forward
steadily in the development of pilot products, and
optimized the matching work for development of fuel
cell membrane.

Moreover, the Company has long undertaken a plurality
of national, provincial key R&D programs, synergized such
superior resources as talents, funds and equipment of
industry and scientific research institutions, and promoted
the development and innovation of high and new
technology in the fluorosilicone industry.
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4.3

Building the talent highland

The cultivation and introduction of high-end talents are the
cornerstone of technical R&D, and also the source power
of innovative development of an enterprise. The Group has
established the technical innovation incentive mechanism,
and formulated a series of measures, such as Management
Measures of Rewards for Science Research and Methods
of Rewards for Achievements in Scientific Research and
Selection of Outstanding Scientific Talents in Research
Institute to stimulate the motivation and creativity of
scientific research talents. As at the end of reporting period,
Dongyue Research Institute has 171 employees, including 7
doctoral candidates and 20 postgraduate students.

For a long time, the Group has, relying on the industrial
demand, actively integrated the internal and external talent
resources, collaborated closely with well-known colleges
and universities, expanded the channels of “industry-college-
institute-user-government-service”, and moved forward the
high-end R&D of enterprises. As at the end of reporting
period, the Group has co-built a fluorosilicone material R&D
center with Beijing University of Chemical Technology, and
an organosilicon material technology center with Hangzhou
Normal University. Meanwhile, in 2017, the Group has
achieved remarkable results in the R&D project cooperation
with colleges and university:

- Assumed with Beijing University of Chemical
Technology the national key R&D program titled “Key
Technology for Preparation of High-performance PVC’,
R&D of key technology for synthesis of high-capacity
PFSA, preparation of new generation of ionic membrane
for chloralkali industry, making the overall properties
of domestic membrane reach the foreign level of the
latest generation of products.

- Based on the first generation of PFSAPEM, further made
new design and in-depth study on the reinforcing
materials and film-forming polymers jointly with
Shanghai Jiaotong University concerning the technical
R&D of new generation of fuel cell proton membrane,
optimized the film-forming solvent system, developed
the fuel cell proton membrane with high yield, stable
dimension, long life and high property, gaining double
advantages of proton membrane technology and
products for fuel vehicles in the world.
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-  Cooperated with Lanzhou Institute of Chemical Physics,
Chinese Academy of Sciences to develop the lubricants
for space technology, and completed a part of probe
tests in 2017; such lubricants and grease products may
achieve the home-made and independent supply,
solving our difficulties in long life lubrication of aviation,
aerospace, nuclear power and military equipment, and
breaking the foreign blockade on our techniques.

4.4 Promoting industry progress

The Group exerts itself to drive the synergetic development of
the whole industry while focusing on the self-development.
Over the years, the Company has, by integrating the
industry-wide scientific resources and technologies, tried
very hard to build a liaison and cooperation platform with
the research institutes, industry associations, authority
experts, established a collaborative innovation mechanism
to get through the channel for technological and economic
transfer and conversion, achieving the cooperative study,
sharing of results and resources. As the Vice President Unit
of Fluorosilicone Association, Directory Membership Unit of
CPCIF, President Unit of Fluoroplastics Processing Association
and Vice Secretary-General Unit of Membrane Industry
Association, the Group has organized and presided over the
academic exchange conferences of domestic fluorosilicone
industry for several times. Furthermore, the Group has taken
an active part in the formulation and revision of national and
provincial standards, and in 2017, organized the drafting of 2
national standards' and 2 industry standards?, and involved
in the enactment of 17 industry group standards.

1: In 2017, Dongyue Group has participated in the drafting of two
national standards, namely Determination of Perfluorooctane
Sulfonates and Perfluorooctanoic Acid in Separation Membrane — LC-
MS/MS and Fluorinated Olefins Refrigerant Use — General Method for
the Determination of Water

2: In 2017, Dongyue Group has participated in the drafting of two

industrial standards, namely Mixed Refrigerants R404 Series and Mixed
Refrigerants R410 Series
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4.5 Intelligent information control
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informatization management, to realize the intelligent
control goals of “plant automation, control informatization,
intelligent operation and high-efficient integration” set by
Dongyue Group. In 2017, the Company has built the digital
intelligent control center, which is a synthesized control
system platform integrating the production scheduling, safety
and environmental protection, energy control, equipment
maintenance, operation management. The system platform
has integrated the Company’s programmable logic controller
system (DCS/PLC), Baoxin energy management system (EMS),
Formosa Plastics equipment maintenance system (FEMS)
and field management system (FLOW), Yonyou enterprise
resource planning system (ERP), manufacturing execution
system (MES) as well as the discrete instrument, video
monitoring and other data & information, playing a positive
role in the Group's production and operation.

In the meantime, the Group has made fully automatic
transformation to all plants and large equipment, and
fully automatic control optimization to the distributed
control system (DCS), achieved the two-level linkage for
park control, changed the traditional production control
mode into intelligent production mode, the energy-
intensive development pattern into the green energy

miEek - mEME - B2 EXAE efficient manufacturing model, and the traditional operation
HEEE o management mode into the informationized, synergized and

SEBRRE —F-—tFFH

smart innovation.
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5. Safety Guarantee

The Group knows very well the fact that the production safety
is the lifeline relating to the survival and development of an
enterprise, and ranks it as top priority of corporate operation
and management; based on the establishing and perfection
of safety culture and management framework, the Group has
continuously strengthened the hazard identification and control,
strictly enforced the all-round prevention and control measures
against safety risks, raised the employees’ safety awareness and
skills, built the production safety management system with clear
responsibility, total involvement, whole process coverage and
Dongyue characteristics. Thanks to our determination and action
of “zero accident and zero tolerance”, the Group has not suffered
from any casualty safety accident in 2017.

5.1 Safety culture and management

Regarding the safety culture and management as the basic
engineering and core framework, the Group has, with strong
safety culture, urged employees to consciously and actively
take the safety behaviors and dissolve safety risks, and guided
them to carry out production safety systematically with the
sound safety management system.
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Safety culture

The Group has taken production safety as the core value

of an enterprise, and devoted to building the safety

management culture with Dongyue characteristics. To solidly

boost the safety management level, the Group has proposed

ten safety management principles from the leadership,

employee responsibility and risk control.

BTEE
Employee responsibility

JE:Ne el

Risk control

EREREHEEERNR S
BEEER

Managements at all levels are
directly responsible for the safety
in their jurisdiction
BEMERERERAIRICITRE
TZEEE

Managements at all levels take
visual actions to perform the safety
responsibilities

REEEBRAR —E—tFFR

s REREREIMNEERM
Safety is the first and foremost
condition to hire an employee

o BIWARXEBNZEE
Employees must receive strict
safety training

o EBIHRZHEEMHE
Direct employee involvement is
the key

*  FIBRHEERILATENH)
All accidents are preventable

o (FEBIERENRBESE
BRI AN
All risks in the operation shall be
identified and controlled

o ERLRRBHNATIE
Any potential safety hazards
found must be corrected

° IREFA ORBER
No permits, no operations

o IR ERKEE
Safety out of work is equally
important
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Safety management framework

The Group has, subject to Production Safety Law and other
relevant regulations and standards, rooted the safety and
occupational health management in every detail of operation
by developing clear safety policy goals and management
system.

To coordinate the advantage resources to be put in safety
management, the Group has set up the Production Safety
Committee (“PSC") consisting of Chairman as Director, CEO
as Vice Director, Group Vice President, all department heads
and General Managers of all subsidiaries as members. The
PSC holds regular meetings to acquaint themselves with
the production safety management performance within
the Group, look into the problems in the production safety
recently and lay down countermeasures.

In view of implementing the safety responsibilities at
all levels, the Group has, in 2017, revised RACI (task and
responsibility assignment) matrixes of all companies and
responsibilities of territorial workshops and functional
departments, and completed the rendering and public
disclosure of level |, Il and IlI territorial zoning map, and the
territorial management framework has taken initial shape; the
Group has intensified the awareness of territorial and linear
responsibilities, making explicit “I'll make the decision and
take charge of my territory”.
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Chart: Safety and health management framework of

Dongyue Group

EBRTRREMLEEENERER - THBERNEERE

To implement the national laws, regulations, policies and standards concerning the
production safety

BB SAREELREERMT

To supervise the functional departments and all companies to implement their production
safety responsibilities

EHES M EET 2 EEET

To regularly examine and review the Group's production safety operation
MFRTE 22 2 4 B TIEH ) EARE R FERERE IS HE

Consider and determine the major problems in production safety and the measures to be
taken

ZRHE  REREAFTERNLEER

Daily control, supervision and assessment of production safety and facilities
HIEMEBENTREL 2T - BOR - BREHERES

To formulate and supervise the Group's safety guidelines, policies, management system standards
etc.

HEEM IR - AERRERECRANEREETN - AIRZ2XIE
Promote construction and implementation of DuPont, Formosa Plastics and safety
standardization system, and create a safety culture

EHEZAREEHEERBR
To assess the implementation of target-oriented responsibility system on a regular basis

N\
EHEENEELD  BEBEBML2EESTES

Those in charge of specialty must take charge of safety, to implement the production safety
responsibility system of functional departments

HIEEXERRERE - WEBHT

To lay down specialty management rules and standards and oversee their implementation
ERELEEIREEERE

To implement the responsibilities of safety management and supervision

J

ERBBEANEGET  SEREBBSMTRITH - BIEREE  ZEZ )
2HEERES

To implement the territorial and line responsibilities, all managements are expected to, by
participating in visual action, practice the felt leadership, and implement the production
safety responsibility system

HEEF - BEME2IEFREE N EURNEEEETIEBITER

To facilitate the implementation of DuPont, Formosa Plastics and safety standardization and
other standards, and establish the high-efficient production safety management operating
system

BEUMTE TERRAREENEHEBHERERR - RNERERRE

To build and keep perfecting the hierarchical risk control and near miss identification &
handling system, eliminating the accident threats in a timely manner
EHERABMNBEREN ATIE  RELEABOBERE

To carry out the occupational hazard prevention, and ensure the occupational health of
employees
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5.2 Risk prevention and control

The Group has paid high attention to the safety risk
prevention and control, continuously carried out the
identification and rectification of hidden dangers at all
levels, and implemented 3,326 times of identification in
the reporting period, with a rectification rate of up to 98%;
in the daily operation, the Group has controlled the safety
production risks in an all-round way by taking the process
and job safety control, accident emergency and exercise,
contractor safety management and other measures. In 2017,
the Group has, combined with the construction of intelligent
control center, improved the existing safety management
system platform, realized the automatic statistics and analysis
function, optimized the identification of hidden dangers,
informatization of accident/incident elements, management
safety of data for perfection, and increased the safety
management efficiency.

Process safety management

The Group has improved in real time the process safety
management, resolutely preventing the occurrence of any
process safety accident. In 2017, the Group and subsidiaries
have, following the actual field process, updated the existing
process and instrument diagrams, further sorted out the
process safety information list, and divided the document
management responsibilities; they utilized the layer of
protection analysis (LOPA) technology to improve the
quality of hazard and operability study (HAZOP), making the
deviation, consequence and cause analysis more accurate
and clearer, and adding the “essential risk analysis” and
“residual risk analysis”; they optimized and revised the
Management of Change (MOC) System, identified and
reviewed the change projects before each overhaul, and
improved the MOC following the new change process.
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Job safety control

The Group has laid down detailed job management
standards, to which all companies have continuously
strengthened the evaluation and analysis in their operation,
timely found and solved the problems in the execution,
and taken the specific improvement measures in due
time. In 2017, the Group has emphasized the intensified
control to high-risk operations, revised the hot work, work
at heights, lifting operation, confined space, line break,
excavation operation and other 4 management standards,
and formulated the Machines & Tools Checklists and High-
risk Operation Checklist. The new standards have highlighted
more the early planning and risk analysis of operations, full
communication of personnel and preparation of operating
conditions, field verification of risk control measures and the
management responsibility of territory to operation; besides,
the Group has prepared the Regulations on Disciplinary
Punishment for High-risk Violations, encouraged and
rewarded the well-behaved employees, taken punishment
to violators ranging from the penalty, disciplinary action
to the dissolution of the labor contract, and improved the
employees’ red line consciousness and disciplined execution.

Targeted at the chemical enterprise characteristics, the
Group has prepared the Highly Toxic Materials Manual in
2017, urged all companies to commence the preparation
of chlorine, HF, OFIB highly hazardous chemicals standard
manuals in line with their own process features and
operating environments, which are to unify the personal
protection and emergency measures etc. against the similar
highly toxic substances among all companies.
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Accident emergency and exercise

According to relevant regulatory requirements, the Group
has revised regularly the comprehensive emergency plans,
special emergency plans and on-site disposal programs for
accidents, all companies are required to, on the basis of
the Group's emergency plans, prepare the corresponding
corporate emergency plans, strengthen the emergency
plan exercise, and improved the emergency response
capability of companies and positions and employees’ self-
defense and self-rescue ability. The headquarters of the
Group and all companies shall organize annually at least two
comprehensive emergency exercises at the company level,
all workshops shall organize monthly a special emergency
exercise, and all positions organize two exercises of site
disposal programs every month. In 2017, 499 safety exercises
have been organized at all levels, with 58,568 person-times
of employees involved, including 224 fire drills, with 20,326
person-times of employees involved.

Contractor safety management

The contractor safety is also an important component of
production safety, and the Group has specially formulated
the Dongyue Group Contractor Management Process,
in which the contractor is required to implement the
same safety discipline standards, training standards and
control standards as the Group. In the actual operation,
the Group has, by combining with internal and external
controls, strengthened the contractor safety risk controls.
The Company not only made special inspection and full
process supervision ascending on a regular basis, but also
rectified the contractors by virtue of such external forces as
government and intermediaries. The Group has unified the
contractor inspection standards, all companies are expected
to prepare the Comprehensive Checklist for contractors,
organize at least a special inspection monthly, and take
timely rectification measures against the problems found,
forming a closed loop. For the operation project, the Group
has established the responsibility matrix, developed proposals
for construction safety before mobilization, organized the job
risk analysis, pre-job training and safety disclosure, machines
(tools) inspection etc., and in the operation, relevant
departments shall daily inspect and examine the high-risk
operations, and organize the contractor training.
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5.3

5.4

In 2017, the contractor’s PPE use has been standardized,
safety isolation and operation monitoring etc. have been
improved largely, and the eligibility of in-plant safety
training tends to be 100%; during the annual overhaul, the
contractors have 2,676 employees mobilized, without any
lost-time incident or above.

Occupational health and protection

The Group highly values the employees’ occupational health
management, and every year, formulates and implements
the occupational disease prevention plans based on the
previous experience summary and practical situation,
constantly improves the occupational disease prevention
measures, and raises the occupational disease prevention
and management level. The annual occupational disease
management mainly includes the following: by the field
monitoring of occupational hazards, and based on this,
constantly improving the plant automation, intelligent
level, taking strictly closed isolation measures, minimizing
the employees’ exposure to occupational hazard factors;
organizing the occupational disease prevention training,
providing perfect occupational health protective equipment
and emergency instruments, raising the employees’ labor
protection awareness and levels; organizing employees
to make yearly physical examination, establishing health
records, and effectively improving their occupational safety
and health levels. In 2017, the employees’ occupational
health examination rate is 100%, with zero incidence of
occupational diseases.

Awareness building and training

When implementing the safety management, the
improvement of employees’ safety awareness and skills is of
great importance. In 2017, the Group has conducted safety
education to employees mainly from training, publicity and
reward.
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The Group has built a complete training system to satisfy the
employees’ safety training needs in an all-round way. For all
employees, the Group has continuously carried out training
regarding the hierarchical control of risks, identification
of hidden dangers, and reporting of near-miss accidents,
making them master the hazard identification and risk
assessment tools. For employees from different positions, the
Group has formulated the position training programs, and on
this basis, all companies have in 2017 detailed the position
skill needs, prepared the position skill needs matrix, and will
further form the personalized and targeted training plans
by job competency assessment and gap contrast, laying
a foundation for improvement of training. In addition, the
Group has improved the training pattern, built the internal
trainer system, and organized the internal trainer to have skill
training; as at the end of reporting period, the Group has
cultivated 36 internal trainers.

The Group has launched safety campaigns to create an
atmosphere of safety culture, so that employees at all levels
are facilitated to build their safety risk awareness. In 2017,
the Group has organized the safety speech contest titled
“Safety in My Heart” and the knowledge contest on risk
control and near miss identification, with high employee
involvement; it further planned and performed the “Safety
Milestone” activity, setting the lasting days of zero accident
goal, in case of any of the lost-time incident, level | process
safety incident, level | environmental accident and level |
fire accident, the lasting days are reset, making analysis and
improvement to such accidents.

The Group has adopted a plurality of reward mechanisms,
to encourage the advancing of safety management. It has
set up the special incentive fund of “Taking after DuPont”
to reward the safety experience sharing, risk control and
near miss identification, excellent training courseware
making etc. of front-line employees; the “Five Ones” activity
reward is aimed at encouraging the senior executives and
middle managements of all companies to practice the felt
leadership; Instant Security Award and Thumb Award are
to encourage employees to standardize their operation
behaviors and develop good work habits.
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Protection

In strict accordance with national laws and regulations concerning
environmental protection, the Group has, based upon the
ISO14001 environmental management, developed the stricter
internal control standard and sound environmental management
system; on this basis, the Group has vigorously carried out the
energy conservation and emission reduction transformation,
reduced the resource consumption, eliminated and minimized the
environmental pollution, thereby making all energy conservation
and environmental protection indexes in the advanced level of
industry nationwide.

6.1 Reducing carbon emissions

In response to the national call on energy conservation and
emission reduction, the Group has formulated the Energy
Target and Energy Conservation Performance Evaluation
Management Measures, monitored in real time the source
and situation of energy consumption, and dedicated to
building an environment-friendly enterprise by boosting the
energy saving measures and the utilization of renewable
clean energy.

In 2017, the Group's subsidiaries have carried out diversified
environmental renovation, for instance, modifying the
workshop refrigerating system, achieving the reasonable
and matching use of refrigerating units, shutting down
the redundant units, so that the electricity consumption
for refrigeration has reduced by 34.39kWh/t in comparison
with that of 2016; retrofitting the waste heat recovery
device, carrying out waste heat recovery to the steam, high-
temperature flue gas and hot slag in the production process,
so as to effectively minimize the energy use. The Group has
also actively explored the use of clean energy, and involved
in the quarterly and monthly bilateral and bidding trading of
trans-provincial straight power supply from wind power and
solar power generation in Ningxia and West China; in 2017,
the Group has a trans-provincial power trading volume from
wind power and solar power generation of 747,450,000kWh,
greatly reducing the consumption of coal-fired power.
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The Group's products are mainly refrigerant, high polymer
material, organosilicon, dichloromethane, PVC and caustic
soda etc., and the major energy consumption in the
production process is electricity and coal. In 2017, the
Group’s COz equivalent was 1,422,930.6t, with its CO2
intensity amounting to 1.4t/10,000 RMB of output value; the
Group's energy conservation is up to 10,264t standard coal,
with CO2 emission reduction of 22,683.44t.

The energy use of the Group in the recent two years is

shown as follows:

ERER 20165 EFEE 20175 HFEE
Use type Consumption in 2016 Consumption in 2017
EHEEE=E HNIEE 1,333,253,764/% 1,399,634,177/%
Grid power consumption Purchased electricity 1,333,253,764kWh 1,399,634,177kWh
FHEE mEHEE 605,355 610,129M
Coal consumption Total coal consumption 605,355t 610,129t
EEE 169,380,000/% 154,800,000
Generating capacity 169,380,000kWh 154,800,000kWh
b 78,089F 121,917
Gasoline 78,089L 121,911L
e 4,887FF 5,392.06FF
Diesel 4,887L 5,392.06L
FERRERES
Comprehensive energy 623,198MATZ 5 643,860 1Z

consumption

623,198t standard coal

643,860t standard coal
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The Group has advocated the water conservation and
recycling in the production operation, working hard to
improve the utilization factor of water resources. The
Company has strictly controlled the consumption of process
water and domestic water, all workshops are held liable for
the water equipment and pipelines under their jurisdiction,
which shall be free from any leakage and venting. The
Company has organized to install the wastewater reclamation
system or water recycling system, tried hard to collect the
recyclable waste water for workshop, recycled and treated
the water discharged to the water purification station, and
preferred to use the reclaimed water treated based on
production requirements. In addition, with the higher voice
for water resources shortage and environmental protection,
the subsidiary companies are actively exploring the water
treatment technology, and undertaking the water treatment
project of Yellow River, so that the treated Yellow River water
can meet the process water-making standard from pure
water. To encourage the employees to save water, the Group
has formulated the Water Use Management Regulations,
and raised their water-saving awareness by supervision and
publicity campaign etc. In 2017, the Group has consumed
water of 14,600,000t in total, with water consumption
intensity of 14.4t/RMB10,000 revenue, and saved water
resources of 45,632t.
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6.3 Emissions management

The Group has highly valued the standardized emissions
management, and in strict accordance with applicable laws
and regulations, taken appropriate treatment measures
to minimize the impacts of production process on the
environment.

Solid waste management

The Group has taken effective measures to ensure the solid
wastes are subject to innocent treatment or integrated
utilization. For the most common calcium sulfate residue
and acetylene sludge in chemical enterprises, the Group and
all companies have employed the comprehensive reuse of
resources, with calcium sulfate slag functioning as gypsum
and part of carbide slag functioning as desulfurization agent
for power plants and as anhydrous calcium chloride, at a
utilization ratio of 100%. The hazardous wastes shall, in strict
accordance with the Standardized Management Indexes
for Generators of Industrial Hazardous Wastes by Ministry
of Environmental Protection, be quarterly reported, and
kept the disposal accounts; the Group and all companies
have built incinerators for hazardous waste to dispose
around 90% of hazardous wastes by incineration and other
measures, and those unable to be self-disposed shall be
in strict accordance with the compliance disposal of five
duplicates for transfer of hazardous wastes. On the basis
of standardized management, Safety and Environmental
Protection Divisions from all companies have reinforced the
site management of hazardous wastes in the production,
storage and transportation process, to prevent environmental
risks. In 2017, the Group has entrusted qualified third parties
to dispose hazardous wastes of 617.64t, with a generation
intensity of 0.0006t/RMB10,000 revenue.
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Type of emissions

years are shown as follows:

2016 FHEE

Emissions in 2016

The emissions of solid wastes of the Group in the recent two

2017 B E

Emissions in 2017

FRELBEZRENHEE

Total hazardous wastes

FIEABREEEYES
Total non-hazardous wastes

3¢ WEHE2016FREPHE TR - BH2016 3:
FHEAELHRE  BENEE  mA

BE M 90ME 99.59MF
Waste oll 90t 99.59t
REAE(L A 3941 285.79MF
Dead catalyst 394t 285.79t
REEERE S 200
Incinerator residue 5t 20t
HW1 B e R RE Z ) 520 160.681

(REWREERINENE D) 520 160.68t
HW11 hazardous wastes

(directly transported without

incineration)
HW45 38 f& iz Bx 22 17 (MR ) 8350 51580
HW45 hazardous wastes (t) 835t 51.58t
FHEL) 800MA i
Fine silicon powder 800t 0t
BERMIE 181,606.5M8 183,038.7MF
Cinder of power plant 181,606.5t 183,038.7t
BT R 1.2 1.26MF
E-waste 1.2t 1.26t
AR A8ME SOMA
Household refuse 48t 50t
AR 1218 1318
Office waste 12t 13t
Hih Y 350,000 343,071W8
Other wastes (BERB) EHE)

350,000t 343,071t

(acetylene sludge)

(acetylene sludge)

The information disclosed herein is not the same as that in
2016 annual report, which represents total emissions (including

R BB RREREERINER D -

REEEBRAR —E—tFFR

incineration), while this statistics represents the portion directly
transported without incineration.
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Wastewater management

The Group has carried out the grading treatment to
wastewater in the park, subject to hierarchical evaluation.
Wastewater from all companies has, from the source, been
divided into ammonia wastewater, fluoride wastewater
and high COD wastewater, which are subject to primary
disposal by entrusting the environmental protection design
manufacturers to build and design the ammonia wastewater
treatment plant, defluorination wastewater treatment
plant and triple effect evaporation or advanced oxidation
processing plant respectively; after the primary treatment,
the wastewater is converged to the companies’ synthetical
sullage treatment (secondary treatment) and then to the
Group’s sewage treatment (tertiary treatment), for the up-
to-standard discharge in strict accordance with the standard
requirements. The Company has achieved the online real-
time monitoring to the wastewater discharge, at a discharge
of 12,000t/d..

The discharge of wastewater of the Group in the recent two
years is shown as follows:

BERER 2016F HkE 2017 B E
Type of emissions Discharge in 2016 Discharge in 2017
BEKPEN S 3,960,0000 3,300,0001%
Total discharge of wastewater 3,960,000t 3,300,000t
CODHFR = 178.2M8 128.7MA
COD emissions 178.2t 128.7t
[ARBEME 17821 12.87Mf
Ammonia nitrogen emissions 17.82t 12.87t
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Type of emissions

Exhaust gas management

The Group has ensured the exhaust emission on standard
by increasing the investment in environmental protection
and technical transformation etc. At present, the waste gas
pollutants from the Group and all companies are dominantly
SOz, NOx, dust and volatile organic compound etc.

The emissions of exhaust gas of the Group in the recent two
years are shown as follows:

2016 F HHE

Emissions in 2016

2017F Bk E

Emissions in 2017

—&fbmEEmE
SO2 emissions
REmmE
NOx emissions
MEHE
Dust emissions
e e =g L)

Volatile organic compound

0177FEEEE 7S KRB S
E(LDARIE B - F R £E3000M8 HFC-23
QAR YR BEIE B 1 E R 8 1K Bk AR
MOETIR3ERE TR - AR YE
IS K RIRIB S R o SR IRRUE R
{EE(DAREB Bt T B ER
HE1721131E - E1EZERVOCSHEHE
55.923M : F R E3000MEHFC-23 & & biR
LB HEIR B —BBKLED BRHFC23 -
RO HEBERE  FFRHENZ
SbiE 2538138 - ERGBE HER
HETRIEEREREMARE T RES
PR ERE EEIRRRIEETTRE R
HE - SR EFE AR BE = A iT129
WE - A28 o
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1,413M8 175M8
1,413t 175t
6948 316,118
694t 316.1t
182ME 114.67W8
182t 114.67t
87ME 76.98M
87t 76.98t

In 2017, the Group has implemented intensively the leak
detection and repair (LDAR) project, emission reduction
project with annual incineration of 3,000t HFC-23
hydrofluorocarbons, and renovation project for ultra-low
emissions of power plant, thereby minimizing effectively
the pollution to the atmospheric environment in local areas.
The LDAR project has completed 172,113 controlled seal
points in total, and after repair, achieved the VOCS emission
reductions of 55.923t; the emission reduction project with
annual incineration of 3,000t HFC-23 hydrofluorocarbons
has incinerated and decomposed HFC23 to reduce the
greenhouse effect, and the CO2 equivalent reduced annually
is 38.13 million tons; the ultra-low emissions project of power
plant is the in-depth retrofitting to environmental protection
facilities based upon the up-to-standard discharge of existing
desulfurization and denitrification works, and the retrofitted
facilities may annually reduce SO2 emissions by 129t, and
NOx 112t.
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With various measures, the Group’s emission reductions in
the reporting period are shown below:

R

Emission reductions

ZabFREEE
SO2 emissions
RENYREEE
NOx emissions
MEREEE

Dust emissions

MERE

SEERATEHL SRR - HAREE TS
Ak REFIARGEBIREE - A a0
BAEINATIED  STEMEASGRE
HINERR T RS FEE - AHMERNTTE
HEAERIELE o

7.

38,381 408
38,381.4t
727.7W8
7277t
81,350.5M8
81,350.5t

Harmonious Development

The Group has highly valued the talent and social development,
internally safequarded the employees’ legitimate rights and
interests, adhered to the talent concept of “Reflecting values with
benefits, and using wealth to return intelligence”, and created
a harmonious cultural environment; externally, it has actively
involved in the public welfare undertakings, giving back to the
community in its own action and power.
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W 30ERU T
Under 30

W 41-50885%
Aged between
41-50

mSEMET
Male employees
ZHET

Female employees
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Respecting employees’ rights and interests

The Group has, in strict accordance with the Labor Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations,
respected and valued the legitimate rights and interests
of all employees, and completely eradicated any form of
inequities arising from the gender, territory, nationality,
religion, age, political affiliation and other aspects in terms
of the recruitment, remuneration, training and promotion
etc., ensuring all employees enjoy the fair, equitable and
prejudice-free treatment and work environment. For the
basic labor issues, such as hiring child laborers and forced
labour etc. the Group has taken a zero tolerance attitude
no matter in the rules and regulations or supervisory
mechanism, putting an end to the possibility of any labor
issues. As at the end of the reporting period, Dongyue Group
has a total number of 5409 employees, 87% of which are
local residents.

54%

31-4038 5% B AFEREET
Aged between 31-40 Local residents
5088 R A 1= SMBPEEB T
Aged over 50 Non-local residents
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7.2 Helping staff development

The Group has created a clear and perfect career
advancement path, developed the Rank Promotion
Management for Group Cadres and Employees to ensure
the guarantee the fairness and transparency. The Group
has divided the rank promotion into the cadre promotion,
job title promotion, employee promotion, promotion for
highly educated and professional talents, and following the
principles of giving priority to performance, equal stress
on integrity and ability, and ready to accept promotion
or demotion, combined effectively the enterprise
development with the employees’ career design, and
offered an unobstructed promotion channel to employees
on all positions of the Group, fully mobilizing their working
enthusiasm and creativity.

To match up the talent development mechanism and build
a learning organization, the Group has formulated the
Guidelines for the New Employee Training, Guidelines for On-
the-Job Training Examination and Assessment, Regulations
on Management of Employee Job-transfer Training and other
training-related system documents, and helped all employees
improve their professional and knowledge levels with multi-
level and multi-type training. In the training management
mechanism, the Group has set up the 4-level training
management system. In 2017, the Group has put forward the
annual training plans, and conducted 11 training centering
on the “On-demand training” of all functional departments,
and 51 training on the worker safety, professional job skills,
high-risk operations, special training, outsourcing personnel
management etc,, involving 6,100 trainees in total.
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&£E
FEF O
Group training
center

AR
BFIEEA
Corporate
training head

BEER
BEIEEA

Workshop
training head

RV
BFINEEA
Job training

head

Group

Chart: 4-level training management system of Dongyue

BEREMNFIIER  BiTmE -
HFEBERE

To take charge of training management to all subsidiaries, perform the position duties of
inspection, supervision, guidance, tracking and service, and make great efforts to the Group’s
training in an all-round way

Bie - B8 Ri - RBOHECERE - 2@

ey A e T )
EEMRA BRI RET
To be held by Heads of General Management Departments for all companies
BERAMNEIIIE - mEBRFIIESAEBNTRER
To take charge of the company’s training, inspect and supervise the completion believed by
the training instructor )

BHEFEEE
To be held by Workshop Director

BEITERQEI - 158 BERBREMEBEERNEUEIESZERNER -

ZH UARFABME TEARMSEE - 5FilITE

To take charge of workshop training, guide, supervise and inspect the replacement of answer
sheets of required technical knowledge and skills, examination for workshop posts, as well as
the basic knowledge learning and training to new comers

\

y,

B RET
To be held by foremen

T T = KRR NFIT AR E TR AE S m 157 - Hia LI ABHER
weetEil - MUTERERNMESAULT ANEIRSEINES - &3 - ZHK
JER - AMBLME

To focus on the training of three regulations to employees, and on-the-job training of
required technical knowledge and skills for new comers, the training of technical skills
to job-transfer and post-merger employees, replacement of post answer sheets and
examination as well as the examination, attendance, registration of exam results, archiving
of monthly training of required technical knowledge and skills
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In addition, the Group has pushed continuously forward
the institutionalization of innovation exchange mechanism,
created a professional communication platform and
facilitated the employees to learn from each other. In
2017, the Group has convened 21 internal experience
innovation exchange meetings, edited and printed 13 issues
of exchange bulletins. Of which, it has made 20 technical
exchanges, shared 50 internal experiences, achieved 21
conference results, collected 32 rationalization proposals, and
put forward 53 professional suggestions.

Care for employees’ life

As the employees’ physical and mental health is particularly
crucial to the task performance, the Group has launched
activities with motion and stillness features, caring for
their recreation needs. In 2017, Dongyue Group has
organized successively a series of activities, including the
staff photography exhibition of “Time Impression 30 Years,
Shadow Lens Seeing Development”, the painting and
calligraphy exhibition and poetry reading for celebrating
the factory anniversary, the talent show for staff's children,
“Thinking, sharing & converging” exchange of thoughts
between cadres and employees, Dongyue cross country
race titled "Vibrant Youth, Healthy Running” for cadres and
employees, so as to strengthen the employees’ sense of
belonging and the team cohesiveness. The Group has further
held the “Dongyue Ten Outstanding Young Persons”, “Elite
League Cadres” and other selection activities, and given the
deeds reports, to arouse the work enthusiasm of cadres and
employees.

Meanwhile, Dongyue Group has specially set up love funds
to assist the needy employees, the Group’s top executives
have donated from their remunerations a proportion of
money to replenish these love funds, annually RMB300,000-
500,000 in total. During the 2017 Spring Festival, the Group
has paid a visit to 87 needy employees, sending each the
consolation money of RMB1,000 and the Spring Festival
supplies.
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Supporting public welfare

The Group is concerned about the people’s well-being, and
actively supports the public welfare undertakings by means
of charitable donation, volunteer service and support to
community building etc. As at the end of reporting period,
Dongyue Group has donated accumulatively RMB178 million
to the education, transportation, health and other social
and public welfare undertakings, glorious cause and disaster
areas. In the 2017 Charity Day Donation, the Group has raised

NTHAARES ARYE#HE - RMB300,000. To regulate the use of public welfare donation,

BENETHE r BEBRFEEI0E the Group has founded four public welfare funds to support

JC © the education, pension and employee care, with an annual

donation of up to RMB3 million.
* REEEOXRAZES
Table Four Public Welfare Funds of Dongyue Group

He£H PR LB HERAZ

Name Year of establishment Targeted people and its purpose

REHEESR 200045 FAP BB AR M0 2 E 2R AR AR R VR BRI B R Ak 4R
WELE  WHEREBEFETNEEYIREEE]

Dongyue Education Fund 2000 To reward the local teachers with outstanding teaching
performance and students with outstanding academic
achievements. Dongyue Studies were established for the
middle and primary schools in Huantai County

REGZES 20074 AR B R/E ILA80RRIA =& AR RE2007T £ EfH AL

Dongyue Elder Respecting 2007 To provide an allowance of RMB200 to elders aged over 80

Fund in Tangshan Town

RERZES 200045 ARBERE « ||REBTAXEBRHEFXNERLNES
25

Dongyue Scholarship Fund 2000 To reward the students of Tsinghua University and
Shandong University of Technology with outstanding
academic achievements

REBLES 20054 R EIREE S THEITHRE)

Dongyue Staff-caring Fund 2005 To support the Group staff in financial difficulties
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In terms of volunteer activity, the Group has, in 2017,
organized successively employees to put on performance
for the elderly in Tangshan Town Nursing Home and
condole to Huantai County Children Welfare. The Group
has actively participated in the community maintenance
and construction, always supported and involved in the
surrounding community fire rescues. Furthermore, accidents
have happened frequently at the intersection of power plant,
and to ensure the pedestrian safety, the Group has, after
communication with government departments concerned,
finalized to set additional traffic lights and signboards at its
own expense; the Group's Security Department has timely
cooperated and harmonized with the fluorosilicone company
to do well in the bidding and tendering of adding traffic
lights, and completed the erection of traffic lights.
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To the members of Dongyue Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 111 to 218, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

HZEFRREHEBNER

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRESEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 BUCRERER G

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB1,626 million, net of impairment.

We had identified impairment of trade receivables as a
key audit matter because significant judgements had
to be made for the assessment of the recoverability for
each debtor including trading history, credit history and
estimated future cash flow. Management has concluded that
no impairment of trade receivables was recognised in the
Group's consolidated profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENBFUMEERRENSER

Our audit procedures to address the impairment of trade
receivables included the following:

Testing the accuracy of the ageing of receivables balances
on a sample basis;

Testing on large individual aged receivables balances,
understanding the rationale for management’s
provisioning decisions by reference to payment patterns
during the year as well as other information available; and

Assessing the level of cash collected by the business after
the year end of past due receivable balances to consider
any additional provisioning requirements.
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Key audit matter

BRESEE

Impairment assessment of available-for-sale investments

AHEERERE G

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had available-for-sale
investments with the carrying amount of RMB1,221 million,
and no impairment has been made in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group recognises impairment for available-for-sale
investments in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when there is
objective evidence of impairment, which includes when
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the investments. The impairment recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is the cumulative difference
between cost and fair value. The impairment assessment
for available-for-sale investments is significant and
determination of whether there is objective evidence of
impairment involves significant management judgement.
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Independent Auditor's Report

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENBTNMEERRENER

Our audit procedures to address the impairment assessment of
available-for-sale investments included the following:

We discussed with management whether there was any
objective evidence of impairment of individual available-
for-sale investment as at 31 December 2017 and critically
challenged management’s assertions and conclusions;

We assessed whether there was objective evidence of
impairment for the available-for-sale investments where
there was a cumulative loss as at 31 December 2017; and

We obtained the latest financial information of the
investees, and performed certain procedures to assess
the reasonableness of the view of the management
that whether the impairment of the available-for-sale
investments made by management was sufficient.

BEEHAHEEREBEMEATHETEFEENAT -

BEREEEN WA EERN I HEEREN2017F128
INALRBENTATEER  URHTEREEENET
SRS

m#u%ﬁﬁ?“ﬂ@ﬁﬁ“%ﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬁmmwﬁ
12431 B IR ZETEE

BELDESIIRENROMNPBER - AEETET

B AHEEEENER D AN R EEEELN
AHEERERERERRE

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2017 105



18 M A% A

Independent Auditor's Report

Key audit matter

BRESEE

Business acquisition

S T

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
completed the acquisition of Shandong Boda Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., and Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate
Development Co,, Ltd., both are private entities established
in the PRC and engaged in real estate development
business.

We had identified business acquisition as a key audit matter
because significant management judgement for purchase
price allocation (e.g. property for sale and remaining
goodwill balance) and special attention on accounting
treatment were required.

BHZE2017F1N2A30HIEEE  AEBTHRRWEILEIFEX
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENBTNMEERRENER

Our major audit procedures to address the business acquisition
included the following:

We examined the sales and purchase agreement for the
acquisition and enquired the management the basis
determination of completion date of acquisition and
tested the supporting thereof;

We tested the purchase price allocation in which we
especially focused on the valuation of net assets amount
and the property for sale amount. We particularly focused
on the related fair value adjustments;

We discussed with management and the independent
external valuer engaged by the Company in relation to
the methodology and assumptions adopted in arriving
at the forecast in valuing the property for sale amount,
to see whether the methodology and assumptions were
reasonable;

We checked on a sample basis the accuracy and reliance
of the input data used;

We assessed the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experiences and
qualifications; and

We tested the adequacy of the related disclosures.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yip Kai Yin with practising certificate number
PO5131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B F2017F 12431 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20174 2016%F
B5E AR®T Tt ARETF T
2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Was Revenue 6 10,137,137 7,969,773
THERA Cost of sales (7,072,865) (6,328,718)
ES| Gross profit 3,064,272 1,641,055
Hapdg A Other income 7 225,467 186,667
DM HER Distribution and selling expenses (313,959) (283,058)
TS Administrative expenses (656,333) (387,610)
A ERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investment - (42,324)
EEERE Impairment of intangible assets (17,485) -
7 R RS Research and development expenses (94,609) (73,947)
A& KA Finance costs 8 (112,890) (166,229)
i AN e Share of results of associates 47,310 (12,440)
BR 5 A A Profit before tax 2,141,773 862,114
Ry Income tax expense 9 (459,974) (246,648)
FREFREERALTE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 10 1,681,799 615,466
TIE T R & Profit and total comprehensive
FEIRALERE income attributable to:
S Y/NEIE 2PN - Owners of the Company 1,601,397 588,154
— JEPE R AR R A - Non-controlling interests 80,402 27,312
1,681,799 615,466
BB F Earnings per share 13
—EE(ARE) — Basic (RMB) 0.76 0.28
— S (ARE) — Diluted (RMB) 0.76 028
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2017

201745 20164
BaE AR® T ARETT
2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FIRBEE Non-current assets
/E N Y Property, plant and equipment 15 3,804,155 3,874,258
BEWE  MWERREZ Prepayments for purchase of
SELNE S property, plant and equipment 50,013 8,682
RS Prepaid lease payments 16 466,666 472,533
THAE S B FRIE Prepayment for land lease - 82,000
EEAE Intangible assets 17 81,647 107,225
RERE N AR Interests in associates 18 - 10,283
AIHHERE Available-for-sale investments 19 1,221,292 1,152,959
EIEFIIEE B Deferred tax assets 20 246,398 451,653
[EEES Goodwill 21 123,420 85,894
it yNC R N Deposit paid for acquisition of
e associates = 59,800
5,993,591 6,305,287
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 989,229 710,968
EHERG 2 Properties for sale 23 1,805,943 407,220
EREE Prepaid lease payments 16 14,754 13,603
g5 K HE e B Trade and other receivables 24 1,970,471 1,208,975
LEER Entrusted loans 25 - 30,000
BIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 32,860 106,703
WITEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 26 1,471,116 2,082,361
6,284,373 4,559,830
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 MEMmENFRIE Trade and other payables 27(a) 2,345,168 1,950,444
REBEME  ES Deposits from pre-sale of properties 27(b) 359,918 98,527
BE Borrowings 28 1,076,021 1,797,700
MIEEE Tax liabilities 94,485 61,534
PRIEWA Deferred income 29 25,359 27,925
3,900,951 3,936,130
REBEEEE Net current assets 2,383,422 623,700
HEERARBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 8,377,013 6,928,987
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R2017%12431H
At 31 December 2017

201745 2016%F
B 5 ARET T ARETT
2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EXRR#E Capital and reserves
f& s Share capital 30 200,397 200,397
& Reserves 6,509,335 5,187,611
EANCIE ZEPN AL Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 6,709,732 5,388,008
FEFE I A B R R Non-controlling interests 602,679 298,243
RS Total equity 7,312,411 5,686,251
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
EFEUT A Deferred income 29 227,721 252,057
EIEFITEAE Deferred tax liabilities 20 92,081 58,679
ge Borrowings 28 744,800 932,000
1,064,602 1,242,736
8,377,013 6,928,987

BINE2I8E AV BRERSLESZEN2018F  The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to 218 were
3ABHE R WlE T ATEKE  approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29
F: March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

RER RE I
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
EE FE
Director Director
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Consolidated Statfement of Changes in Equity

(201712731 HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

LIGEEIN
Attributable to owners of the Company
HE #ER
Ba  REEE BREGE ofEE RARE  BBRE  REEH gt heEs it
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(W) () (M
Share Statutory Non-
Share Share option Merger Capital ~ Surplus  Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total  interests Total
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBODD  RMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO0
(Note 3 (Note b) (Note )

W16E1R1RER Balance at 1 January 2016 00540 12697 391844 (32210) 10153 137880 2149 4801539 086 507237

ERERREENALEE Profitand total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 588,154 588,15 7312 615466

gx Trangler - - - - 506 - - 506 % 601

Bt Lapsed ofshare options - - s - - B - - -

BEREHRD Shares repurchased and cancelled (183) 0089 - - - - - 2197) - 2197)

WIEEN AN LR Balance at 31 December 2016 200397 1224924 - (322100 102,040 737882 3154975 5388008 298243 5,686,251

EREHREINALE Proftand toal compreensive ncome or the year - - - - - - 1600397 1601397 80402 1,681,799

B Transfer - - - - 660 75,100 (75,100 660 124 784

HERREER A Capialcontrbution rom non-controllng nterests = - . . . . . - oman

£RAH Business combination - - - - 10376 . - 10376 - 10376

EERE Dividends declared - - - - - - (290709 (290,709) - (290709)

WIENENREY Balance at 31 December 2017 M7 1249 N0 IBOE 8% 430 69T GRS 3NN

M3k Notes:

(@) APHEFERENR2006F M2 EBEA - (@) Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.

(b) F2007F11H168 - RARIEEMEFRAIE ETER&R (b)  On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000
H{E0.13E 7T 2 iM% 275,000,0008% « ez EHE L EiH previously issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased
IREBE = Z B E 2 A AT B AREEITAR A —HHEsH o ordinary shares were cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share
ﬂ EI #£11 58.4,000,000,00048 AR E1E0.1 8 T 2 # capital as of that date. On the same date, the authorised share capital was

1% 5 TE IR AN 3 Z400,000,0007% T © ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ" increased to HK$400,000,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary
2007@11)51 158 2 33 4 B 3 8 7275,000,0000% & A T shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were
B0.18 T2 # & d R o gﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁtﬂaﬁﬁﬁﬂx@ then issued to the shareholders existing on 15 November 2007. The excess of
EE 2 FEEE ARG - the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of new shares issued was

credited directly to the capital reserve.
AP B8 A B FETE AR AR R AN B R IME e AR /R B IR AR The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
RREREZRS  RELEZBEEwEaER subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and
MR A fE D8R S8 o the corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against
capital reserve.

(© BEREAREME(HER])QGHERMBEA FBL (@) Inaccordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and
ZRME - ARFFEWNEAREGESRBRETEH the relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are
SEHEAETE 2B EF10%2 & EEBEAETE R G required to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as
s - determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory

surplus reserve.
ETERBEEASHHMBARREMER 3D Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity of each PRC Subsidiary
;ﬁ%ﬁ?%@]*ﬁﬁ?%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁKSO%Z@%ﬁ R 7a# and when its balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered

DB o BBFRERNBDE » AT RBRFEE A AEE capital, further appropriation is not required. According to the Company Law
?ﬁi@?f@ﬁ?ﬁ AN R TG E S BRI R N o of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve may be used to make up past losses, to

increase production and business operations or to increase capital by means of
conversion.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B 22017 12A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

20175 201645
ARET T ARETTT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
MR F5 B A Profit before tax 2,141,773 862,114
FARIEE Adjustments for:
FbE AR Finance costs 112,890 166,229
FIEWA Interest income (8,583) (32,512)
AU N 5i) Realisation of deferred income (28,022) (30,333)
(BmE), HRESHEWTIERME  (Reversed)/Recognition of impairment
on trade receivables (22,541) 22,751
B Ny Depreciation and amortisation 702,523 721,030
BEENES Release of prepaid lease payments 13,856 13,469
MREE Write-down of inventories 4,129 5,200
il kNG Share of results of associates (47,310) 12,440
AHEERERBKA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments (135,685) (14,768)
HEWE - s M RBER Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment 196,076 35910
\|ILEERE Impairment of intangible assets 17,485 -
REEE N E 2B RE Impairment of investment in associates = 995
Al ERERE Impairment of available-for-sale investments = 42,324
W gE & N E) 2 W Gain on acquisition of associate = (22,723)
BEESHHA KL ERE Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 2,946,591 1,782,126
FEEM Increase in inventories (282,390) (2,707)
BENEMEWRIEE), B (ncrease)/decrease in trade and other receivables (598,676) 160,427
ERERGR 2 EEZMEGEM) (Increase)/decrease in properties under
Ve : v development for sale (165,931) 380,209
B 5 N H i FE A~ 2 A Decrease in trade and other payables (819,898) (243,252)
RETEEMEZIRESIEI,(RY) Increase/(decrease) in deposits from pre-sale
of properties 261,391 (324,143)
EFEY AL AN Increase in deferred income 1,119 17,509
LESRE Cash generated from operations 1,342,206 1,770,169
BAFTS T RIENF Income taxes and withholding tax paid (220,019) (224,014)
RETHRBRSFHE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,122,187 1,546,155
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHZ2017F12H31 HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

20175 201645
ARET T ARETTT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
ME=FIREEIER Entrusted loans to third parties = (284,500)
EBEYE  MWEBNERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (830,345) (448,779)
B ()78 L& Receipt/(payment) for prepaid land lease 72,860 (98,998)
BEBTEE Purchase of intangible assets (3,881) (360)
FZHEEZTER Repayment of entrusted loans from third parties - 590,800
2 U F 8 Interest received 8,583 32,512
iR B ISR T AT 15 F0E Proceeds from release of pledged bank deposits 73,843 6,511
HEYE BB RREBATSRE Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment 3,839 1,564
AHEEERERBUA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 135,685 14,768
U B8 — R B 8 A B FTURER 2 3% & Deposit received for acquisition of a subsidiary = 165,897
IR A N E 2 IR Refund of /(deposit paid for) acquisition 59,800 (52,550)
(T iEe) of associates
WM B A RIMIRE R Cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries (29,290) -
BEHEERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (68,333) -
REFBFMARSFE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (577,239) (73,135)
MEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EEMSRIE Proceeds from borrowings 1,227,000 1,249,787
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (2,213,879) (1,939,452)
ERFE Interest paid (112,890) (166,229)
BB R RaF iR Shares repurchased and cancelled = 2,191)
BRI S Dividends paid (290,707) -
IR R T B Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 234,283 -
MEFBFMARSFE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,156,193) (858,085)
RERERRSBEMMFELE  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (611,245) 614,935
FYRERERRELER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,082,361 1,467,426
FXRRAERERALEAE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR
Bl - represented by:
RITHEBRRR S Bank balances and cash 1,471,116 2,082,361

116 REEBARXIE —2—tFFR
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(Z2017F 12831 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, P. O. Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10
December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 36.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture,
distribution and sale of refrigerants, polymers, organic silicone
and dichloromethane, polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and liquid alkali
and others. In addition, the Group is also engaged in property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

The addresses of principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards

Amendments to IFRSs and a new interpretation
that are mandatorily effective for the current year
ended 31 December 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time in the
current year the following amendments and a new interpretation
to International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Amendments to |AS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

The application of the amendments to IFRSs and the interpretation
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group'’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Application of new and revised accounting

standards (Continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations and

amendments issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRIC 22

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 40

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or its
Joint Venture*

Transfers of Investment Property’

201851 A1 Ak 2 8RR 2 FE HI AR
201941 A1 83k 2 B FA 2 G E HRR A K
EA2020¢1 R8sz %52 FE AR AR

R AT B Bk 2 85 2 I BRI AR

AW N =

EERHIERBR Y SREER AT A&
(ERTERI (T XPREERRSN) SR & TR K
WEBEAFE

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Now o —

The Directors anticipate that the application of the new and
revised IFRSs, other than those set out below, will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or
value in use in IAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the carrying amounts of the
non- controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS
19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
IAS 39, or IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquire prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.



3. TEETHR(EA)

REEQRNRE

BENRRAREEAEAFEINERE -
BEAFENESERRE NG N EEBR
RTERVRE N - B IFFE B SR KRR HIRZ F IR
% o

BENRNFENNREERABENED SR

ENZEREWHRERNRE - (FREREDA
Rz BaRBZMBRRTVIREREE
RER S RFABEATER A —STHR
fmEL - IRERERE - RERRNRENS
BRARGE M BHONRIER - WK EHRER
ERASERGZEE A ARNER R EME
EWATAFE - ERKERIGH SRR
BIEBHASERZBE AR NER(BHE
BE ERRARERZBE R AREFHE—
Mo mEA R BER)E - AEEBUSRER
HEENE-TER - ERAKBEELE
ESREEEL  AERRZBE QRN
ERIERT T e REREINEE

R—EERABANRERBIRE T KA —H
B NEz BRAEREAR - EIRBRN—
B E RRMIRER - REKANBBAEHE
[RGB A BB E R B EAFEF
ENTAROERBEE - Wt ARENK
EfE - AREREABIEERBBENRF
FEBBRERANNEMED - REFHFE
BRAERERWIE O EF AR N8R TR -

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with 1AS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Specifically, revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective properties
have been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statements of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E{2E20176F 12531 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE201712 31 HIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where the current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Z2017F 12831 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non- monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below),
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of these payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed
above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, internally- generated intangible asset is reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification.

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expire during the period or will expire in
the near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2017 139



mEMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(22017912431 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. TEETHERE)
BLEE(R)

g2 R E ()
bi%2) %(TFEEEH Fﬁ S E R I8 F
AIRE S A CEHRMFHEEEZ
EEETETT%E@&DJ%EJ%EE%%*%E
Yeml e

fW—IBEEZREERD AR WE S ER
APREEBEEREBEARER

7E
FER &S A HIRIR KA E R 235 FE
BIREDIAR ° AR IEFIERE - 7]

I FERETFENMGHE BRI {7
PR AN R 1T 5 6 T AT HO RS ©

EHERR ZME

HERGEETELERG IR IMERE
EMESTARBDEE  WIEKA R AT ZIRF
EPFREEFER KABEIWENES R
MERBERR - MEFBERABIREEN
N RBAEES +Eﬁlﬁ§$ft21ﬁ&ﬁi$
NABMEELE 2 BREERAN - FAERE
BB BURATIRAIEFIDEEE

AERFHEE BRRATAMER 2B - Mk
BRAHER X MIERR TR

140 REEEERAE —B—tFFR

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration rights (Continued)
sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties and properties under development for
sale in the ordinary course of business are included in current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises both the prepaid lease payments for land and
development costs for the properties. Development costs
of properties comprise construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised according to the Group's accounting policy and directly
attributable costs incurred during the development period. Cost of
each unit in each phase of development is determined using the

weighted average method.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and the

anticipated costs to completion.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Properties for sale (Continued)

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change of intention to hold the property
to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for
sale in ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any
difference between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-
sale investments. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale instruments

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its costs
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days or 180 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating-units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognized in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will continue to be
held in share option reserve.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability and
determines the provision for impairment of trade receivables in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3. Such
estimation is based on the credit history of its customers and
the current market conditions. Management reviews the debtor
settlement status periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of
provision accordingly.
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4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product
lifecycles and economic life of property, plant and equipment.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The aggregate carrying value of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2017 is RMB3,804,155,000
(2016: RMB3,874,258,000). Further details are disclosed in note 15

to the consolidated financial statements.



4. (EFFAREMHNEEZRR(E)

EREBIEEE

HAKEEEERRARREATELIRAD
AR E R 28 - HEBEIHERLT
A SH R R B A - RIS HER R T Al H
HMERZRLHABEEENELERASE
ZE - WEHSBERT AR - ZFER
SR BRLRIAEENTER -

RIRRE

TEBENRBEEEGEEROERE - 3EE
RNEBFBERFBES - REER2017F108
BEREE  AHMF - 22019F10A Lk -
KEPEERERERE  WASEIRE
i R BUA R A W/ B8 BB 2B PTIE A2
REARBNY ARAEEBHRTELE
RARER A e A S B EEH KRR -
At - NAREFHEAREE R 2019F
10 A FREE A 21 HA 18 LA/ NBR AR [m) AR B BT 5
PIEERERE - ttoN - AR RIESFRBHF
BEMARE S ETHERERERE -

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E{2E20176F 12531 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the Group’s
management considers it is probable that the future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses or tax credit can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets.

Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have a finite validity period, after
which the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group'’s
exploration rights were renewed in October 2017 for a period
of two years till October 2019. Having checked the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC, the directors of the Company
anticipate that there is no material legal impediments would
prevent the Group from renewing its exploration rights provided
that the Group submits the relevant application documents in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations to the
relevant PRC government authority. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company believe the Group will be able to renew the
exploration rights with the relevant government authority upon
the expiry of the exploration rights in October 2019 at insignificant
cost. In addition, the directors of the Company assess the
impairment of the exploration rights by estimating the recoverable
amount of the assets.
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4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings disclosed
in note 28, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
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5. EXEREUMBEKEEERE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

RBER(E) objectives and policies (Continued)
(a) EMIENES (a) Categories of financial instruments
20174 2016%F
ARBT R AREBTT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERMEE Financial assets
ERREWFIE(BIER Loans and receivables (including
EIRERITIFR - BITHEER KR pledged bank deposits,
Bg) bank balances and cash) 3,429,326 3,458,941
AIHEHERE Available-for-sale investments 1,221,292 1,152,959
4,650,618 4,611,900
ERERE Financial liabilities
SR A Amortised cost 3,084,119 3,816,216
(b) BAEEEEE B ERBUR (b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies
REENTEZeRMTAEREE S RHEAM The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
FEMEOE - BIRBIRITER - RITES other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
kB BHREMENRIEMEER - cash, trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of
hEEm T EMFFIERSMEREE o 1t these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
Lo m T ARMERERREETSRR The risks associated with these financial instruments include
(BE¥RREAERR) « EERR &R market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
FEERE  BIELEREREBOBEER and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
TX - AEEEREEEEERERIL are set out below. The Group’s management manages and
LR - DATER R LA N B U 1T monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
bt ) . )
Ryl are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks

(i)

Currency risk

The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar "USS$") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking
into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in
the near future.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

EE aE
Assets Liabilities
20175 20165 20175 2016%F
AR¥BT AREFTT AR¥Tn ARETT
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ESViH uss 379,160 593,559 26,737 24,046

R2017%128318 M AR X
ELFAEEEI0% MAEH
Bigmfig Erm/ THRARE
35,240,0007C(20164F : &,/ EF+
AR #56951000L ) TERA A
BMEAETEENRITEHRE
& BHRHEMBEUYKIERUZE
TEHEMEERE N K Eig
FTER

EEERA FHANARTE
[ BRF AR - BEREE DT
BERKREBINERE -

At 31 December 2017, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB35,240,000 higher/lower (2016: RMB56,951,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated bank
balances and cash, trade and other receivables and US$
denominated borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 28 for
details of these borrowings) and entrusted loans. At
31 December 2017, 20% (2016: 19%) of the Group's
borrowings bear fixed interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, entrusted loans and
variable-rate borrowings (see note 28 for details of
these borrowings).

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate, Hang Seng
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and London Inter-
Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR") arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings and USD borrowings respectively.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis
is prepared on the financial balance at the end of
reporting period. 10 and 25 basis points (2016: 10 and
25 basis points) increase or decrease is used which
represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.
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5. EXEREUMBEKEEERE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
KRB (&)
(b) BHEREAMEEBEERBK(E)

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

G E R ()
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A318 I FE R %8R
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Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2016: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2017 would increase/
decrease by RMB1,098,000 (2016: RMB1,658,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group's exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2016: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would decrease/increase by RMB2,745,000 (2016:
RMB4,146,000), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash and trade and other receivables (except
for prepayments), represent the Group's maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The objective of
the Group’s measures to manage credit risk is to control
potential exposure to recoverability problem. Most of the
Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions in the PRC, which management believes are of
high credit quality.
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5. EXEREUMBEKEEERE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management
KRB (&)
(b) BHEREAMEEBEERBK(E)

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
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Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group assesses the credit worthiness and
financial strength of its customers as well as considering prior
dealing history with the customers. Generally, customers are
granted with credit periods less than 90 days or 180 days
and the Group usually does not require collaterals nor any
credit enhancement from its customers. An aging analysis
of trade and other receivables is set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s management
makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the customers and whether
there are any trade disputes with them.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had available
undrawn borrowing facilities of RMB2,991,000,000 (2016:
RMB806,724,000). Details of which are set out in note 28.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

0175
AMERS 128318

METHE AR 1BMER EAEIE 1EESE REEE  WREE
% ARBTR ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 13 3 months Tyearto undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 2017
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

RorERANA 31 December 2017
S RANENTE Trade and other payables - 700,218 931,715 341,196 15258 1,988,387 1,988,387

fhE Borrowings

-E& - fixed rates 5.01% 849 127,264 162,200 80,415 370,728 357,000
-8 - variable rates 6.92% 5013 64,121 785,104 696,112 1550350 1,463,821
706,080 1,123,100 1,288,500 791,785 3,909,465 3,809,208
0165
rERRE 128318
IET S 1AM 18R EAEE 15255 REEE HEEE
v ARETn  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Canying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 13 3 months lyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows 2016
% RVB0O RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

016512318 31 December 2016
BARERENFR Trade and other payables - 610672 737,069 192587 19621 1,559,949 1,559,949

&8 Borrowings

-EE - fived rates 578 1722 282,560 186,167 61,260 531,709 518300
-8 - variable rates 6.35 57626 231343 1133373 901814 2324156 2211400
670,020 1250972 1512127 982,695 4415814 489,649
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Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
(c) Fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Revenue and segment information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.

The Group's operations are organised based on the different types
of products and property development. Information reported to
the board of directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of products
and property development. This is the basis upon which the
Group is organised.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as follows:
Refrigerants;
Polymers;
Organic silicone;
Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali;

Property development - development of residential
properties at Shandong and Hunan Province, the PRC; and

Other operations — manufacturing and sales of side-products
of refrigerants segment, polymers segment, organic silicone
segment and dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali
segment.
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by

HranT e reportable and operating segment.
20175 2017
LR
BRE  RATHH BEE  PUCRBR  MEME 2HANEE  HfER Hi g
ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTr  ARMTR  ARMTn ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  segments' Other
Refrigerants  Polymers Silicone liquid alkali  development total  operations  Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Hie Bternal saes 2500275 2927843 2,428,256 1604099 285510 9747983 389,154 - 10,137,137
HHRNEE Inter-seqmen sales 1,387,964 - - 4,608 - 139252 T9764  (2,122,336) -
BRE-2BRE  Towlrevenue-segmentrevene 3890239 2,027,843 2,428,256 1608707 285510 11140555  1,118918  (2122336) 10,137,137
DEiES SEGMENT RESULTS 588,442 605,053 433,836 354,554 32,648 2,014,533 237,215 - 2,251,748
FECERY Unallocated corporate expenses (44,395)
FOREMMA Unallocated other income
BERR Finance costs (112,890)
BRBEATEE  Share of resuls of associates 1310
iyl Profit before tax 214,773
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

20165 2016
“EFR
IRH BATHE B PCRBR  MERE REAVEE EMER 4 gE
ARETT  ARBTT  ARETR ARETR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Propety  segments Other

Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liquic alkali ~ development totll  operations  Eliminations Total
RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000
Mg Biemal saes 1884 28763 1684716 121124 g6 7782809 186,964 - 19893
THENEE Inter-segment sales 1,04 368 - - 2999 - 1M 50778 (1568145) -
BRE-DBRE  Toalevenue-seqmentrevenve 2872416 208769 1684716 121428 87106 8830176 WM (156818 7969773
PR SEGMENT RESULTS 193,19 15119 81,004 145,147 308,204 972870 74646 - 1047516
FARGERR Unallocated corporate expenses (0573
RAEEMBA  Unallocated other income 14840
BENL Finance costs (166.229)
ERBEATMEE  Share of resuls of associates (12440
RiAEE Loss before tax 86,114

DEFERAEL BN RARDEEMBA - F
RITBAA - EFHS - BEBERBESE
RBERAT  SOEMEE - L hRAZ
BRRAZHRERAMEERD B R R TS
Mt ERE - ANBREERBENDHE
R FEAAREERBAZRAMEE RN K

RIFFENIER - RABE2DNZEEH -

D ESEMHE IR RITHER & -
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Segment results represent the results of each segment without

allocation of unallocated other income, central administration

costs, directors’ salaries, share of result of associates and finance

costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision

maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment. No segment information on assets and liabilities

is presented as such information is not reported to the chief

operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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W=k oPER (& 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EREREE Entity-wide disclosures
ERRERDEZREREBESHREIRES Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by
K= E R products from external customers
20174 2016%F
ARET T ARETTT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
—@— & FLL(HCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22) 696,063 457,124
PO 2 KE(R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 169,015 186,082
RALIT(R125) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 83,596 69,047
R439A R439A 2,089 1,647
R410a R410a 569,788 294,294
R413A R413A 33,382 34,648
R142b R142b 123,424 42,540
R152a R152a 164,597 148,298
R22 R22 302,045 307,584
R32 R32 180,088 111,127
HAt Others 178,188 175,657
2,502,275 1,828,048
FRRERSEZED FHRIBRE IR Information about revenue from polymers segment by
EFHNBRER products from external customers
20175 2016%F
ARET T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
B PO L1 (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 1,551,160 1,031,301
JNEA I (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 256,997 317,249
N&ERT IR Perfluorocyclobutane 76,114 48,091
2B @A LAE(FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 34,099 18,505
BIR &L )E (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 360,039 341,332
BB (FKM) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 152,550 110,028
1R %81 2 )% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 49,968 17,722
HAh, Others 446,916 303411
2,927,843 2,187,639
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6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by

K= E R products from external customers
20174 20164
ARBT T AREFT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
DMC(ZFREMESESIRE) DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 290,488 292,216
107518 107 Silicone Rubber 927,718 472,796
B Raw Vulcanizate 405,291 252,938
D3(RAREIR=fEEkT) D3 (Hexamethylcyclotrisiloxane) - 168
R Gross Rubber 92,138 55,586
REBRE Gaseous Silica 120,248 106,488
DMCIK 4 DMC Hydrolysate 140,494 117,893
—HRESR Trimethylchlorosilane 65,970 50,909
FEE AR Methyldichlorosilane 4,296 1,958
R AEBDMC DMC Lineament 181,568 168,814
DA\ EIRIMAEAkT) D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane) 18,080 51,837
Hith Others 181,965 113,113
2,428,256 1,684,716
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Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

EEERERER(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

EFRREGRDPBZ-_SHRK - PVCRER D Information about revenue from dichloromethane, PVC and

MEEIREEHWRZER liquid alkali segment by products from external customers
20174 20164
AR¥T ARETIT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
pPVC PVC 615,980 570,223
— &Rk Dichloromethane 214,516 174,921
e Liqui alkali 773,603 466,100
1,604,099 1,211,244

TRRERT B HMEE D MRABIIRE
FHWsER

Information about revenue from other operations segment by
products from external customers

20174 20165F
ARBT T AREFT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AHF (KB E) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 41,793 418
afbaiz Ammonium Bifluoride 59,234 49,445
aEik Hydrofluoric Acid 43,612 32,592
RE Bromine 70,745 61,054
HAt Others 173,770 43,455
389,154 186,964

EREIEEFESR Information about major customers

HE2017F K2016F12A31B IEMEFE &
FRERAE —RPZREMAEBEAHEE
FAMI10%IA b

There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed
over 10% of the total sales of the Group during each of the two
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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6. WzmkoHER(E 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
ih & & # Geographical information
AREBREBINKEE ZWRIRE PR FEIE The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical
PO location of customers is detailed below:
20175 20165
AR¥TF T AREFT
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Fh PRC 8,212,343 6,528,302
M (BrReE BISI) Asia (except PRC)
— B ~ Japan 354,951 314,240
— - South korea 361,571 269,765
—ENE - India 27,176 15,178
— AN - Singapore 23,936 20,554
— R - Thailand 37,576 41,193
— PR AR A R E — United Arab Emirates 104,323 65,207
—EEAE - Pakistan 21,359 16,528
—BRED ~ Malaysia 33,266 25,979
—JEEE - Philippines 6,574 7,667
— i - Viet Nam 20,724 14,614
—THH — Turkey 65,698 37,763
—HA B - Other countries 61,456 65,670
NET Subtotal 1,118,610 894,358
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6. WERDHER (&

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
HWEER(E) Geographical information (Continued)
20176 2016%F
AR®ET T ARET T
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
=M America
— — United States of America 365,765 197,721
—HEr — Brazil 103,264 96,390
—HAb B — Other countries 27,866 20,498
NEF Subtotal 496,895 314,609
BOM Europe
—BARA - Italy 131,929 96,625
— [ - England 13,820 2,995
— Rz — Russia 41,900 27,406
— &= - Germany 29,192 25,884
—EH — France 8,110 8,621
—H B — Other countries 21,015 13,826
NET Subtotal 245,966 175,357
JEIN Africa
—m3E — South Africa 23,867 17,907
—& Rk - Egypt 6,659 4,645
—EBF|5 - Nigeria 18,524 16,019
—HMER — Other countries 8,164 9,782
NEF Subtotal 57,214 48353
HMBER, & Other countries/regions 6,109 8,794
10,137,137 7,969,773

PIEASEZIERBEEDUNPHE -

All of the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
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6. WKk oHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
HibpEg Other segment information
-l R B3
2B BATME BEE  PVCRERR  DERER 0 AREE HHER #a
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETn  ARBTn  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property and operating Other
Refrigerants Polymers Silicone  liquidalkali ~ development ~segmenttotal operations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WI7E 2017
0% BERRENE  Depreciation of propery, plant and
equipment 231,944 165,460 131,223 123,466 5,457 657,550 32,985 690,535
EVEEAR Amortisation of ntangiole assets 701 10,258 125 538 300 11,922 66 11988
(BE)ETESEUGA  (esal recognition of impairment on
HE trade receivables (18,122) (137) 980 (3914) - (21,193) (1,348) (22,541)
BHIERTZMER  Research and development costs
R recognised as an expense 5174 79,462 7,988 135 - 93,959 650 94,609
ks Wite-down of inventories 2528 - - 1,525 - 4,053 76 4129
HENE BERRE  Loss (gain) on disposals of property,
Biis) plant and equipment 29,971 35,145 112,105 18,856 (95) 195,982 9% 196,076
REEMRES Release of prepaid lease payments 3125 5199 3129 1,308 - 12,761 1,095 13,856
ZEFk 2akiE
RE BATHH BRE  PCRER MERE OE4E ERER 2%
ARETR  AREfR ARETR ARETR ARETR AEﬁﬁfm ARETR  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  and operating Other
Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liquid alkali  development  seqment total operations Total
RMBI000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB000
20165 2016
1% BRRRERE  Depreciation of propery, plant and
equipment 237,768 178117 13779 119712 1353 674,744 35,159 709,903
BIRERH Amortisation of inangiole asefs 416 10302 125 5 - 1109 3 1128
(BE)BDESEUGE  (Revisa recogniton of impaiment on
HE trade receivables 17306 § 61 4376 - 2180 9l 2751
BRABETZMER  Research and development costs
Ry fecognised a5 an expense 4403 66,370 2078 576 - B34 50 3%
ks Wite-down of nventories 1517 - - 3615 - 519 6 5200
HENE BERRE  Loss (gain) on disposals of property,
BR(E) plant and equipment 10254 7599 153 2075 - 330 58 35910
BERARS Release of prepaid lease payments 204 513 3132 1192 - 12400 1,069 13469
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20174 20164
ARET T AREET T
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
IR #e6 Bk Government grants 70,042 66,906
HRITFRFEHA Bank deposits interest income 8,583 9,211
i EFF BUWA Interest income on entrusted loan = 23,299
REAMHBPERE 2 REWA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 135,685 14,768
i 5 e Exchange gain - 29,037
HaF S A Other interest income 2,080 13,224
H A, Others 9,077 30,222
225,467 186,667
s - Notes:
@ BUTHREZRERTEDME - EEELRH (@)  The government grants are mainly for the expenditures on research
WIERBFX activities which are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.
LS5 %:N 8. Finance costs
20174 20164
ARMTF T ARETIT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
FE Interest on:
ARAEFARIMEEZRITER Bank loans wholly repayable within five years 111,648 167,025
ARAFAEBEZEMEER Other borrowings repayable within five years 1,242 858
fE B AN 4R%E Total borrowings costs 112,890 167,883
W MBERBERETER Less: Amounts capitalised for property,
| plant and equipment - (1,654)
112,890 166,229
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170

BE A (45)

HZE2017F 12318 L FE - WEEERAR
WRTER - FABTERNZEBERATIRN
—REEPEE - HEBEZE2016F12A31H
IHFEEEBREEMI TUAMBETIER(

LRGFAT1%E o

P

8. Finance costs (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no borrowing costs
was capitalised. Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose
on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying
a weighted average capitalisation rate of 4.71% per annum to

expenditure on qualifying assets for the year ended 31 December

2076.

9. Income tax expense

20174 2016%F
AR¥TF T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
REIZEFTSB(TREFTSRE])  PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")
—ERFE — Current year 201,034 174,774
—BERFEHBERE — Over provision in prior years (1,134) (16,866)
— TR ER ([ T 33BER ) — Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 12,091 73,573
211,991 231,481
PRIEFRLIA S H (M FE20) Deferred tax charge (note 20)
—HEHB AR DIKEM2FE - Withholding tax for distributable profits
i of PRC subsidiaries 48,042 18,742
—Eftb - Others 199,941 (3,575)
247,983 15,167
Frigtif X 58 Total income tax expense 459,974 246,648
REEBERAR —Z—tFFH
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AEFEHRIAFMX BiA B MEMEEKRA

HERABRTADG M HRRT -

9. Income tax expense (Continued)

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2201712431 HIEF/E

For the year ended 31 December 2017

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

20174 20165
ARET T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
R B A1 v Profit before tax 2,141,773 862,114
LAQ25%) 1 EFTB B R B BT IE Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate of
S i (Pt aEa) (25%) (Note a) (497,685) (215,528)
REBENEAENED Income tax on concessionary rate (29,263) 11,643
DA RN A T IE R 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose 45,749 2,440
Frihit & N R EENTRIETE Tax effect of share of result of associates - -
T HF A OB IEE 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose (14,724) (8,840)
RERRIBEENTIELE Tax effect of tax losses not recognized (12,492) (7,997)
TR ARERHIEBEMTIIE  Tax effect of utilization of tax losses
B previously not recognized 85,629 26,689
BEFEBRENR,(FBEEME)  Under/(over) provision in respect of prior
years 2,095 16,866
PEMNE AR A HDIREFIEIELE Deferred tax on distributable earnings of
18 (P 5Eb) PRC subsidiaries (Note b) (48,042) (18,742)
TR ER (i aEc) LAT (Note c) (12,090) (73,573)
THIRERNRIERE Tax effect of LAT 3,022 18,393
Hity Others 17,827 2,001
NEEHIBRAEZ Tax expense for the year (459,974) (246,648)
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9. FREHiR (M)

172

Wi

(a)

5% EREEMEHUREEARRAEZEZMBER
AILRREMCTIERAR(TRELT])  IUE
RESADFHHBERABR(TRESSF1) - W
RREEREVMBAERABD(TREAHE]D -
WRREREMBERQ R (REREE R
RREBMBEXERAR(BAEZR WA
BAPMSHME - IWREEWAFMHBRAT
(TEEMADOMBRBER%  HRES
RERMEMEEER -

1R 45 B D e B R B A 4R R A 3 B B 2008
B PEEREH2008F1 A1 BRRATES
AR DR S - BRBONTIRE D ERMIN
B %P RUE)EIR27IEA RN IR E %
MINE TS HOEE AR )EE OIS IR TE 4K
MRS - [HBRATRD KANAELER
BEE,/B1EANRH48042,0007T(2016%F © A
R#18,742,00070) BT AF A8 ©

1 R E R 2 ph £ B E A FHEZ30% 5600 K]
ST R - B ZE G FTAS SRR AT H0R
S BEL AR RTE YA
S e

AERETH IR BB EE20 ©

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR

o.

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Detai

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the relevant
income tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue
Chemicals”), Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue Polymers”),
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Organosilicon”), Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
("“Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd
("Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of the Company. The
income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd.
("Huaxia Shenzhou") is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a high and
new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No.1, dividend distributed out
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall
be subject to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law
Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and
Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises.
Deferred tax asset/liability of RMB48,042,000 (2016: RMB18,742,000) on
the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been charged to profit or
loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Is of deferred taxation are set out in note 20.
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10. Profit and total comprehensive income for

the year
FERBEMNEEERAEEDNGR GEA)T Profit and total comprehensive income for the year has been
|ES RS arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following items:
20175 20165
ARBT T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEEEN Short-term employee benefits 556,339 517,284
RIKEF Post-employment benefits 78,537 84,101
HB TR Other staff welfare 38,952 39,135
BB I Total staff costs 673,828 640,520
EERAMAL 2 FENAR Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 5,423,309 5,597,486
ME - HeERBEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 690,535 709,903
EREEBHEGIAHEERN) Amortisation of intangible assets (included
in cost of sales) 11,988 11,128
BTN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,988 2,252
[& 5 &8, (e ) /$ 58 Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 31,460 (29,037)
(B@) tHREZEWFIARME  (Reversal)/Recognition of impairment on
trade receivables (22,541) 22,751
EERAMS 2R RFAIEMKA  Research and development costs recognized
as an expense 94,609 73,947
WMORTF & (G AEERA) Write-down of inventories (included in cost
of sales) 4,129 5,200
BOoBENES Release of prepaid lease payments 13,856 13,469
HEME - WRRREEIE Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 196,076 35,910
mEERE Impairment of intangible assets 17,485 -
A ERERE Impairment of available-for sale-investments - 42,324

Mt : M EBTIRABEERMS -

Notes: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.

EREROBIETELA A AKRE14,143,0007T The actual discretionary bonus paid was RMB14,143,000 (2016:

(2016%F : AFR#10,699,0007T) ©

RMB10,699,000).
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NEERFTETHAEEGM 11.Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments
MEZENEETHRAESD S ES The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief
BN executive were as follows:
20174 2017
RELE
WA 2B

e e (HHE)  BAGHEIRR xfif%  AftEN )
ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR AR%TR  ARETR ARETR ARETR

Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension  share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note) contributions expense benefits Total

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HES Executive Directors
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 7,691 - - - 13,835
BERE Mr. Fu Kiwan 144 - - - = - 144
fEars Mr. Liu Chuangi 72 - 108 - - - 180
ERBLER017F  Mr. Cui Tongzheng (resigned

SA2BRE(T) on 2 May 2017) 48 800 1,021 5 - - 1,874
BRELAER017F  Mr.Feng Jianjun (resigned

SA2AEHME) on 2 May 2017) 48 - - - - - 48
REEE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - - = 144
REBEE(R017F M. Zhang Zhefeng (appointed

SHIREEM) on 2 May 2017) 96 1,200 5323 - - - 6,619
RUZEE(R017F  Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed

SRIBEZF) on 2 May 2017) 96 - - - = o 96
BUFRTES Independent Non-executive

Directors

TRELE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 364 2,300 - - = = 2,664
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 188 250 - - = = 438
ABEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 188 250 - - - - 438

1,532 10,800 14,143 5 = = 26,480
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NEBERFTETHRAEHMN(E 11.Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

2016 2016

]

MREA MBI
e A (RfeE)  BARGHEIEESR XA RHEN it
ARETT ARBTT AREBTR ARBTT  ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BES Executive Directors
RELAE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 6,342 - - - 12,486
BELE Mr. Fu Kiwan 144 - - - - - 144
HEsrs Mr. Liu Chuangj 144 - 17 4983 - - 5,144
ERREE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 2400 4339 9 - 3 6,895
BEELE(R0ISE  Mr.Feng Jianjun (appointed
3A16RERA) on 16 March 2015) 144 - - - - - 144
i Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - - - 144
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 283 - - - - - 283
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 158 - - - - - 158
ABEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 158 - - - - - 158
1463 8,400 10,698 4992 - 3 25,556
REBREATTARRBITERBE - EXPTH Mr. Zhang Jianhong is also the Chief Executive of the Company
BRI EEEERATTRARRERE T and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
Bff rendered by him as the Chief Executive.
FRN - AEEVERESIhERSHTAT During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
X e ABEEMBEAREE SR IMATK directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
EEM RS EBEE  BIEEIEITHAE to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
RAEMESNEHZE2017F128318 %2016 office. Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
F12A31 B IEMEFERE RS - any emoluments for the two years ended 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016.
it - BUBIEAL DR EENEARRMETE - Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance

of the directors.
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12.

176

1 & % A

AEFBRZSZSHFEATED - =2(2016%F:
ZR)ABARRRESR  EHFMEHINN EX
BEE11AR « HEpR A (20165 : MA)ATLTH

12. Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2016: three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 11 above. The emoluments of

HEN T the remaining two (2016: two) individuals were as follows:
20174 20164
AR¥T ARETIT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
e Salary 16,476 11,426
IRIRET BN Pension scheme contributions 14 14
IRIEEE 2 AR TSR Equity-settled share-based payment expense - -
16,490 11,440
BB Z BT LATZER - Their emoluments were within the following bands:
BB AE
No. of employees
20174 2016%F
2017 2016
1,500,00178 7T £ 2,000,000 7T HKS$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 1
7,000,001/ 7T 27,500,000 7T HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 1 -
11,000,001 7T 2 11,500,000 7T HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 - 1
11,500,001/ 7T £ 12,000,0007 7T HKS$11,500,001 to HKS$12,000,000 1 -
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-~

Tyi

13. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data

EARRBGEA AR & T
(AR#)

20175 20165
F T
2017 2016
‘000 ‘000
MEREAREERAFIME AT Earnings for the year attributable to owners
fEla & of the Company for the purposes of basic
and diluted earnings per share (RMB) 1,601,397 588,154
TEBREAREERFIMESAEE Weighted average number of ordinary
L RSk shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 2,111,689 2,111,795
BRARREMARITEBERENITEESR The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
MFEHTE - BETEEZE20175F K201 6@12 31 December 2017 and 2016 does not assume the exercise of all
A31 8 1EF 2 85 RS & R I R R of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise prices
FRIREERBITE of those options are higher than the average market price of the
shares
14. B8 14. Dividends
20174 2016%F
AR¥T T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREIRMNBIILE 20174 : 2016 Dividends paid during the year: 2017: 2016
FARAREFI0EITTR2015%F  final dividend HKS0.1 per share and 20
FREARE B &FA%0.0578 7T (20164 - final dividend HK$0.05 per share (2016: nil)
z)
BZE2017F12A3HIEFE - EFEEES
KB ZE2017912A318 Jﬁiﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬂx SEK
0.3/ JT #8 51633,507,000/& 7T * &

/% TLHE n-|'2

/)

#520,548,0007T(2016%F : B HE B
AN

RAR
HE20006F1N2A3BEFERBIBREFK

A s
=R

K

273,928
169,000/ 7+ HHER AR

187,307,0007T * JIEEGHx%ﬁAMEHx%tt

A final dividend of HK$0.3 per share amounting to HK$633,507,000
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017, equivalent to
RMB529,548,000 has been proposed by the directors during the
year ended 31 December 2017. (2016: A final dividend of HKS$0.1
per share, amounting to HK$211,169,000 in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016, equivalent to RMB187,307,000 has
been proposed by the directors and has been approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.)
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15. 903 - BEERRE 15. Property, plant and equipment
BF HBERIE RE GRREE EEIE Foe
ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Plant and Motor Furniture Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles and fittings  in progress Total
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
BA CoST
201651818 At 1 January 2016 1556454 6427630 45355 437,237 70,607 8,537,283
RE Additions 61,502 107,852 2524 35,855 232,646 440,379
fte Transfer 11,761 117,169 - 25933 (154,863) -
WA Written off - - - - (654) (654)
HERE Eliminated on disposals (3469) (105,991) (551) (1,497) - (111,508)
20165128318 At 31 December 2016 1,626,248 6,546,660 47328 497,528 147736 8,865,500
RE Additions 303286 204,161 17,704 80430 213432 819,013
FRUEMBARARE  Addition through acquisition of - - 2077 2,051 - 4128
subsidiary
i Transfer 38,895 188,299 - 14,602 (241,796) -
HEREH Eliminated on disposals (29,284) (723474) (8593) (18,908) - (780,259)
20174128318 At 31 December 2017 1,939,145 6,215,646 58516 575,703 119372 8,908,382
2HNERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
1201651818 At 1 January 2016 468,392 3,551,156 38870 297,608 - 4356026
FEERX Charge for the year 106,447 546,215 2,783 54,458 - 709,903
HEREE Eliminated on disposals (1,022) (71.869) (514) (1,282) - (74687)
20165128318 At 31 December 2016 573817 4,025,502 41,139 350,784 - 4991242
FEERT Charge for the year 91,004 539,063 4893 55,575 - 690,535
HERE Eliminated on disposals (10,874) (541,562) (7272) (17,842) - (577,550)
120174128318 At 31 December 2017 653947 4023003 38,760 388517 - 5104227
BEE CARRYING VALUES
120174128318 At 31 December 2017 1,285,198 2,192,643 19,756 187,186 119,372 3,804,155
20165128318 At 31 December 2016 1,052,431 2,521,158 6,189 146,744 147736 3,874,258
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MR2017F12A318 A& EMWE TEF
MAMNBEERF HEAEAAREK
280,968,0007C(2016%F12831H : A R ¥
155,402,0007T) °

W - MR R REERAEREN THIEETA
ERFHRNRERANRRISEESETE

BF 0F B (ABIEE BAE)
s REE 5105

qE 5

BEILREE S5F

REBERFEMED B A ARS5337,000
TT(2016%F © AR#6,048,0007T) X A RKEZ
TL(2016%F : ARBEZTIL)NETF  HERE
B AAREERITEREEMERERR -
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had not obtained the building
ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
RMB280,968,000 (31 December 2016: RMB155,402,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

The Group has pledged buildings and plant and machinery with
carrying amount of RMB5,337,000 (2016: RMB6,048,000) and
RMBnil (2016: RMBnil) respectively, to secure bank loans and other
loans of the Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.

Prepaid lease payments

The Group's prepaid lease payments are analysed for reporting
purpose as follows:

20175 20165
AR¥ETF T ARETFT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEWEBWMENDTIT ¢ Analysed for reporting purpose as:
—BIEAER — Current portion 14,754 13,603
— JERIEEE ~ Non-current portion 466,666 472,533
481,420 486,136

-
o

B 3
ey

S EEHER P B A HA20E 505 /Y HY £ 3 {E

The amounts represent the medium-term land use rights situated
in the PRC for a period of 20 to 50 years.
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16. A E (&)

16. Prepaid lease payments (Continued)

AEEEEHREEEARE2701,0007TH
FEMHE  AAEBERRTREMERER
(20164 : AREE2,621,0007T) °

The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments with the

aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,701,000 to secure bank and
other loans (2016: RMB2,621,000) of the Group.

17. B EE 17.Intangible assets
EEEM B R et
ARETT AR®ETT ARBTT AR%TT
Proprietary Exploration
Technologies Software rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A COoST
M20165F1 418 At 1 January 2016, 31
20169 12A31A & December 2016
201771 A 18 and 1 January 2017 128,512 1,723 80,000 210,235
NE Additions - 3,881 - 3,881
W B B BB A R Acquisition of subsidiary - 14 - 14
M2017%12A318 At 31 December 2017 128,512 5618 80,000 214,130
#eE KRR E AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
201691 A18 At 1 January 2016 51,410 472 40,000 91,882
REEFEREZ Charge for the year 10,861 267 - 11,128
M20165%12H318 At 31 December 2016 62,271 739 40,000 103,010
REEREZ Charge for the year 10,826 1,162 - 11,988
RIE Impairment - - 17,485 17,485
2017512 A31H At 31 December 2017 73,097 1,901 57,485 132,483
BREE CARRYING VALUES
M2017412H318 At 31 December 2017 55415 3,717 22,515 81,647
m20165%12H318 At 31 December 2016 66,241 984 40,000 107,225
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17.Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group's intangible assets were acquired from third
parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
5to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the
PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The directors of the
Company expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar
resources, which is a major raw material for the refrigerant
business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will enable
the Group to secure a reliable supply of high quality fluorspar
resources at a reasonable cost.

According to the regulations on exploration and mining rights
in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration rights as long
as the survey is in process and the application fee is submitted.
In October 2017, the Group extended the exploration rights
for a period of two years till October 2019. Due to decrease in
mining areas of the two mines upon renewal of the exploration
rights, the directors of the Company considered that impairment
of RMB17,485,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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18. REFE AR

18. Interests in associates

20174 20164
ARET T ARETIT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000

R EIE B E R RIAIE AR Cost of investments in associates unlisted in
the PRC 981 981

FE(RUCBE S (B548) % Fl - ¥ 2 Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profits, net of
i dividends received 19,688 10,297
DRI 2 AT ERE Fair value gain upon step acquisition 37,919 -
DR IERIUEER Derecognition upon step acquisition (57,593) -
5 8 Written off (995) (995)
= 10,283

B20174 R2016%F 12318 - AEEEE A

The details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2017 and

RAIFEFIBANTE ¢ 2016 are as follows:
124! EHRBES  RIEXR IBERBYE  FRROERN  ARESENZRER AREFRRERELS TERE
Form of business Country of Principal place ~ Class of Registered capital held  Proportion of voting rights Principal
Name of entity structure establishment  of operation share held by the Group held by the Group activity
017F 0165 017F WI6E
2017 2016 2017 2016

FRREBERHERE ARAA G i AR aclii 4% oilii Y% EHER%
BRAT (B¥sta)

Zhangjiajie Xinye Real  Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered N/A 44% N/A 44%  Real Estate
Estate Development company capital (Notea)  Development
Co, Ltd.

FELHREMTHER BRAT Gile? hE fER 49% 49% 49% 9% HERHER
BRAT (b))  RERRL

[

Chifeng North Dongyue ~ Limited fiability ~ PRC PRC Registered 49% 49% 49% 49%  Production

New Material company capital (Noteb)  and sales of

Development Co, Ltd.
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B (o R R &5 B Ty iR 4400 80 B HERTH -

M2017F8A218 » AEBE—FRERRR
S6%AEIE - RRAKALEBNBEE2ENE

NG

(b)  H2011F28188  KAARMWKMIBARIANTHR
FeBEFLATARARME—ZBIE =5
Wk BRAE T RE - AEEENEIE RS
TEEAYE RAHARERZAAREGE
RANZTZARAREEPHME - EHR
EEREZE2016F12831 A ILFERIFEER -

AR E A RIIRARDEN LSRN E R
KA  IRIFERE 53R & ERIAR B B 75
BREEESITE

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EZ2017F12A31 HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

18. Interests in associates (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 8 January 2016, Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with independent
third parties, as vendors, to acquire 44% equity interest in Zhangjiajie
Xinye Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd. (RRAZBXEHEMZEBRA
7)) (“Zhangjiajie”) at a consideration of RMB1. Zhangjiajie is engaged in
real estate development business in Hu Nan. The Group held 44% equity
interest in Zhangjiajie and accounted for the investment as interest in an
associate. The share of post-acquisition profits of Zhangjiajie depends on
the proportion of actual capital contribution by investors. As a result, the
Group's share of post-acquisition profits of Zhangjiajie was calculated on

a 44% basis in 2016.

On 21 August 2017, the Group further acquired 56% equity interest in
Zhangjiajie and Zhangjiajie became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

On 18 February 2011, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals
Co. Ltd,, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to establish North Dongyue. The Group is able
to exercise significant influence over North Dongyue because it has the
power to appoint two out of five directors of that company under the
Articles of the Association of that company. North Dongyue has ceased
its business during the year ended 31 December 2016.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method

in these consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial

information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with

IFRSs.

ERR Zhangjiajie Xinye
20175 20164
AR¥T T ARETF T
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets N/A RE A 581,529
wa g Total liabilities N/A FE A 558,159
FEE Net assets N/A RiEH 23,370
KEBRENFEE Net assets attributable to the Group N/A FiE A 10,283
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18. R E N T = (1) 18. Interests in associates (Continued)

ERA(E) Zhangjiajie Xinye (Continued)

20174 20165

AR¥TF T ARETTT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

e Revenue - _

BtE N T A ATEIEEE %A Profit for the year attributable to owner of

the associate 21,342 (28,272)

NEE E(ESE T Group's share of profit 9,391 (12,440)

FlBERZ N E AR R RE Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to

EHE RN GRS M HRER AR the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

20175 20165
ARBT T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
RRAKFEE Net assets of Zhangjiajie N/A FEHA 23,370
REFERRRABPTARERERLLH  Proportion of Group's ownership interest in
Zhangjiajie N/A FEA 44%
AEBRER A= IREAE Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
Zhangjiajie N/A RiEA 10,283
T REHFEE Net assets of North Dongyue = -
REBNIL AR EATEREREZSLL  Proportion of Group’s ownership interest in
North Dongyue 49% 49%

REBPL R E#ZSHEEEE  Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
North Dongyue - -
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19. Available-for-sale investments

19. [ HERE

20174 20165
ARET T AREBTTT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
FELEMRAES - AR Unlisted equity securities, at cost
—S1ERIEER/NEERAMR LA - Zibo ZhangDian Huitong Microfinance
al([REER]) (FizEa) Co., Ltd. ("ZhangDian Huitong")
(Note a) 26,703 26,703
—IWR¥EBECLERERSEAE - Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue
MR A R]([SPOBE ) (Fiztb) Economic Investment Co., Ltd.
("SPOBE") (Note b) 74,589 126,256
—HERERERHER AR - China MinSheng Investment Co., Ltd.
(MR (M5Eo) (“CMIC") (Note ) 1,000,000 1,000,000
—REEEEEARAT - Taihe Asset Management Co. Ltd.
(TZA 1) (BF3Ed) ("Taihe”) (Note d) 120,000 -
1,221,292 1,152,959

LA ENRERENLABEEBOBRAR
B RBEPRRRKAREZRETE - AR

The above unlisted investments represent equity investments in
private entities. They are measured at cost less impairment at the

EEATEMNGHEGHELESR  ARFES end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair

REHNFEEENETE o value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

Mk - Notes:

Q) EEERAETERIHMAATE . TZkSh (@) Zhangdian Huitong is a private entity and was established in the PRC.

Zhangdian Huitong is principally engaged in the money lending business
in Shandong Province, the PRC. The Group holds 15% of the equity
interest in ZhangDian Huitong., the directors of the Company considered
that impairment of RMB40 million was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2016.

FHILFEEREEEEY - ASERKREERR
BISu B AR RARESERE  ARE
40,000,0007CHVREC R EE2016F 128318 1E
FEMHR -

(b) SPOBEA—HRXHMEHSIMEIHNLAE (b)

SPOBE is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

B2 o SPOBEEX B BIREEH - REIE2014F
12A318 1IE F F + AN R A ESPOBER] i R B
19 &% + 3R B$20,000,0000%SPOBER% 15 + 42 X (B
/20,000,000% 7T( 18 & R A R %126,256,000
JC) » #ETMm#FA20,000,0008% % 15+ HHE A SPOBE
18.18%/Y % #£ o M & 22017128318 IEF
E ' AR E BSPOBEMEUR B E AH AR
51,667,0007T °

SPOBE is principally engaged in investment activities. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with SPOBE to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares in SPOBE at
a total consideration of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB126,256,000)
and held 20,000,000 shares which represented 18.18% equity interest in
SPOBE. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company received
capital refund of approximately RMB51,667,000 from SPOBE.
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19. A ERE (&)

BeE - ()

(0)

FREAEHRPERINLAEE 2
NERBEREMEEERE - R2014F5H898 -
AN &= R EE R R 4%1,000,000,0000% 8% 15 - HHER
FRIB2%8 AR HE - R E A A R¥1,000,000,000
5.

REAE—HRPBRKIMAATE 24
H(HPBE)AEEEULPEHILREER
SROEFNREEMEEZTEN - AEEE
HMALEBEKNIEN  EAMERBAR
#10,000,000,0007T * HAAER K HE AR
600,000,0007T * 1 Z= & #Y 5 it & 24X 48 %o% o
R2017F12A318 AEBEXHARKE
120,000,0007T °

20. IEFERI1E
BES R R R B AT -
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19. Available-for-sale investments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

CMIC is a private entity and was established in the PRC. CMIC is
principally engaged in equity investment and assets management. On
9 May 2014, the Group subscribed for 1,000,000,000 shares in CMIC,
which represented 2% equity interest in CMIC, at a consideration of
RMB1,000,000,000.

Taihe is a private entity and was established in the PRC. Taihe was
principally engaged in interalia, asset management and bulk transfer of
non-performing assets of financial enterprises in Shandong Province, the
PRC. The Group and other partners established Taihe and the registered
capital amount of Taihe was RMB10,000 million, of which the Group will
contribute RMB600 million, representing 6% of the total registered capital
of Taihe. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has paid RMB120 million.

20. Deferred taxation

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purpose:

20175 20165

AR¥T ARET T

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

EIEFIIEE E Deferred tax assets 246,398 451,653
EEFRIEER G Deferred tax liabilities (92,081) (58,679)
154,317 392,974

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR



20. IEFERLIE (48)

FACEANEIBRECHALE(AE) RE
g

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E{2E20176F 12531 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20. Deferred taxation (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon for the year:

Ve U
VERE
HEHELT EERA  EMEEN  RREW et
THAREN  FERE  BHER  WAEER BEER  EARAE  BERE NOTEER g it
Tax credit on
acquisition
Government  of qualified Fair value
Distributable Accrualfor ~— grantson property, adjustment
Profitsof PRC  Depreciation ~ employee prepaidlease ~ plantand  Capitalised on business
Subsidiaries  allowance benefits ~ payments  equipment interest ~ Taxlosses  combination Others Total
NEETT ARETR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RIBO00 RIB000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RIBO00 RIB000 RMB000 RIBO00
Ai6E1 818 AT January 2016 (42309) 1482 0847 47384 17500 (3649) 17388 - 30415 403141
ERREEAR Dividend withholdng ta aid 5000 - - - - - - - 5000
RERAMBEIA (Charge) et recogrised
in Profit or loss (18742) 607 10008 (152 - 1514 (15895) - 8828 (15,167)
R0I6E12A31E At 31 December 2016 (36,051) 15429 3785 487 17500 (2131) 153 - 332982 392974
BAREER Dividend withholdng ta eid B456 - - - - - - - B45%
PNERBUIBETA  (Charge) Credlt recognised n
Profit orloss (48042) (34 16578 357 - 1106 91954 - (305978) (247983)
YE-BHELT Acauisifon of a subsidary - - - - - - - (4130 - 130
g 1A31R 31 December 2017 (1630 15065 4433 40 750 (109 B487 04730 om0

20175128318 » NEBE A BIEEE AR K
i M Y AR B) B B IR B 1R A A R 424,842,000
(20165 © AR #144,154,0007T) © DL E
Hh A B A R 1£374,876,0007T(2016%F @ A B
#6,133,0007 ) M BB ERIEE TR IBEE -
AR THEEEHEETENERRENES
ARSI ARBEEIEIEN - T ER %
TARB) AR IBE 18 A R #49,966,0007T(2016
£ AR #138,021,0007 ) B RE TR
HEE - AMERRBEBEREEEBARE
374,876,0007C & A R #49,967,0007C © 5 Bl
# FA20214F }20224F J& i (20165 + AR
69,096,0007T & A R #537,664,0007T # 5 Bl 7
2019%F N 202045 f@im ) ©

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB424,842,000 (2016: RMB144,154,000) available for offset against
future profits of which a deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB374,876,000 (2016: RMB6,133,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in the remaining
unused tax losses of RMB49,966,000 (2016: RMB138,021,000) as it
is uncertain whether taxable profit of the corresponding group
entities will be available against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
RMB374,876,000 and RMB49,967,000 that will expire in 2021 and
2022 respectively (2016: RMB69,096,000 and RMB37,664,000 that
will expire in 2019 and 2020 respectively).
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21.

188

[5E 21. Goodwill
20174 2016%F
AR¥T ARETIT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000

[B#:N COST

®1A1R At 1 January 85,894 85,894
U BE R B A B (M) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note) 37,526 —
M12A31H At 31 December 123,420 85,894

BETREAH - ARM37,526,0007T(2016
F o T) M ARK13540007T(2016%F © AR
#1,354,00070) 2 EE D Al 9 BT = @R
SELBMCGReEESA) - BIPYHE B
BRAR: MERBESTHRRABERME
REARARI(RRAD - WREXFEHE
FEAERAT(EKXR]D - @2 FMES
EBWARRABE D HNREEREGHEEFR
AA(IREEZE]) - REtE20174F12A31H
IEFE  AEEEREREE IR L RAMAE
2 o

S S

RERARBAH A WESEDRIEERER
AEEE - FENREEEECHENTE
M BRENTA R RE RN EK1660%
B AFHNERMNRSRERMNTE
FER R R o ZIBRRERTIENERITEE
IR ETEBABITENTHORAER

Lo FREBFENEMEZRRIIE(R
REEHEBRLRENXEAN)RERER
AR - ZEGBADERRRAREANE
Ei‘%ﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁ%%@ﬁﬂﬁ“ﬁﬂ o BIRfE
BE - ZERRALSELRENEANEEH

g8 ?ﬂﬁ RAF B A A BRE AR E BB AT IR
OS5 -
REEEERLAT —T—tEER

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB37,526,000
(2016: Nil) and RMB1,354,000 (2016: RMB1,354,000) have been
allocated to three cash generating units (CGUs) representing four
PRC subsidiaries, Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co,,
Ltd., (“Zhangjiajie”), Shandong Boda Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. ("Boda”) in the property development segment, Huaxia
Shenzhou in the polymers segment and Dongying Dongyue Salt
Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue Salt”) in the refrigerants segment. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, management of the Group
determines that there is no impairment of goodwill.

Property development segment

The recoverable amount of Zhangjiajie and Boda has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
16.60%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash flows which include budgeted sales and
gross margins. Such estimation is based on past performance of
Zhangjiajie and Boda and management’s expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of related subsidiaries to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount.



21. & (E)

B FHRSE

EBWANAIKESERBERAEBENE
BE stENREEEEBECHENAFH
% AEMTERIR e RE RERE16.60%15
o AFHIAERIIR & R 2R A 3% BT 15
RRHEH - ZIBRERDERERITERETE
Al BABBEBITENTEHRAERE
FREAFENEMEERRHE(BEE
HHEERTMNERERNMBESREMGAE
B BT EREEMANBTREAR
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21. Goodwill (Continued)

Polymers segment

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 16.60%. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
flows which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Huaxia Shenzhou
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.

22.Inventories
20176 2016%F
AR¥T ARETIT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
R KBRS Raw materials and consumables 392,785 323,770
RS Work in progress 75,462 67,988
BURK &R Finished goods 520,982 319,210
989,229 710,968
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23.
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EHERE 2 23. Properties for sale
20174 20164
ARET T AREBTTT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
ELERBRZBTIME Completed property for sale 567,927 318,134
ELERGRZEEZYE Property under development for sale 1,238,016 89,086
1,805,943 407,220

REZE20102F12A381EFE  AEBER
BAREBA AR EILRAETE S B+
FERAEHERRZEEYE  BE@EMA%E
ETEIDER BRI FIIE - ZERTIED
20126 L - BEEES AHE - ME—
HEREHZE2014F12AHLEFERT - $
“HEREE2015F12A3BIEFERT -
E-HREMNEERNEZ20165F12HA318 1L
FEET - 8 T —HEFERRREERNT
T o

REZE2017F 128318 ILLFE - AEBEUE
WENEB AR @ NLUEEBAEERZEAR
ANRA(EXR])RERREBEFHEREBR
ARN([RRA])  EtELERB 2 MEE
RIRMT

2N

1. MRFRBEILREERERN—R A
EHERZ 2 EEWH - B AR
EIE R EAEEIBIINE - ZERT
RER2012FHI - HELBARSH
fE - BEEBEESAME - F—HERE
FE2017F12A3BILEFERT - AT
—HATERH SR 2019F =L o

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
management decided to develop residential properties on two
parcels of lands which are situated in Huantai Shandong, the PRC
for sale and the relevant development plan had been approved
by relevant authority in the PRC. The construction work was
commenced in 2012. The whole project is divided into five phases
and phase 1 was completed during the year end 31 December
2014 and phase 2 was completed during the year ended 31
December 2015. Phase 3 and Phase 4 were completed during the
year ended 31 December 2016. The remaining one phase was
expected to be completed in the coming years.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired
two subsidiaries, Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co.,
Limited. (“Boda”) and Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development
Co., Limited. (“Zhangjiajie”), which had the following construction
works of properties for sale:

Boda

1. Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Zhangdian Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was commenced in 2012.
The project was named Sheng Jing Lan Ting and the whole
project is divided into two phases, phase 1 was completed as
at the year ended 31 December 2017 and the remaining one
phase was expected to be completed in 2019.
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HEREEL AR E420,369,0007T(2016%F A
REZ ) EHENHREHRET =@ A
AL T o

AEBEDHEBEREEL ARE159,548,0007T
(20165 « T)MELER B ZYWE - LAES
KEEZRITER -

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 22017661231 HIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2017

23. Properties for sale (Continued)

Boda (Continued)

2. Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was commenced in 2008.
The project was named Shengya Yishui Yuan and the whole
project was completed as at the year ended 31 December
2017.

3. Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was under projection. The
project was named Shengjing Yuyuan-Zhongyang Gongguan
and the whole project was expected to be completed in
2021.

4. Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was under projection. The
project was named Hanlinyuan and the whole project was
expected to be completed in 2022.

Zhangjiajie

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated in
Zhangjiajie Hunan, the PRC for sale and the relevant development
plan had been approved by relevant authority in the PRC. The
construction work was commenced in 2012. The project was
named Xiaoxiang Huafu and the whole project is divided into two
phases, part 1 of phase 1 was completed as at the year ended
31 December 2017, the part 2 of phase 1 was expected to be
completed in 2020 and phase 2 was expected to be completed in
2023.

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB420,369,000 (2016:
RMBNnil) are expected to be completed within twelve months from
the end of reporting period.

The Group has pledged properties for sale with carrying amount

of approximately RMB159,548,000 (2016: nil) to secure bank loans
of the Group.
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24. ES R EMEWFIE

24.Trade and other receivables

20174 20164

AR¥TF T AREET T

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

H 5 EWRIE Trade receivables 1,628,794 1,146,024
o REREME Less: allowance for doubtful debts (3,128) (25,669)
1,625,666 1,120,355

[EMRITE R Prepayments for raw materials 43,106 25,851
FE I (E T Value added tax receivables 27,381 5,629
FEUAS B, Dividend receivable 35,685 -
e K H A fE U FIE Deposits and other receivables 238,633 57,140
1,970,471 1,208,975

B 5 RWHRIESEN2017F12A31HEAR
#1,350,000,00070 2 FE R ZE I (2016%F « AR
#882,106,0007T ) °

REEGKTEFPZESEBGIEEESR &K
A0 - U EE —MR0H KN Zk180
BRZEIE - BiFEER (MRS ERA
HRE)  AEBRBEPRERCEFE
WHIE(MBRREREE) WERED 250
‘|T °

Included in the trade receivables are bills receivable amounting to
RMB1,350,000,000 at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB882,106,000).

Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of
trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date, also approximate the date of revenue
recognition, which are recognised by the Group at the end of the
reporting period.

20174 20164

AR¥T ARETIT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

90HA Within 90 days 1,095,087 873,868
91H=Z=180H 91-180 days 509,743 209,690
180H A Above 180 days 20,836 36,797
1,625,666 1,120,355

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR
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24.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 99% (2016: 98%) of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record
attributable under the research on the creditworthiness. The
Group offers various settlement terms which vary depending on
the size of contract, credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,138,000 (2016:
RMB47,523,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these
balances.

20174 20164

ARBT T AREFT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

91HZ=180H 91-180 days 1,150 10,726

181A B E Over 181 days 988 36,797

2,138 47,523

HRNEEERTRBEZE B ARAKRERRZ Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group

EFIRMAIKE - NREERE LR IR as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality

B AR EERAUSEHNEEEERZR and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of
aF ° the Company consider they are in good credit quality.
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24, EZ REMEWFIE(E)

24.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

RIREBEEE Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
20174 20165
AR®T T AREFT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHHES Balance at beginning of the year 25,669 2,918
FR(EE),BE (Reversed)/Provided during the year (22,541) 22,751
FURIER Balance at end of the year 3,128 25,669

A LB RRE AT AT K EIH E 5 & KRR
HIRL(E

A A1 S B 25 B T B M LA 9 e 51
B S B R BB T

The above allowance represents impairment for trade receivables
which are considered not recoverable.

The Group’s account receivables that are denominated in
currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

EY AR
FIT T+t
Us$ RMB
000 '000
201746128318 As at 31 December 2017 26,959 176,155
20165128318 As at 31 December 2016 18,093 125,513
25. ZFEE R 25. Entrusted loans
20175 20164F
ARET T ARETF T
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEER Entrusted loans - 30,000
194 HREEEERAE —Z—tFER
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ABEMEE  SHAEMZBEREERN
EEARITERD B A AR ®16,500,000
7T~ A R #5,204,0007T & A R #11,156,000
JL(2016%F © A R #85,000,0007C © A R #
3,160,0007T K A R #18,540,0007T ) °

EHRBRITFARRIBITEBIZZEFI G
B BEMRITFERRRITEBRIN2017F
RAMNB®NEFHERMED R A181%
(2016%F : 1.65%) 52.0.48%(20164F : 0.42%) °
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26.Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

Cash

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB16,500,000,
RMB5,204,000 and RMB11,156,000 (2016: RMB85,000,000,
RMB3,160,000 and RMB18,540,000) have been pledged to secure
the bills payable, letter of credit and mortgage loan, respectively.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2017 were
1.81% (2016: 1.65%) and 0.48% (2016: 0.42%) respectively.

The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

EpT AR
Tz Tz
uss$ RMB
'000 '000
R20175%12 83180 As at 31 December 2017 31,068 203,005
2016512 A31H As at 31 December 2016 67,317 466,911
BT AR
T T
HK$ RMB
'000 '000
2017 12A31H As at 31 December 2017 35,385 29,579
M20165F12H31H As at 31 December 2016 22,890 20,475
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27. B RHEMENRERKRER

196

ENFEzEWRE

(a)

B2 REMENRIE

27.Trade and other payables & deposits

received from pre-sale of properties

(a) Trade and other payables

20175 20164
AR®ETF T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
B SN IR Trade payables 1,263,298 1,086,516
BN EFFIA Receipt in advance from customers 161,515 107,609
FE AT B, T3 BN (B i) Payroll payable (Note i) 249,871 173,293
Wi - M2 MR E M R FOE Payable for property, plant and
CEzalp; equipment (Note ii) 267,703 109,072
E b TEIE Other tax payables 137,265 108,939
YR IEE AWM EMIZES  Other deposits in relation to property
development project 58,000 58,000
ERERB 2 ERYEMERBET  Construction cost payables for
B 7R properties under development for
sale - 191,982
E b E A R FE =Tk E (B i) Other payables and accruals (Note iii) 207,516 115,033
@zt Total 2,345,168 1,950,444
P E Notes:

(i)

(iii)

R2017F 128318 - BB IHEMEIE
—EATFBENBRARAEEHRESE
B A R %60,503,0007C(20164F © A R #&
56,869,0007T ) © & REIE AN 5 & A B fft
BAREREMNZHELRESEMS - HIRE
AR RAIBET - WIREHRULR
LR E - HREHTMEE AT —FEF
HIE  TELRE IR BT ERMDY
TR -

WeiE 2 - MERR R I RO BN BUIR A A1
BRRBRETRE=ZEARNZN - 1
RENTAFIEERTIE -

H N REARERENRENB R
REABENBLE=ZTREHNARKE
62,961,0007T ° IAERE B E - TEREBFLD
AR #519,105,0007T °

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR

(i) As at 31 December 2017, included in the payroll payable is a
provision for social insurance fund for employees of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB60,503,000 (2016: RMB56,869,000).
The amount of the provision represents the Group's entire
obligation for social insurance fund for employees of PRC
subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant national
regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the basic
counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic
counting unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of
an employee in the preceding year and shall not be less than the
minimum limit promulgated by the local social insurance bureau
each year.

(i) The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will
be settled in three months after the completion of installation
of the plant and machinery which is recorded in the addition of
construction in progress during the year.

(i)  Included in other payables and accruals was approximately
RMB62,961,000 due by the newly acquired subsidiary, Boda to
independent third parties. As at the report date, approximately
RMB19,105,000 has been settled.
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27. B REMENHERKHTE 27.Trade and other payables & deposits

EVEERIRE(E) received from pre-sale of properties
(Continued)
(a) EZREMEMSFIE(E) (a) Trade and other payables (Continued)
B S RN HIBREEAR42313,000 Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting
7£(20164F : AR #201,000,0007T ) 2 & to RMB42,313,000 (2016: RMB201,000,000). Bills payable are
NEE - BENEEGAERNDEFR secured by the Group's pledged bank deposits.

TR E R -

HEEROESEZEEA00H - NEE The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days.

BHFAS M ERRERBER - LER The Group has financial risk management policies in place

FTEEAFIENMEEHRRNEE - to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

RIBEZAE - B EMNKIENERRS The following is an analysis of trade payables by age,
WE2AT : presented based on invoice date:

20174 20164

ARET T ARETT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

30A Within 30 days 700,218 610,672

31HZ90H 31-90 days 414,142 263,635

91HZ=180H 91-180 days 124,607 158,432

181HZE365H 181-365 days 9,073 34,155

1HEEF 1-2 years 7,402 12,194

i@ E More than 2 years 7,856 7428

1,263,298 1,086,516

REEBBREEEE e EE SN The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated

ZEBEENE S RE M ER RIS in currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant
O group entities are set out below:

EYH ARME

T T

uss RMB

‘000 ‘000

2017512 831H As at 31 December 2017 4,092 26,737

20165 12H31H As at 31 December 2016 3,466 24,039
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27. ESZ R EMEBEARERRER

28.

198

EMEzEWIRE (&)

(b) REFEEWEZERES

27.Trade and other payables & deposits

received from pre-sale of properties

(Continued)

(b) Deposits received from pre-sale of properties

20175 20165
ARET T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
KEBEYWEZ D WIS (M5F)  Deposits received from pre-sale of
properties (Note) 359,918 98,527

M ZeERTEBENRELNRKER

Note: The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers

FRIA ° arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC.
[+ .
BE 28. Borrowings
20174 20164F
ARBT T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
EILIHRTTE R Unsecured bank loans 1,738,000 2,689,700
BHIEMIBEITER Secured bank loans 82,821 40,000
1,820,821 2,729,700
ARLAT R N E R EREE Carrying amount repayable:
1R Within one year 1,076,021 1,797,700
ESNEERS = EpEES More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 674,800 932,000
ZR2F B HEESF More than two years, but not more than
five years 70,000 -
1,820,821 2,729,700
B IRNRBEETEIFRZE  Less: amount due within one year shown
IR under current liabilities 1,076,021 1,797,700
1 1% B HiF0E Amount due after one year 744,800 932,000

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR



REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E{2E20176F 12531 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

28. 6 E (#&) 28.Borrowings (Continued)

2017412 H318 » AR%82,821,0007T(2016 As at 31 December 2017, secured bank loans of RMB82,821,000
F: AR®40,0000007T ) B K MIRITE R (2016: RMB40,000,000) were secured by the Group’s buildings
RSB REBE A AR S53370007T(2016 with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB5,337,000 (2016:
F: ARM604800070)IETF - RERES RMB6,048,000), prepaid lease payments with the aggregate
A R #2,701,00070(2016%F = A R #2,621,000 carrying amount of RMB2,701,000 (2016: RMB2,621,000), and
TO)E TR TR & AR A R #159,548,0007T(2016 property for sale of RMB159,548,000 (2016: RMBnil). The secured
F:ARBEZLT)NELEERGBRZYEER bank loans carry interest at 4.35% to 6.37% (2016: 4.35% to 5.22%)
B - ZEREPRITETILF B435%2 per annum.

6.37%(2016%5F : 435%Z5.22%)5T 8. °

rEETFELEEERRRERESOINEHA(KEHR The exposures of the Group’s fixed-rate borrowings and the
FEEB)MAT contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:
20174 20165F
ARET T AREFT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEE Fixed-rate borrowings:
1R Within one year 280,200 458,300
LN FRTBB2F In more than one year but not more than
two years 76,800 60,000
357,000 518,300
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28.

200

B8 ()
BESN - AEERT BB -

20175128318
WEREE F=

ARH1,46382100070 12 & E ZF X h0wZzE
% (AFEEBM
FIR : 435%%6.37%)

20165 12A831H
BERE R Fil=

AR#2211,4000007T 12 % E FF X oz
5% (REEEAD
FZ : 435%%6.46%)

TR R RIBIEEERFE RGHRITEE
KE/ BBRTAEFSESD - BEEKRT
RHPBRARRITEM - HHBEARRITHA
M EEN 28 - ARREERM KR
MIEEFNSRBERRTE - BRBIRTRENR
BT BHEEN SN BEFEEHRRER
BEBRITEERBAENEEN AR E
HEMRGE -

FEFIENRMEAEFHTE -

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR

28. Borrowings (Continued)

In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:

Loan amount as at
31 December 2017 Interest rate

RMB1,463,821,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
4.35% to 6.37%)

Loan amount as at
31 December 2016 Interest rate

RMB2,211,400,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
4.35% to 6.46%)

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
lending rate and the LIBOR/HIBOR. The standard lending rate
is promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The interest of
borrowing at standard lending rate will be reset when there is
a change in the borrowing rate promulgated by the People’s
Bank of China. The interest of borrowings at LIBOR is reset on a
quarterly basis and the interest of borrowings at HIBOR is reset on
a monthly basis.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.
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28. Borrowings (Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) are as follows:

20175 20165
2017 2016

BERF = Effective interest rate:
EEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 4.35% to 5.67% 4.35% to 6.3%
4.35%%5.67% 4.35%%6.3%
HEEE Variable-rate borrowings 4.35% to 6.37% 4.35% t0 6.46%

4.35%%6.37% 4.35%%6.46%

KRR S B B A T A 9 DA ) ST
AR EE BRI

REZE2017F12A31BILFE - AEFERSF
$5 A AREE220,000,0007T (20165 © ARES
1,757,700,0007C ) K ¥ AR IR AG HRERTT B SR
£ 585 ARE698,000,0007T (20165 @ AR
932,000,0007T ) KB IR R HRERTTEEK ©

RBERR AEBAATRIEREERE

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are
set out below:

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group obtained
new unsecured short-term bank loans in the amount of
RMB220,000,000 (2016: RMB1,757,700,000) and unsecured long-
term bank loans in the amount of RMB698,000,000 (2016:
RMB932,000,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

= undrawn borrowing facilities:
20175 2016%F
ARET T AREBTT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AE R Expiring within one year 2,726,000 806,724
BRI FE W Expiring beyond one year 265,000 -
2,991,000 806,724
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29. IEFEWT A 29. Deferred income
IEIEY ASETEWE TG - WA A BATE Deferred income represents government grants received
N HJ(ERAE - in advanced and subject to fulfillment of conditions set by
government.

FREEW ARSI T ¢ Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
20174 20165
ARMETF T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
R1A1H At 1 January 279,982 292,806
NE Additions 1,120 17,509
WESIEN Release to profit or loss (28,022) (30,333)
M12H318 At 31 December 253,080 279,982

BWEFENDTNT ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as follows:

20174 20164
ARET T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
BNERER > Current portion 25,359 27,925
SEENERER Non-current portion 227,721 252,057
253,080 279,982

202 REEEFERIA —Z—tFFR



30. IR A

REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Share capital

E{2E20176F 12531 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

R EE &N
T AREFT
Number of Share
shares capital
‘000 RMB'000
FAR01E TR E B AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
ETE Authorised:
7201681 A1H At 1 January 2016 2,113,391 200,540
B O] N st e A% (B sE) Share repurchased and cancelled (note) (1,702) (143)
20165124318 - 120174 At 31 December 2016, at 1 January 2017 and
1H18 &R2017%F12H8318 at 31 December 2017 2,111,689 200,397

Mt REE2016F 128318 ILFE - ARRIBBE
BHMAEXZMBERARBEEAGRMGINT

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company repurchased
its own shares through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as

follows:

SFRo1BTH
ZEREE BS BIE EERE
BEBAMH BT BT BT

No. of
ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
Date of repurchase HK$0.1 each Highest Lowest paid
HKS HKS HKS
20/1/2016 260,000 1.58 1.58 412,280
21/1/2016 492,000 1.56 1.55 773,484
26/1/2016 950,000 1.51 1.46 1,423,481
1,702,000 2,609,245

A BRI R BB EIEFESH o

REZE2016F12ABILFE B fft8d
%62,609,2457%8 L (FMEE R A R #2,192,0007T )
LABE[E] itz (n o

REE2016F12831BIEFE - EAAQF
MEAREBE - HEXERARRMEM M

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

The total amount of HK$2,609,245, equivalent to RMB2,192,000
was paid to repurchase the above shares during the year ended
31 December 2016.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended 31

A o December 2016.
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31.

204

AR AR A B 7RI

RNARERNAFEER B2 R B
STEI([ETE1 ) IR IR 2007511 H16 B BIR
FRBRMERYN  EHZEMAREES
REEBRES - BIEHE - ARREFEA
MEEREE(BEARFIREMB ARG
EERES)BRLEREUREARQRRS -

R2017F K&20165F12A31H - XA AHES
BIHEMRIERT B TR E R L R AR TE B AR
PSS RAT AR o

31.Share-based payments

The Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme (the “Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 16 November 2007 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under
the Schemes, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, none of share in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

RS ERIE EERIFFB T ¢ Details of specific categories of options are as follows:
RELBH

fBREER R AH R Cagid TRE NAFE

Exercise Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price at grant date
BRRREEAEREE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
BRELTE
Share Option Scheme:
RTESNERE
Options to directors
Bik#EA 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2012 01/06/2012%01/06/2016 813BTT 306787T
Option A 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012 01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.067
kiR 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2013 01/06/2013%01/06/2016 8138 320187T
Option B 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013 01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.201
RRHEC 1/6/2011 01/06/2011201/06/2014 01/06/2014%01/06/2016 8138 3314787T
Option C 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014 01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.314
BIRED 1/6/2011 01/06/2011501/06/2015  01/06/2015501/06/2016 8137 S4BT
Option D 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015 01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.411

REEEBRAR —Z2—tFFH
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31.Share-based payments (Continued)

RREAH

BREER R AH BEH T T E HAFE

Exercise Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price at grant date
BRDREEABREE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
iRl
Share Option Scheme:
RTEENHERE
Options to employees
fEfvigr 1/6/2011 01/06/2011%01/06/2012 01/06/2012%01/06/2016 8138 T 306787
Option E 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012  01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.067
ERREr 1/6/2011 01/06/2011%01/06/2013  01/06/2013F01/06/2016 813ETT 320187T
Option F 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013  01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.201
fEIRIEG 1/6/2011 01/06/2011%01/06/2014  01/06/2014%01/06/2016 813 331487
Option G 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014  01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.314
BB AEH 1/6/2011 01/06/2011%01/06/2015  01/06/2015%01/06/2016 813 3ATETT
Option H 1/6/2011 01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015  01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13 HK$3.411

TRBEEZE2016F12A31 B IEEHER

The following table discloses the movement of the share options

EEE) during the year ended 31 December 2016:
201651818 20165 12A31H
e RAT 28 i RATHE
Tz T T
Outstanding at Outstanding at
BB R RS R Option type 1.1.2016 Forfeited 31.12.2016
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
REAREA Option A 8,000 (8,000) -
BB Option B 8,000 (8,000) -
FEIEC Option C 8,000 (8,000) -
REIRED Option D 8,000 (8,000) -
REIRIEE Option E 25,975 (25,975) -
B IRHEF Option F 25,975 (25,975) -
FEIHEG Option G 25,975 (25,975) -
FE RN Option H 25,975 (25,975) -
135,900 (135,900) -

2016 F F4RBF AT 1T Exercisable at the end of the

year 2016 -
NHEFHITEE Weighted average exercise price HK$8.13 HK$8.13
81377 813487
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32.

206

RE 32. Commitments
REFMKBERAVENT ¢ The Group had outstanding commitments as follows:
20175 20165
AR¥ETF T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
BAESE Capital Commitments
BRANEDE  HERFRENER Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
S BETHBRELEAT ST of property, plant and equipment
KN contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements - 14,204
BREELREREZWEME RS  Capital expenditure in respect of properties
o BRESASMERERABEME  for sale but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 219,000 -
EEAHEERENERZHE - & Capital expenditure in respect of available-
SIBRELGAMBHERANEE  for-sale investments contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 480,000 -
Hth & e Other Commitments
BRELERSBEZEERYERNMI  Construction commitment contracted in
AYE - DEIQBERESZEMGH  respect of properties under development
FNE for sale contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 230,618 70,681
929,618 84,885
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33. HEHIE 33.Lease commitments

REBIERAEBEA The Group as lessee
20175 2016%F
ARBT AREFT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000

FAENKEEHEREHEESM © Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases during the year:
M Premises 2,717 1,978
HE 1 Leasehold land 4,437 3,113
7,154 5,091
R EBR - AEBIRBE AT RHEGERE At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments for
AERBREESNR - ARHERNAT future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

2017 20165
ARET T ARKEF T
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
1A Within one year 7,431 6,256
E2FERSF(RIEERWE) In the second and fifth inclusive 26,004 25,024
HBIASF Over five years 42,084 48,339
75,519 79,619
KEHENREERAEERE T HHER Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
KIS o AV TR ER20EF - Group for certain lands. Leases are negotiated for an average term

of 20 years.
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4.BEEALIRS

FRN - BEAMBHRERMEATIEIN -
BETTIIREALRS

REE

(a) BERMH

34. Related party transactions

Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:

(@) Purchase of raw materials

201745 20164

AR¥T T ARETIT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

JEFERAS A BR A 2 Non-controlling interest 3,651 1,780

(b) TEEEASHM (b) Compensation of key management personnel
FA - EEREMTEEEASNHE The remuneration of directors and other members of key
N management during the year was as follows:

20175 2016%F

AR¥T T ARBFT

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

EHE B R Short-term employee benefits 42,950 32,892
RIRAEF Post-employment benefits 18 5,006
42,968 37,898

() EHRETEREANETERRE (c) Bank deposit placed to major shareholder and

28 F 2 U A related interest income
20174 20164
ARET T ARETTT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
R12A3HNRITER S5 Bank deposit amount at 31 December 175,004 -
FAFLEHA Interest income during the year 4 -
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35. Retirement benefits plans
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The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-

managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective

local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute

a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the

benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these

schemes is to make the specified contributions.

36. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company

imaTaEE/
il PEEA HEE FERHEN B8/ aRERRA ROAFEFERRRL KARGRIRNA  TEER
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest Propartion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
1 B
Directly Indirectly
wrE - WeE  0ME LEE WE NE
i % b % % % %
217 016 217 2016 217 016
000 % % % % % %
REEAT G ias ARBeu00m 10000 10000 - - 10000 000 BEREEBREZE
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital AMBG41,360 Manufacture and sale of
oolytetrafluoroethylene
REILT G ifiax AR#30007 - - 1000 000 10000 1000 HEREERE
Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital AMB340000 Manufacture and sale of
refrgerant
FEEz P ifiéx AEBR007T - - 6000 00 6000 600 AEREEE
Dongyue Salt PRC Registered capital RMBB0000 Production and sales of slt
RERERAIARAT  0E iftén AREner 2500 505 LN ' My EERYERZ
Dongying Dongyue Precision PRC Registered capial RMB12,667 Production and sales
Chemicals Co, Ltd of bromine
REAE il ifiax ARBO000T 6979 o 138 B8 B8R B2 PEREEFRELN
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon PRC Registered capital RAB400,000 Manufacture and sales
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36. & A BB A B () 36. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
(Continued)
imaLaEE/
il PEEA L E FERHEN B&f/aRERRE ROAFEFERRRL KARGRERNE  TEER
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest Propartion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
4 B
Directly Indirectly
wE W6E  NWE N6E NUE Ni6E
i % b % % % %
217 016 217 016 2017 016
000 % % % % % %
Hongfong Tal eematonsl 7% ifEn AT 10000 10000 - S0000 0000 HEIER
Trading Co, Ltd.
Hongkong Talli Intemational HK Registered capital HKD100 Sale of chemical products
Trading Co, Ltd.
REEE Gl ifas ARBe000T 8400 s 1600 600 10000 1000 BEREEERENE
Dongyue Organasilcon PRC Registered capital RMBES0,000 Manufacture and sale
of organosilicon materia
RELRECEAIIARAT 48 il&s ARET00T - -0 S0 SIS0 S0 BEREEEKELS
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Pesk ~ PRC Registered capital RMB70,000 Manufacture and sale
Fluorine Chernicals Co, Ltd. of anhydrous luoride
FeEREERRAT Gl ifas ARBS00T - - 800 Bm 800 G HEREELR
(hifeng HuzSheng Mining Co, Ltd.  PRC Regitered capital RIBY.000 Manufacture and sale
of fluorte
REAREANNERLT 98 ift&x ARBS000T - - 10000 000 10000 100 EEREELE
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine  PRC Registered capital RMB30,000 Manufacture and sale
(hemicals Co, Ltd. of fluorite
URREXTRSHERAT 48 itMes AR5 707 - -5 S0 5100 0 BERHEESE
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine PRC Reqistered capital RMBI15,700 Manufacture and sale
Chemicals Co, Ltd. of sficone rubber
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36. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company

(Continued)
iR/
WRATER gzax itcivie) B&f/fdRRE KOAREHAEREENLN MAARRREEME  IERE
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
43 B
Directly Indirectly
wE O W6E NWE N6E NME Ni6E
T % b % % % %
217 2016 217 2016 217 016
000 % % % % % %
UFREBAERARLT  4E iftén ARESO00T - 6400 000 00 00 HEFE
(k)
Shandong Dongyue Union PRC Registered capital RMBB0,000 Property development
Property Co, Lid. (Note )
URBARHERRERDT %8 ifiaa AEBS0007T - 10000  TER 1000 TER  hEER
(Hikc)
Shandong Boda Real Estate PRC Registered capital RMB30000 N/A N/A Property development
Development Co, Ltd. (Note ¢
FARERRAERGARLA PE itfEs ARBB00T - 10000 40 10000 uo R
(ko)
Zhanajiie Xinye Real Estate PRC Registered capital RIBB0000 Property development
Development Co, Ltd. (Note )
ERREAREAERAT  WE itMas AR 0007 - 10000 10000 10000 0000 EELIER
Huangtal Dongyue Intemational ~ PRC Registered capital RIBS,000 Sale of chemical products
Trade Co, Ltd.
2R8A T &R ARBI0007T - 10000 0000 10000 100 HEREESERAT
t2%
Huaria Shenzhou PRC Registered capital RMB10,000 Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer
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36. 4N A Y B 2 Rl RF 1R ()
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36. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company

(Continued)
imALEER/
WELTER i E FERHEN E&f/2RaRRE RAAFGRERRRLN KAFGRERE  IERE
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
E%
Directly Indirectly
wE o w6E - NWE N6E  NUE Ni6E
it % b % % % b
217 016 217 016 2017 016
000 % % % % % %

URREAREAERAT %8 ifas ARE 1007 - - 60 TER 60 TEE  EhRRfELD
(Hif)

Shandong Dongyue Mass Trade ~ PRC Registered capital RMB20,000 N/A N/ Import and expart of goods
(o, Ltd (LEREARES and technologes
BRAF) Mote )

AERARRLA(MEY)  4A iféx AREI00007 - - 1000 TEE w000 TER REEER

Guoming Investment Co, Ltd. -~ PRC Registered capital RMB30,000 N/A N/A - Investment management
(EEREARAR) (Noteb)

URREARERIHERDT A ifEx ARBI00007T - - Ao TER W00 TER  SERBETHH
(Hit)

Shandong Dongyue Future PRC Registered capital RMB100,000 N/A N/ Production and sales
Hydrogen Energy Materals Co, Ltd. of hydrogen energy
(UFRERRERITHERAR materials

(Note b)

REL - HEBRRBERTERELES

FrAEFEIMERRE AEARME -

PaE

o

(@ WRREBAZZARDFNEE0174F12A
3 H L EIE NIRRT A

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic enterprises.

Notes:

(@)  Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd. has increased capital

contribution from non-controlling shareholder during the year ended 31

December 2017.
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36. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Shandong Dongyue Mass Trade Co., Ltd. has been set up on 22
September 2017.

The equity shares of Guoming Investment Co., Ltd. has been transferred
to the Group on 31 October 2017.

Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd. has been
set up on 19 December 2017.

(c)  Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. has been acquired by
the Group as indirectly wholly owned subsidiary on 28 June 2017.

Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. has been acquired by
the Group as indirectly wholly owned subsidiary on 21 August 2017.
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37. 1586

37.Business combination

EX Boda

ZiRiut HE B2017F6 F28B A E - AD Reference to the announcement on 28 June 2017, the Company
AR LREAREREERAT([1H completed the acquisition of Shandong Boda Real Estate
RS - AR —HRIURERESH Development Co., Ltd. ("Boda”), a private entity engaged in
ERZEENLATE THRWEZE 8 real estate development business in Shandong. Following the
RNB2017F6 A28 K ARAARBEES acquisition, Boda became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of

NI

the Company since 28 June 2017.

5
AREFT
Amount
RMB'000
WEEA TSI EEFE Net assets acquired of:
e =Y Property, plant and equipment 811
B 5 NhE b EEIE Trade and other receivables 103,870
LSRG Y Property for sale 815,637
RITHER RS Bank balance and cash 1,891
2 S RN RIE Trade payable (17,251)
FEET K Eofth FE S 2RIE Accrual and other payable (928,332)
FERRIE Tax payable (13,451)
i EE EF5E Net liabilities assumed (36,825)
Wi 2 Goodwill on acquisition 36,826
1
ATIIT A ASRAE Consideration satisfied by:
e Cash 1
WHEEEZHSRANTE Net cash inflow arising on acquisition
IR & RIRTT 455 Cash and bank balances acquired 1,890
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REZE2017F12831BILFE - BRALE
B Uz B B A R #56,154,0000T @ T B UG8
HEIZ2017F 1231 B LM M AR E B2 E
HRUB1EE 4 A R¥18,074,0007T © W&
HREZE2017F12A3B I FEFYRE
AEBHZE2017F12A318 L FE a5
#4975 AR #10,137,137,0007T * & 20174
NANBEFEMFNREEBABIEGRLD
A AR#1,699,732,0007T °

e

201758 H21H » RAFRITKE KRR AS
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37.Business combination (Continued)

Boda (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Boda contributed
approximately RMB6,154,000 to the Group's revenue and loss of
approximately RMB18,074,000 to the Group's results in aggregate
for the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December
2017. Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2017 would have been approximately
RMB10,137,137,000 and profit and total comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
approximately RMB1,699,732,000.

Zhangjiajie

On 21 August 2017, the Company completed the acquisition of
Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiajie”),
a private entity engaged in real estate development business in

Hunan. Following the acquisition, Zhangjiajie became an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since 21 August 2017.

T
ARETT
Amount
RMB'000

WA T SENEEFE Net assets acquired of:
L E T Y Property, plant and equipment 521
mEEE Intangible asset 14
B 5 R E MR Trade and other receivables 36,409
ERER® 2 Property for sale 417,155
EREFIAE B Deferred tax asset 9247
RITHEHR LIRS Bank balance and cash 42,820
2 SR RIE Trade payable (2,728)
FERT R E A FEA 3RIR Accrual and other payable (267,096)
RITEE Bank borrowing (78,000)
FEFRIE Tax payable (3,320)
REFIAE & Deferred tax liability (24,129)
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37.
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EBaotH (&)

37.Business combination (Continued)

RS (&) Zhangjiajie (Continued)
AREFT
Amount
RMB'000
g & EFE Net assets acquired 130,893
gl Goodwill on acquisition 700
131,593
IATBFHZAIRE - Consideration satisfied by:
RE Cash 74,000
REZ RN E 2 AFE Fair value of investment in associate 57593
131,593
WHEEA 2R MILFE - Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
BEfNRE Cash paid 74,000
Yol 2 31 & MARTTAEER Cash and bank balances acquired (42,820)
31,180

REZE2017F12A31BEFE @ RRAMA
SBEWREE BN A AR %83,881,0000T * M H
Wi H B E2017F12A31 B LRI M A& E
XEBERIEES X ARK,246,0007T ° 1§
AHREE2017F12A318 I FEF ) 3
o KREBEZE2017F12831HIEFEHUK
=45 4 B A R #10,348,547,0007C © ME =
2017F12A3BIEFERMRFI RE2EBAL
5498 AREE1,679,391,0007T °

REEEBRAF —E—LFFR

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Zhangjiajie contributed
approximately RMB83,881,000 to the Group's revenue and loss of
approximately RMB9,246,000 to the Group’s results in aggregate
for the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December
2017. Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2017 would have been approximately
RMB10,348,547,000 and profit and total comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have been
approximately RMB1,679,391,000.
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38.Summarised statement of financial

position of the Company

201746 2016%F
AR¥T ARETT
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
KB RARRIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,524,547 1,524,547
At HERE Available-for-sale investments 74,589 126,256
RITHER MRS Bank balances and cash 85,707 36,324
HimeEE Other current assets 134,425 219
HimEasE Other current liabilities (9,583) (7,532)
1,809,685 1,679,814
[N Share capital 200,397 200,397
& (HEE) Reserves (Note) 1,609,288 1,479,417
1,809,685 1,679,814
LHEEDH018F3 F29B #tfE R IFHET)EE - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2018.
REE REIE
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
EZE EZE
Director Director
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38. NN BB AR R REER () 38.Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company (Continued)
BT Note:
[FEFEE - Movement in the reserves:
MR A7 518 BIRERE BEAFEE REBF st
ARBFIT ARBFIT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFIT
Share  Share option Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20161 A1 B &% Balance at 1 January 2016 1,226,972 391,844 200,344 (375,505) 1,443,655
FERHEF REMmU A Profit and total comprehensive
1A%y income for the year - - - 37,810 37,810
PRI R Lapsed of share options - (391,844) - 391,844 -
BE [ R sE AR 1 Shares repurchased and cancelled (2,048) - - - (2,048)
2016%F12A31H#&E#:  Balance at 31 December 2016 1,224,924 - 200,344 54,149 1,479,417
FEREFREMmUA  Profit and total comprehensive
fek income for the year - - - 403,799 403,799
[SENEEES Dividends paid - - - (273,928) (273,928)
2017912831 H&#  Balance at 31 December 2017 1,224,924 - 200,344 184,020 1,609,288
39. L EFREMBHREK 39.Approval of the consolidated financial
statements
FEYR201843 298 #Hb & K& 5 #E T B4R The consolidated financial statements were approved and
S BwmEK - authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2018.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EEREE Assets and liabilities
W12A31H
As at 31 December
20135 20145 20155 20165 20174
ARETT AREFTR ARETRT ARE®ETT  AR¥ETR
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BEHAE Total Assets 10,032,631 12,003,560 11,500,728 10,865,117 12,277,964
aERaE Total Liabilities (4,521,803) (6,105,756) (6428,353) (5178866)  (4,965,553)
5,510,828 5,897,804 5,072,375 5,686,251 7,312,411
AAREEABEER Equity attributable to Owners
of the Company 5,266,849 5,640,807 4801,539 5,388,008 6,709,732
FERRRER Non-controlling interests 243,979 256,997 270,836 298,243 602,679
5,510,828 5,897,804 5,072,375 5,686,251 7,312,411
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Five-Year Financial Summary

BT IS E Financial results
BENANBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2013F 20145 20155 2016%F 20174
ARETT  AREFTT ARETT AREFTT AR%ETR
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
W Revenue 6,782,814 7,599,696 7,032,486 7969773 10,137,137
HEMA Cost of sales (5,686,752) (6,383,611) (5,863,519) (6,328718)  (7,072,865)
E | Gross profit 1,096,062 (1,216,085) 1,168,967 1,641,055 3,064,272
EplA Other income 178,186 290,501 343,949 186,667 225,467
DEMBEERS Distribution and selling expenses (253,976) (251,209) (251,284) (283,058) (313,959)
s Administrative expenses (298,483) (289,791) (261,116) (387,610) (656,333)
ARHERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments - - - (42,324) -
EBFEERE Impairment of intangible assets - - (40,000) - (17,485)
MHEE Assets written off - - (1,478,200) - =
HRRAZERT Research and development expenses (71,668) (73,398) (69,797) (73,947) (94,609)
BENA Finance costs (89,065) (201,441) (208,663) (166,229) (112,890)
/N Share of results of associates 445 283 (573) (12,440) 47,310
BB AR A Profit before tax 561501 691,030 (796,717) 862,114 2,141,773
FERiAY Income tax expense (124,275) (194,034) 115,780 (246,648) (459,974)
KEERFR2EBALE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 437,226 496,996 (680937) 615,466 1,681,799
TH&AEERFR2EBA Profit and total comprehensive
(BX)a%. income (expense) attributable to:
ARREEA Owners of the Company 465,898 483,276 (690,479) 588,154 1,601,397
R R EE Non-controlling interests (28672) 13,720 9,542 27312 80,402
437,226 496,996 (680937) 615,466 1,681,799
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Corporate Information

Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.OBox 31119

Grand Pavillion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Flat 02, 15th Floor, Capital Centre
151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. ZHANG Bishu

Mr. ZHANG Jian
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. YUE Rundong

Com pany secretary

Ms. Chung Tak Lai

Authorized representatives

Mr. FU Kwan
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. YUE Rundong

Remuneration committee

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG lJianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Chuangi
Mr. ZHANG Bishu
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Corporate Information

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Xiaoyung
Mr. Yue Rundong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

China Everbright Bank Company Ltd.
Zibo Branch

107 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Zibo Branch

103 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
12th Floor, Infinitus Plaza
199 Des Voeux Road Central
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong
Baker & McKenzie Hong Kong

Stock code
189



TEILREAREREMNEREE

Dongyue International Fluoro Silicone Material Industry Park

E 54 Tel: (0086) 533 8510072
{&E Fax: (0086) 533 8513000
#HE Website: http://www.dongyuechem.com



	封面
	封面內頁
	目錄
	主席報告書
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高層管理人員履歷
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收入報表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	公司資料
	封底


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks true
      /IncludeHyperlinks true
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


